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NATIONAL INFORMATICS CENTRE SERVICES INC., NEW DELHI

National Informatics Centre Services Inc. (NICSI) was set up in 1995 as a section 8 Company
(erstwhile Section 25 Company) under National Informatics Cenfre, Ministry of Electronics and
Information Technology, Government of India to provide total IT solutions to Ministries,
Departments, Organizationsin the Centfral Government, State Governments, UTsand P S Us.
Vision

"Achieve leadership position in the technology enablement of India and other developing
counfries thereby conftributing effectively to accelerate socio-economic growth”.

Mission
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"To promofe and provide transparent value added Information and Communication
Technology on end to end solutions including procurement services and business solutions to
customers at competitive prices with a focus on socio-economic development".

Objectives

To provide the economic, scientific, technological social and cultural development of India
by promoting the utilization of InNformation Technology. Computer-Communication Networks,
Informatics efc. by a spinoff of the services, technologies, infrastructure and expertise
developed by the National Informatics Centre of the Government of India including its
computer-communication network, NICNET and associated infrastructure and services.

To promote further development of services, tfechnologies, infrastructure and expertise
supplementing that developed by NIC, in directions which will increase the revenue earning
capacity of NIC.
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To develop and promote value added computer and computer-communications services
over the basic infrastructure and services developed by NIC including NICNET.
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In furtherance of these objectives, NICSI has been providing following Products & Services to
Ministries, Departments, Organizations in the Central Government, State Governments, UTs
and P SUsetc.:

Hardware

Systems Software
Application Software
Software Development
Infra-Networking

Wide Area Networking
Video-conferencing
Customized Software

I.T. Training

[.T. Consultancy

I.T. Implementation Support

Data/Membership Services

NIC Services Inc. is truly a Total ICT solutions
Company in the Service of the Nation.




NICSI:

Is truly a total ICT Solutions Company
in the Service of the Nation.
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Creating Synergy for Technology
Diffusion in e-governance.
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Neitworks people in Government,
Industry & academia to permeate
the technology benefits to the
remotest part of India.
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Harnessing Information &
Communication Technologies.
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. - o Rafd s H Rufa @
AR IR
TR
R =1e] wRawfat
HORY, I SR YRR 3 5,741.46 4,633.46
YOI 1 WTf
I g URFHRIIT 4 3,693.68 309857
faxtra aRewafoa
()=R0T 5 686.16 618.35
@) = fa<ig uRegwRm 6 322.62 320.35
IR B i (Fae) 7
31 IR—=Te] uRFwafrt 8 2,539.99 2,282.70
<ol IREaRRIT
foxia aRawafra
()R FrfeT 9 28,835.15 28,130.13
(@)THET T RS © THDE IRET 10 13,295.05 20,470.42
(M) SWa (@) & IfmEr d AY AR 11 14172753 12037246
(@3 faxira uRewuirat 12 3,923.41 4,201.14
le]. B IR (Feret) 13 11,164.64 6,036.78
3= Aref yRGwfrar 14 2794712 27,183.74
Bl R 239,876.81  217,348.10
sfaad iR uamg
st
SfFaET eRR Yol 15 200.00 200.00
3= gfdacT 16 63,682.41 60,578.15
EURILY
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Y R 31 9, 2018 31 HIE, 2017
. feuofy

. : HRefts o Rufags
e
TR TR
AR 4re] <A
o< e
(@) =g fo=irr <y 17 40.45 51.46
PICEIE
IMRARTT R <gard (Fae) 7 145.62 507.31
qTe], TG
faxir <arg
() @MUR < e 18 4678432 4778297
(@) o1 fa<ir <rarg 19 1,728.85 2,485.00
3= ATe], SIATY 20 12722064  105,668.69
PICEIR 21 7452 7452
Fel 3T 3R Fag 239,876.81  217,348.10
AEyYf il ifca 2
Tord fewfrit faxia faavon &1 sif= 9T © )
AN 99 aRRg Raé & AR A gHHfeTd dex afdflie §& &
P MAA T TS B fieere dea & fog &R S99t IR 9
SECIRCICICAN HITSU : 3 74899€IUc11995UTUIUG072045
BH GOlIhRUT AT 00039774
g0,/ — g0,/ — g0,/ —
IS IR AT AR s Yol FAR
ARIER PECRRNET JreTe]
AT . 084897 SIMEU: 07652553 SIMSU: 08176055
g0,/ — 80,/ —
Sf. e gaR P T
CEEIESICE] [ESIRESEIREIN
THHIUE: 6468 g GG AGHR
M ¢ A8 el RIS F
&% : 26—09—2018 &P : 26—09—2018
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ALrelc ShiAteaR e AfafH=t go

Fuelt sfafererar 2013 & sgqaTe arer 8 & arefieT

ATET TTChIE DI fororfIrad IgorTar
31 AT, 2018 P GG 9¥ D ¢ o7 9 =g oEm

#9  faer feuoll 31 9 2018
. G BB
I oRarem & <o 22 125836.56
I a1 ey 23 7.806.36
M e o () 133,642.72
vV g
AR H LI P EYIQ 24 39,571.03
W] FEIdT Y 76,779.95
HHar) & fzal 9 d6fda <> 25 82884
e IR uRenfea = 3 4,020.75
Y Y 26 7,377.05
A I (jv) 128,577.62
VX 3R SRR Fqe} W Uged o @1) (iii-iv) 5065.10

VI g 9

AU, I SR SUDBROT BT JhHA 3 -
3 3Tycder URAUTAT BT Jhwr 4 -
VII &= (v—v1) I g o /(g'rﬁ) 5,065.10
V[ [ Qe —— 1,960.83
(1) e X 226801

3 o H

31 91° 2017
P T 9

124,141.06
8,566.34

132,707.40

48,669.21
63,821.94
993.84
1,671.56
6,482.05
121,638.60

11,068.80

15115
215.65
10,702.00
4,260.95

3,410.69
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w1 R ey
A LiiCf
(2) IMRARTA IR
(3) @ a¥ & forg AR &R/ (ReT 9)
X' =1 aRered &1 af & fow am / @1) (vii—vin)
X g iy e IRR (are] ReETe & f):
(1) 7t 27
(2) B¥ SUTSIH 27
et fewfordt foxiar faaxort &1 1= Wi 2 |
AN W9 ARG RAE & AFAR
FI NI T T8 B
NECURSEEICAN

B TR AT 0003977

g0,/ —

oy Y

TR

ST 9. 084897

I ;T3 faeel
feAT® : 26—09—2018

g0,/ —

31 919 2018 31 91 2017
B G 99 P AT 9§
(361.69) 54235
5451 307.91
3,104.27 6,441.05
155213 322052
155213 3.220.52
A SHfeTT HeX ik 59 &
fiere ded @ oY 3R S IR 9

AIBMETA : I 74899STUcT1995TTUITA072045

AT AR s

yder fAe9rs

SIS T: 07652553

g0,/ —

<f. e HAR

HUT Ffd
THUIT: 6468

R : A8 faeel!

feAT® : 26—09—2018

g0/ —
ol AR
37eeT

SIS T: 08176055

80,/ —
IS TR
IEGIRINSIEETN
g el RIBR
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AAA SHIATEEH Aer AR S

Fuelt sfafererar 2013 & sgqaTe arer 8 & arefieT
ATET SehIT Pr ferorfdre Icorar

31 Ard, 2018 I ReIfd & SER THT Yarg faawor

3 omEr |
faa=or 31 9T, 2018 B 31 |G, 2017 B
A Ty T

gRared TfRfafel @ e yae
SR A U8l I SRRV 7al & forg sy / () 5065.10 11,068.80
JIT B TR T
R F qd IR / (=me) 5,065.10 11,068.80
TERSE & forg
e URAURR W s 402075 1,671.56
e iRl &1 e w® a1/ (81) 3.06 (0.09)
EIneIn| 777.72 502.10
ey
TS T 8,285.61 8,827.97
PRI ot # gRadHl ¥ Ugal uRara SRy / (areT) 1,581.02 4,414.39
JHERG & forw:
a1t gt | gfg / (@)
AR it § g / (@) (705.02) (9,355.88)
%01 9 I 9 oy uRHRRE ¥ gy / (@) (5,940.70) (13,741.75)
MR 37 SR o ST # gy / (@) 19,786.19 37,986.89
e # gfe / (@)
Rarel & gior T@ar 14,721.49 19,303.66
e JTTD (2,268.01) (3,410.69)
qd qul & forg e (54.51) (307.91)
Rare TRIRRRT (@) ¥ fFaa 964 siqais / @fRals) 12,398.97 15,585.05
fraer wfafafSat & 9o yarg
e UREURRT & @le (5,728.25) (7,528.31)
el uREuRal & o 1.10 0.18
famrare= ey gy 640.38
EINECI S| 8,285.61 8.827.97
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e TiRifafRl & faa T siqafe /afafe @) 2,558.46

faxira wfafaferat 9 Fod) vare

EESECIN (777.72)
faxia fafaftal & fraa Jod sidaie /afats () (777.72)
Ahal 9 Adal GAdel | Faa gig / (@) (@+E+) 14,179.70
9y © Yo H hal g TPhal FHDE 141,134.48
Iy P FHIT TR Adhal g ddhal THDE 155,314.18
feagofy

1) ¥R & A4 @Il G §RT ORI By T Adha) garg faaxor

1,940.22

(502.10)
(502.10)
17,023.18
124,111.30
141,134.48

2) Y P FHING W Adbe AR 9F AY AR d I H @ T8 THhal dq1 Y AR At 81 A

faRor fA=aR 2
faaRor 31 A4, 2018 P 31 |, 2017 B
Ruftd & sgar Refy @& s/ER
THE T THe THHE
St d sy 13,294.98 20,470.02
U T 0.07 0.40
I b ¥ Ay IRR
RENSE pp—— 142,019.13 120,664.06
155,314.18 141,134.48

AN |H IR RiE & 1R A §hMfea dex Afdfiie §5 &
Fd A W g8 B fwe dea & for &k S9a 3R 9
NECURGICICAN AIBMEYA : Y 74899STUeT1995U-TUITA072045
BH TSR] HIT 0003977

80/ — 80/ — 80/ —

IS TR AT FAR s ol FAR
HRTER y§e feere 3TeTeT
FERIAT 4. 084897 SIRMMSU: 07652553 SI3MST: 08176055
80/ — 80/ —
<t e AR QU T
Ul Afea IESIERSEIEEAN
UHHIU: 6468 g I TEHR

I : A3 faeel I : Ag feee

feT® : 26—09—2018 feeT® : 26—09—2018




ALrelc ShiAteaR e AfafH=t go

31 AT 2018 o FaATH gv & forg SRFadt iF uRade fraeor
. 100/— TR TS @ Frimafie ok yed e ™R & fog e IR oo

3 o §
faa=or feaofy ¥
1 30T 2016 1 RAT & AR 15.00 200.00
99 & SR gRad+
31 9719 2017 ® RIfy & 1 JaR 15.00 200.00
99 & SR gRad=
31 A/ 2018 & RART & AR 15.00 200.00
g I A (Ruft 16 )

3 o §

IRATY &R sty FA sfaadl
HfERer SuTe

1 3 2016 @) Refa & AR 54,137.10 54,137.10
¥ & fog faa ema/ (@11) 6,441.04 6,441.04
AT STRfET # afaxor - -
B G4 AT 6,441.04 6,441.04

ATTeT faaRor R

31 Ad 2017 @1 Ry & SIgaR
¥ & fore faer ama / (&19)
AT STRfE # afaxor

Gl ATTD AT

31 W 2018 A Refy @ argaR
"YUl i Hifaat

60,578.14 60,578.14
3,104.27 3,104.27

3,104.27 3,104.27
63,682.41 63,682.41

TN F IR RAE & 1R WA sHifedT Hex Afdfe s @&
P NIA T g8 HUA fwe dea @ forg oik 9791 &R &
SECIRCICICIN HISTSU : 3 74899SUcT1995TTUIU072045
BH TolIdhRUT FIT 00039779
80,/ — 80,/ — 80,/ —
ST TN S FAR s GHS FAR
ARIGR y§e feere Jreger
AT . 084897 SI3MEUA: 07652553 SI3MTEUA: 08176055
80/ — 80,/ —
<. frfer R AUF TFET
HUAT Afed ERIRBSEIREIN
UHAIT: 6468 J A4 AGHR
RIS Fl o | W - g feeel
f&T® : 26—09—2018 &A@ : 26—09—2018
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ALrelc ShiAteaR e AfafH=t go

(it sifdfererar 2013 & srgaTe arT 8 & e aTTed TePIe Ir ferarfara 3coraT)
31 A, 2018 P FAG a§ & forg faxfia faawoll @ wewayel s -ifoan ik fewfor

1. i g

e ShiAfead X WafiT $& (M) & Iy gea-faee & (THeSR), WaR SR g
Yrefie! #31eld, IR RGR & dad [adld 29 3R, 1995 BT &+ IIfIH, 1956 &I TRT—25 (34
U A, 2013 BT ORI 8) B TEd I fHar a1 o1 | 9 & RBR 7=l / farn /
ISl DI Al 3Ms ¢ A Ua™ & & foy RS fdar w7 |

2. HEwEyul o@id At

() fchg el o IR &1 &7 ImR

fo<iar faa=ort &1 du ifef=e (rfarfram) 2013 &1 GRAET ITEE- 1l & |1 ufdd Hu- (WRA™
G AT®) AT 2015 @ S WRAT oAl Aol T AEGFaa AT a6 39 AN &
Tl & ATAR ¥ AMER TR JIR {HA1 a1 7 | RUIfET srafer faxiir 99 2016—2017 & QoA
RN ST AME & AR [ faavoll &l TR & &I Aard Uensii &I 500 B¢ U &
FREiRd AT 9 &1 | & gt IRT 89 & SR I Sif+arRd fbar mar & iR fawig ad 2017 —
18 B RIS @ & forg ATy faaror &1 GegaR IR far T 2|

i faaront # faxfia sffdsi &1 IR $ud | sifded fhar a1 & Sifd e @1 Raife gat den
HTITHAS T B |

(i) YR AWHT THD 101 — ARG AGPHT D B Ygoll IR TN B AHAT & W
PN ¥ AR ARSI Wied B

i faaRoll &1 IR &Rd 979, 9RAR A@idhd 9496 101 & AJAR 1 R R =i Sfeatiad
3Ifart raaTeTHeGdT BT e Haferd fmar T

(@) fo<ig aRawRml qem o <adamRl o RAIGR &R

(@) wreeA

@M foxia aRewafral &1 qeffexor ik A9+

(@) fo<ig aRa=Rmal o1 srerhar

fo<iar faaRoll &1 IR aRd qFY, IRA odid A6 101 & JJAR i\ W aF] Wfed 8 o
R g T

(@) <Srre onTd

(@) HufRy, FIF qAT UGN BT AT H AN DI ATl 7 B BT BRI W A BT 737 |

(i) TREFERRT R <garel &1 IR A 9 aTe], Fifebeor:

el aRewafRy &7 =are] uRFART A9 STRAT <14,

| 53



o I IAUET Pl SNl T [ IHDI WY yRET RIfd # wqd fham Sy s1erar S|l 9 &l
AR a1 SR iear S9@! @ud @ o |

*  WUR & P S ¥ S I U A @[ O |
o RuUIféT @ & ggarg 12 18 & IR W UK B DI MUl 8 |

o TPHdl AUAT AhAl b AHGE IR OF dd b 39 RUIfET @l & uwarg &8 | 9 IR A6l &
foy Mye™ &9 3q SHaT SHTd 9 fHa1 SR sferar IAaH! [y &-e R ufey 7 o e
S |

g a1 gREFfRR @1 AR are) uRewmufal & wu # affea foear ar 2
TUEH I DI AT <qdT AFT STl § ofe:

o T AV B TN T b IFHT A uRares Refa # e foar S|
o I WMNUR PR & I I I WU ¥ @ 9N |
o I RUIET 3@y & gganq 12 A8 & IR FUCH HRAT STH-I &1 3feraT

o U B W AT o R i 7 & o RUfeT rafd & uvarg wH W HH 12 A1 @ forg
IRl & e &) ufshasit &1 et Wi |

e 9t R\ @1 AR =T uRewaRal & w9 # affga fear m &
IR HR gRFFaRral T <oamRil & iR are] uREFRR do gl & w9 # aiffea faar mar 2

aRare Refd a6 iR F6d & e IR & IRgd & iR ST RA IR D S |
IRFRTEN & 3% @ drF @I AW Bl = | i 9 S9al uRares & Rafd & g # 12 7918 A
Jqfer B ggE Bl 8 |

(v) wuRy, @95 3R Suwaw (fids) o qeusrd

(@) uger gRe=fRET

U], §IF 3R SUFHR BT AR R ST 74T & (37l 3ISi B ANTd 1T ATA|TST Bl AT B
fFmTor ArTa, 0T S1eET S AT HRA B IR, TGS Yo 1Al R, AT @l & IRM @
IR, 375/ RIFYH &1 ARG dd SUR o @1 aNTd (3rgal i gRewafy @ Reafa #), dfaa Haa
Hede™, 3R i srermar =ifel, afe &g 2|

9 |URY, I 3R IUEPR & Aeciayul Joll (JoIh U ¥ Fuch & WU § [S-a] ggard ol 11 &
U RIS TR GGl &l SRaxd Bl &, T4 DU 9acl g ol Bl I Sl & AR IFD] IuARM fafey
® AR 7Y Yol @l © 3R qEAgdR I9d1 U b S & | o A1 geg e/ Si=/
FRAET B Sl & T9 Sd] AN DI Wihd Bl gol 81 S W Haed gREuRidl & srfya n
H AT AT & WU H IR (BAT ST & | 37 T ARSI 3IR ERETT DT ANTd Dl AR 3R
9 faavor § yd foar 2|

IRAYRTAT BT SHATS B & ULl SH @I DR B UATRIT AN & aad Jod DI, Ta€r v
Wpd AT gof & oI R, I A6 aRAuRT @ orTa # wnfier far mar 2
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IREYRY, GIF 3R SUTHRI Bl e HRA R 31T I9dT AfhT sward 9 8 IR iy faaron 3
fTer faam a1 8 | Uiy, T3 IR SIRBR WRIG BT O/ 39dT fAUe &)1 & HROT 819 dTed ot/
g @ gfed af # oM iR =g fdavor # uga fovam T 2 |

IS 1 Hal WR I Bl BUHl JEIH, 2013 B AT — 11 H FeiRa <RI R 12rar Red sra+
e UGl & IR WA fhar 1 2| P T R SR 2013 B ST 11 & R Wil
@ /i 7Rl @) SuARft orafy @ MeiRor far T 2

(v) swrue aRe=RET sk uRees

JYIE URFHRTN BT Y& H AN WR Mol [hIT TAT & | AUTe IRARTT BT Teugeand dird
JIERHAT BT T i aRenes g+l & 1M &I $F BB 3N dTell AT UR bt fhar a7
2| 3rycuel URGURRIT @& YR Irafdy ifAd srerdr RN 8 Adhdl & | g orafdy arel smce
aRerafEl @ Red e a0 tefd & R S9! Suarh ¥ orafy & ddy # uRefd fear
T B | DT ST rafey arelt emvrcuer uREuRral & for uRenys ugfa dom uRene= orafdr & &4
I HH uAS RUfeT rafdy & FHIftg wR FHer o o © | gReuRrat § e feg g 9 anfde
Ml @ WU & YR Ues 1T Ria SuAnt Jafyy # g arel uRad=l R g7 SUYh UG
JrergT gReNye af & aReNfad w7 & v R fHar a7 @ dor S= okl Weo ¥ uRad+i &
Y F AT AT 2 | DT Srafd arell mcel uREURRT R B9 dTel IRINYH I BT 99 I 3T AR
2y fqeRel # UgdE @1 SRl © S a6 Ul Fg R0 31 uRAufidl & HeAi T U A= 3T
T8

HUN AAFRH & FITIR SR AFCIIR AR FR H HOd AR DI HA: B8 1 AT A auf
B IAD! AT STARN 3w rafy & e # el uefd & ITAR WRgd o Sar 2 qen 9@
aReNfAT forar ST 2| SRy AffedeR | Hdfd arTd &1 goligd fhar Smar & ok S < auf
IADT AT STATN N @y & Fag # el Ugfd & rgaR aRefed fHar S 2 |

vi) fxhg aReuRmt o e <gar

fo<i oRewfRrl 3 IR are] faxia SuaRer S sfaadt # fAaer, wkor, gfesiforn ok M @ik =re]
gRAURTIT S Fdal IR Tdhal FHGET 3T AR Wftd a7y IR, d6 99 IfRrdT, o § Arafey o,
faer mftqat, ufengforat smm enfae 2 |

fo=fra Sgamell # gHg Tg NI IWR, Thal Hise A, @R wiad!, e <3 k[l @i 2|
1T it <7 ARRT SR IR, A, Afasy (Y, sggars anfe foxig <aarl =181 § |

o< aRsqufral &1 3 siftRN & affea fear wor & () oRefda arra () s <aus g &
AT ¥ ST Hed (THATCISIRARIE) (i) o™ 3R B & A1ed | Id g3 (THACIUIYe) U 3fidhar
o |

fo<ia <aamelt &1 <1 Aftrl # offed fear T & () oRenfdd o (i) Twdrddiva W affdhar
foar |
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(vii) ST g &1 A9
HUH TD g UF D dRIG DI ST oI W I<A |ed S B iR o (Fael a1 b
TR T

1 gREufEl iR Saaml, e forg foxiia aren # Ifed Jea &1 e qr ddHcIanRoT faar T
2 I AUl IR eI Alhe & JIAR HEdqUl 7 WR & gYc WR ARG F=gar aftrd
3frd qeg & NaR affgpa far T 2

o TR 1 — Tl T UREURRT 3T It & folt Afshy aToR # ISy (SHIING) dTeIR
4

o TR 2 — Houd URRRN e fou 9 WR & Y SR o ofided Ud B & forg
AEcdayel 8, ST WY B AT T ®Y H Ifacrd fHAT I B |

e WX 3 — Yo ufaft e fow 9 WR @ gYe o Sfud e Ave @ forg wAEwaguiy,
SREARCCRICRISHRCRIRV SIS

M MR R gl U5 H Ud $1 T aREURE! dern <uamsi & foft du+l a8 iRy o=l & &

T IS RAFET @y o F9id R (G fFda IR Jeg fided & oy dgcayol /4 TR &

SIYC UR IMYTRA) SONdHROT BT G oI B HAGHEdl H Wkl & §Id bly AR 11T 3 |

I AT BT YHSIDPRUT B & IeI I DU o TP & AMER WR, fIeraamell dem yRAuRR srerdr
AR & SIREH T SR WL S T AR ST Jod A 9 Fad WR & AER R aRGuRml
qer <arl @ AfwET o1 ke e g

(viii) TSI B BN

RIGRE &1 FIfdd M T uger o1 Sl & forqd e &1 i o 81 3R RToia RIRT @l
I U I STBT S FHIT | [RGBl TRBR DI AR A YA (Y TY Yool AT BRI DI BISHR
TAT I Bl Ffdgragdr gob FRFd eal o1 & d ad 8U U by T srerar wifes I ufise
& ST qea W 3NHT AT B

et / Felag doT ! gef & fas) oxa & Hdy # Joig ¥ &1 Uga= & 9l § ofd HJTol P 3TN
YERAT R TR AT & WM BT 2R T AEqdyUl SIgH TRIGAR & U1 Il Sl © | AT B
Il & urd IroRa T &1 ura R T dieEr wiitd Ay uliwd & Sfd qou, fae am der W,
MR H g do IR AT § e @ AR Jfidhad fHar S 2 |

e, RIS &1 g R R AR gU aHa—amd R FEiRd ) — Sioft R gReme dEia ifd
BT UFA BRAT & | IHER URATAT AHIT 1T Bl & IRATTHAT AR & AU 3 AfiTae Bl & 31T
GRATST &I ARTd SATQT &1 Sl 8, IR=Emer dHid IR1 & & HH 8 ST & | GRIATSHT a1 T
gfg B @& SR gRATe AWid IR & R H STRad HH 8 S @ It aRarer T e 28 &
FHI R AAAT Y Bl FHING R deJodl siee TR SRl dRd oRIT—SIEl I&T ST & | §9 TR
SR & T wfee feufr o Jdfda ama ofid | wrga far e 7

ol # Arafdy ST (UHS)) TR UT TS 37T &7 JHTd] 16T &% (SHMSIAR) R Ugd Bl Tl 2 | SR
98 R BN T Slifes WA T @ Fehel R W WA S @ gRudd B arell fafy W AT
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ATl ATl OR aR<Id H g2 al & | [ 9 JBR B d9ed AR 9 8 UR 1@ SH Bl dd 1ol
X €l SIS Bl B |

GO G

TEIGRAT B AN H RIGAAT DI [AD! IAAM R TAT R W AN H 98T DI g 3 AN,
WRIE B FH AT, AR AT WA B | aeg gEn (RH didedaRl @l g g 9 wnfie © )
H AR R AT g R g R, ST T Be — 39 — B 3MSC (THIMSYHRAT) O UG & MR
R FHH 8, BT o FuiRd fHar a1 2| Suisg YoeR &1 99 8M & A @I 9¥ § o @
it wwTRa fobam wram 7|

&) SRy e

T 375 AT & A1 B T AT & AR, Bl I g U R AR Bl AR TRBR gRT FeiRa
IRIed @ IMUR W Hdg HHANI @ ol dad AR T8 99 W ITUET S Il © AR SH T 38 A
B U fHAT STAT B | I8 HFT 51 BHATRAT DI Dls 3T HaAGedd o™ QT B & oI R &
g, o2 9fdwr ¥ gl ke 9 vAsisdl g1 a8+ fhar SR |

() afafy 7

gaiafey Hal § <1 &1 g4 @y & Ry fqaxont # 4 T Tord fqavor qon g enfie Bl 7, o
T UF BT TAd TIHTBROT HRAT | ATHA 8 | ARAT ST A — 8 H U Yd 3fafdy & forg foras
TARRIT 8% &, oA RN BT Seolid PR DI UdT oW & UL SrgAlfad i faavon &
Ugel We # yMrdl WU 9 <ol Y qafafy FfeAi o aReies wRem sruferd © | qenfl, Q4 Tad faaver
JTIER BT ST T AT Sd VAT B+ BT UAD S T IR & ggarq |l I S W ATL el
DI ST Fhell, T9 IRATI Rl AE § Yd QS &I JolicHdd dal H U1 gaiae &1 #al & IR d
gﬁﬁﬂ@Téﬁﬂ%Gﬁ?ﬂTqﬁaﬁaﬁﬁl

i) RafET s & a€ @ geTr

% Ay H e RUIféT o@fd & arg RUIfcy s@af 9 G4 o g dioie &1 wift &=ar © | Raiféa
Ay | T =g Aod o RUfT afy & gewarg Wy yee+ &1 rgaifed Mi¥ed ahe 9 ugd
gerar o & Qe Hed gRT ofdr wRiferd fderell & srgded | ugel, i gIR1 ured fobam Siren 8
IR S99 Heafad RAIféT m@afdr § orar — SiRar @ orar & iR Ruifé afd & uwarg aameH
@ ®Y H SR fER A S1ar 5| W8 2 IR ¥ G9fRd dI9el R aggedl o & S Ruifér
A H oRAT — ARG AT @7 SIar 7 | RIS orafyy o Wded < e i gRT RUIfeT sm@afy &
U IR I T & Udes $1 srgdifed MRFd dRkg & a8 W1 el i & Feee ded gR
oI e faci faaRon &1 ergHre e & g w6y S § el Raifér s & uwanq
FARIGA 9 &I S dTell el @ ®Y # =R f&ar Srar & iR 991 39 Rufér @y # orar —
SiET 3@l T 2 R 98 ura B 2 | dgwdl o & 99 RUIfET orafyy # oar — Srar off <@
ST & o a8 it U gU 2 IR ST oRkdl — Sl /AT 1T % |

(i) W (=)
e W ol T aREFERT @1 uReEre ug & wU # aiffed far T 8, S8 ugern ofise wal &
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AR WA & A TAT YA ¥4 F F1 SIRGAT Bl oIl © | YRS Ug & YIdr &l Ug &l el
® IUGFT MMUR R AN AR FI oGl § F & $Y § A=4cl & T & | JAMY, IRA Gich AH
17 R R A 8 s o7 &I Alhar &1 e 87 w_all & e I A JarRwIfa A
# guR o B forw M fbar g

(xiv) SmeIfiIa R
IR IR BT RUIfST IR R O RUfeT a7 & Ieea | I AR BT IRgd d3eT a2

gREURTIT TAT TR & HR MMYUR B S 3 dTel IR AR & MR W IAT g BT SRIATA
PRD UraeT fhar Sidr 2 |

MR HR IRAURTAT DI THT Bl ART SRATY 3faRT & forv, SHHTA 7 B Y B S AR oI
P SWIATl 1 @ R B BT BT T of ST & {0 uga™ @) TR 8 | SRAAIT o) &) 99 |va
T db UBdE &I T § STel ddb BR ART A, Deldl HR- AT IRATR FRf & Age SUAE] B
IR ST = Bl T BN STHT MR- BT 3T 9ol 3R SWHI 7 B T HY o H T AT BT gTaTed
foar ST |67 | JRAATT B IRFURRIT / <aareil & 99 RAfd & ygard A8) &1 Ol § Jfe 9 HHw:
<l / UREURTIT & TR UgaE W S 81 3R ofFed @ 8T WX J of@l ot /81 31erar X
I A /I BT gaTfad 9 & | IRIRTT ax aRFulial @ iy fdr & vl RuiféT aig )
e @) ST 2 3R 9e) 99 T dh Beldl B Sidl @ T8l do b a8 ofw ) 3rafY T §Wd 7 g,
i AT B AFT A DI GlaeT | fqa] T IRARTT R IRFURTT BT SHIHA dR & folg
Suere R | TgaE A @ T RAfIa ) uRHuRiE! &1 g RAfET aiig R g7 Jedia faan
ST 8 SR Sd! F9d AT dd Ugd™ &1 Sl § Silfds 9Tl d) AT o # SRIffid . uReufrat
D gl B DI IAFA TaT BT |

IR BR URFURTAT IR IIATAT BT I PR &I TR 3MHeA [BAT ST 2 Sl 39 a9 § AN PR b
forg eufera 21, ST uREURE!l agel &1 Sl © 31aT <Ial & R aRRg R ST &3t srerar
Teggend ARAHT HRA TR I PR &R @R BR ) & AR TR <Al BT FUSH fHIT S ¢ |

AT 3fAT B & d18R Ugd Bl Al Ha&l & Fae H ARANTT R DI AW 31Adl 8 & R (3
e M H 1ar sfdac! H) Uga P Sl § | SMRAMTT &R Hal df 3NRARS # 3rerar A 8 gfaady
H oFed A D GeY H g B Sl |

IR BR URFURTIT FoAT RN PR SIARI AHHT Bl © Al dTef DR IATRI B AGQ ATe], PR
URFURTIT DI IR DR TAT FGY PR Y AT I Haferd RAMT BR AR AT BRI AR
RId B B oIy BT w9 | AN AIHR A9E B |

(v) TREFRRET @ afy

ARG /qred dhl & AR W (B afd BT Fabd Aol W URFHATAl Bl U<l g JIRRAT B
JoTTUH B RS AR TR FHIET DI Sl © | BT S AMT ST & S8l URARdl o orda [
IS g R A 3AfAE B | agerig IR uREwdaal @) fad Al qeg ¢k vEed e |
3fe BIRM | Trae™ Hod BT 3fidhal dRd 8Y, A = =T oAl UR MR 3NTel U™ g9l & A1
gegull IR e 9 AU U FAHdl HaTE & MR W TET JeI' Pl 3T T |

afd & qrg, IRTFIAT B AY (@l R gRenferd urdy i W Jeagr / aRenes ue fhar 1 2
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(i) i aREudfoat o afy / srer iR dfewr o @ fore wraem
AR AT & Hee H 5% DI &% A UGe= b Sdr & Sl fb Jeiua & aRig &l O 9 3Afde
ayf & fog g 2|

(vi) ¥fY IRR SUSH

ol TS URT IRR HY A & IR JHMET SAACT AR 1 ARG AT H&T | AHIST IR IR
BT TIIfAT B dTell 31af & forv Aot 1SRy 1erar 91 &l W &_db M aTell I S 0T &Y
ST 2

fegfce IuTei Uit AR & F9Ifad Safac! TR (A1STH) & FAR™INH U9 & g IO &) STl
2 fS T 98 IR B & R 3ifom =axor R safadt IRRY # uRafia feun SR | srfeey /=rer &
Ay YIS WR 984 6 T A1 ¥ RIS AT SR | FHRITST STferRIY /97¢ 1 AR A=
I AT # AWIfad afdc! AR Bl SSHR 1 arell T A fawrira fvar iar &

(evili) SITEETT SR ST

9 AT fBar Sar & 99 5 e & i fUsell geerell & URumRa®y 9o aTeddm Bl 8 SiR
Ieqa=-1 ST SR ST |Wahdll © | SIETafe WG Bl Bekil Bl g &% Bl TR D U]
SR IR I IdF Hedl & AR B ol SIRAM | fcUTafes Jaem«l bl 8¢ & &l SiRexd T8l & |
TGl B JIT TF D YAD ARG DI FHIETT DI SR © 3R D! <M Yae AFAFI DI TAUH &
o ARG BT ST & | AR arearel & g H wraari bl Giord R &I W Siesd Bl & |
TJorifY, e & ur Raifé orafd # @1 srfard areaar =) 2

AMHRADG IS BT 7Td TSR F ST~ B dTefl G Iregdiell & IR § Yheldror Har Sar &
IR IDT HISEI BT AT & PRI § QI dRE § T AT aTell W1l gt @ "ied Jfdr gied |
M W B g & SRiAf

(xix) TTHE AR THE THGH AR

THd] UaTE fAdRT & ST W Adhal 3R ThS] AHGET X H 6 H I8 Il Thel qUAT BT Tha]
3R arcurafdy faer der 3 A1 a1 399 & aI 3rafy § uRuda g arell {dt Adhal IS & | AHdT Jarg
fIaRoT BT IITET UG BT FRATA BRI Y TAR fHAT AT 2 |

21 WEAAYUl aEied IR, HEed SR gatgaE

ST & I fAaR0 BT TIR R gY T4GT ¥ Ig AUET Bl SR & b I o1, 9, URAURT oIl
QAR TAT et FeheThrvl AR I faaRoll &) IR R ATHRAD ST BT ThSIBRUT BRI Dl
ReIfey &1 gofaa &= arell Rerferal o1 Ao, gresar &R qaiga &1 Jdq ®u ¥ Jeidhd B AR
IT JEET B IV AT I Al W IMTRT B R 9l "eAmRl @1 e wfte Bkt € SIfe
aRReIfEl & otefie Iferd A SRl & | $9aT Yaiga™ IR Wie AMREd 8M & BRI w1dT i
H gTfad <Al Jrar YREURMEN &1 RO IR™N § Aeclayel FHRIGH B+ & oy sfuferd uiRkv
T 9T 81T 2 |
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Iy WU 3, UM T SF &l Bl USAM B © S8l AscqdyUl AT, Urerer AR gargH AUl
21 37 ISP &5 W Hafdd AN @ G iR 9 A= orar fifcral R 59 gaR a9 STerd € 39!
ygfd @1 g T fo<ig faaron & Gefdd fewfray § o affiag fear = 81 weas & uRad=i &r
TR ®T A @l — Sikar A7 a1 737 2 |

ol
HUAT DI T AT B AN FRd g T A fF=ferRad sifafaoty Ry € Sife faxfa faazon # ggam=
@ T AR B yHIfad A B oy rcdd weedayef # |

T RHARATY

JTHRHAD I DU b [dg ITaT B TAT BN, SHaR, YA Ugd qAT 3 @i I Fafed Hrd
AT B AW BRI A H I B Fhdl © | WMIdd ®Y I ATHRABATA DI ddel Tl X
AT SITQT, 79 Ueh AT U W A AHREd Il TeARl Seq Bl AT IU T Bl | IMBRABATAT Dbl
AIS[ET TAT [T JHET & Hedid | 9Tdl gemsi & YRUH ¥ Haferd Ueel & SKHTel BT a
Hecqayel arfefet e enfiet 2 |

Wiee 3R garga

RuIfiéT aRg R IRad urse & 91l 9 o9 J3 Sl | Haid &9 qaigd &l A afora
o a1 &, SIfd orTet foxig av & ok aR¥ufrl iR <garet &l IR &1 o of M & foy Fwge
T AARIIS & SR I~ Aedayul SIIRgH IUAES BRI 8 | HUN 9 IHD YATgAM IR SETRT Bl
2 3R SUdY YR & JAER UR ATEel bRl & o FAHfbd [N fdaror dR fbd S 2 | oy,
a1 famr ufshareii @& ax # g gRRfOE! ok @A & &Rer Hu & a0 9 R g9 arell
IRRRIRIT J1eraT IR # daeld A & BRI U8 TR 8 Tl & | U TRl &l 9@ gfed 8
R gafgAE # <l W R

@) IR faxfra aREufmEl ot srerbar

HUA gD RUIET IR R g JeAid Rl 2, I8 59 T2 &l I8 Ahd 8l (b IRAURTT Ah
B FHhdl 2 | AT DS Fobd Fel ST & frar o9 Ui aR|URAl & forg arfiies Srerhal UXIeroT R
SR Bl SITAT ©, d9 Hu URFURTE & g IR1 B AN o el 2 | IRFuRiE @ axger
1T gREuRMl | 31fdd &1 Sl © 1T Al S g &1 IR oI S9! HuSH anTd iR Ida Jaferd
oI ¥ HH B T & | SHBT gUss gReufral & forg ferikor far simar @ o9 9@ & aReufdt 9ad
JaTe IR IO 1 PR < ; S b aRAURRT & a1 AT = yREUREN | g8 U9+ R [ TRE
s B | SRt gReufrat srerar 1 Sft g a1 srifya ¥ et ajgeig IR | 1Y &1 ol ®
I8t aR¥uREl &1 3reh AT ST ¥ QIR S I@] age iy I # Red Sre+ fhar e ¥

Al Hed BT Hedidh BRd FHY, JFATT |1l Thal Hars MR H HR Yd Bkl &% BT KA Db
IAD I Hod B JJAR berdl B Sl o, o aREuRil & forg [fdse SR qer il & a9
e & IR dTe] IR i Hfshar # wfafdffad fvar war 2| Foed &1 &9 anra, Sfd g
BT R B FHY A GIOIR Gl BT @Sl G STl & | IfE U ) ofael &1 ugem
B BT ST © AT SUYTH Hedd Arsd Bl SRATA (AT Sl & | 9 TR H UMD Hedd, 37
QU I Hed B b Pl AT AGGIh wU ¥ AR PR dlell Aed Ul & o Iggd
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¥RR Hedl ®I efier foar ar 2 |

(@) faxfra SRl &1 Sfaa o sfiwem

T4 g U= H Raple @1 T foxig aReufrdl den -l <aamil &1 |fhd 9ok 4 Ig9d Jedl &
TR R AU &1 ST Feball, qd SIA13TsYe Afed Aled Hedd UAfEl &1 SRAd B I IiId Jed
BT 3fbe BT Sl © | 371 Aledl g7Yc Bl ATAB-1g qIaiR I F9G 8IF UR [T ST 8, IR, I8l
IE Il T8l 2 g I oI B RAMUT dR H WR AR sruferd g 7 | iy # gege
&1 gfawet o forfaafesdy o1 Sikaw, s/ SiRaw &fik siRerrar enfier €1 371 deaf & IR # gatgae 3
g dTel gRacHl 9 foxiia Suaxt & Rare fa 1y Sfud gou W= wwra g |

(M fo=ha aRafRel @) srerher

i aReufral & oy srerhar araem 9@ & SiRead &R g 81 @ &=F & IR # gaigae w®
SMETRT B & | B SRHAT TUFT A AT TS BT T4 H AR 37 Yaiga= & IR # ol
BT TWHTT BT & ol b dul & e sfaer, adue aoiR &) Rerfoal dom uye Ruifér smafy
@ I UR UTEged &1 STdalid dHel U= ITemRa Bl €|

feuoft Ho 3 — WUy, T iR SUTPR

3 drar |
TGN 3R IIRGR
JIHYOT

GG

01 3Nt 2016 FY Ry S orgare | 198585 14736 | 55415 701 194508 | 316980 | 7.809.25
e 7.71 32402| 342016| 375188
e 020 020
31 7 2017 ¥ Rufy & argaR | 1.985.85 14736 | 561.86 7.01 2,26890 | 6,589.95 | 11,560.93
A 126.43 3.09 1,443.69 48057 | 205380
S 127 9.17 130.11 140,55
31 71 2018 B RUfY & orge | 198585 273.79| 563.68 7.01 3,703.42 | 6,940.42 | 13,474.17
TeEE 909.94 112.71 39175 535 128379 |  292105| 562459
01 aiet 2016 3 Ry @ 5262 7.05 4615 0.54 21621 82927 | 115185
IR

ot & Ry HeuEN TR 15114 | 15114
Ayger 0.11 0.11
31 71 2017 & RofY B orgwr | 96256 119.76 |  437.90 5.89 1,499.89 | 390146 | 6,927.47
¥ B oy Jeuer™ IR 50.06 8237 3430 037 47393 30036 | 94141
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JIRhaT BT
e 1.21 8.79 126.19 136.19
31 Il'ﬁi 2018 ¥ RAfY a} ITER 1,012.63 202.13 470.99 6.26 1,965.03 4,075.63 | 7,732.68
faet 98 7@
31 91 2018 &1 Reafy & 3R 973.23 71.65 92.69 0.75 1,738.38 2,864.78 5,741.47
31 919 2017 @7 Rafy & IR 1,023.29 27.60 123.96 112 769.01 2,688.49 4633.46
feaofy Ho 4 — Iver yREURREIT
3 omEr |
TfreaaR T
ART
01 3 2016 &I R & IgAR 287.93 287.93
el 3,776.41 3,776.41
Hge™
31 @rd 2017 @1 Reafdy & srgar 4,064.34 4,064.34
et 367445 3,674.45
fge™ -
31 9T 2018 ¥ R & R 7,738.80 7,738.80
EIRHIEET
01 318ie 2016 B R & AR 230.45 230.45
a9 & forg gRees g9 519.67 519.67
SRTTHAT BT 215.65 21565
ge™ -
31 91 2017 3 RIfd & sgER 965.77 965.77
99 & forg gRene™ R 3,079.34 3,079.34
ITIRBT B -




fge™
31 919 2018 &1 Rfd & AR 4,045.12 4,045.12
IRESIEEIK; )
31 A 2018 B Reafd & srgaR 3,693.68 3,693.68
31 ¥ 2017 B Reafd & rgaR 3,098.57 3,098.57
fewofy Ho 5 — RO
3 o ¥
faraRor AR =1
31 91 2018 &7 | 31 |G 2017 &I
fufy @ sgar | Rufl & sgaR
wfergfar o
smfefar g eresT | T 686.16 61835
IRT 686.16 618.35

fewoft: AR =re] gferfar ST 10.85% HfT @ &1 B Yd Bkl &R B KA dRD I9d IdAT g D

AR PR B T 7 |
feweft Ho 6 — a7 faxfra aReafiy

3 o H
faa=or R T,
31 99 2018 @Y | 31 H/A 2017 @
Rafa & sIgar | Rufd & sIgaR
|rafe S
At ST B aRIHAT R 3rafd 12 718 I 3ifdd B e 291.60 291.60
A T W Wd e
ST &It 31.02 28.75
322.62 320.35

*Jb TRE) & A ded AT ST




fewoft Ho 7 — SR
31 | 2018 3MR 31 HIE 2017 Pl WHG aY o oY MABR A B JA Hoesd FAEIAR &

P. A SR TN B faaRor

3 drar A
€. | () o 3R B ST
31 9 2018 31 9 2017

ATe] JIBR TR 2,26801 3,410.69
U4 qY & T ATPR B Fae H ARG 54.51 307.91
eI o
IR IR & Ufdret 3R a1 & Fay # (361.69) 54235
M SR BN & fdaror § gia o W max Y 1,960.83 4,260.95

(i) | (SNATIATE) 37T ATUD I JFART

IR R

Y & SR ATAIRTS H Yga™ &l T 7]l & R A

fAf¥ad & ST &1 Y: bl R & Gag H

aa g1/ (ar4)

AfeE # yIRT MR

(@) 31 91 2017 SR 31 7 2018 P TG faxig 9F & foQ WRT B R TR R & §RT [T XD

M ATl AT AN IR g H7 A

3 arEr A
31 94 2018 31 14 2017

Iaq uRarel ot ¥ U B A USel kgl oy 5,065.10 10,701.99

§% 8 TV gReTed | B o U8 o /I

IMIHR A gl o=l T 5,065.10 10,701.99

34.608% TR WIRT &I AARNE MABR &% (31 AT 2017: 34.608%) 1,752.95 3,703.74
54.51 307.91

gd qul Pl ITe] AR & Haegl H FHARI

64 |



IR Y YT BN AJaH
I gT
PR I § Pl A B A arel 2> 153.39 249.30
37.34% BT TATNT AP TR WX (31 AA 2017: 39.81%) 1,960.85 4,260.95
A 3fR B faaRer § e fd T e 1,960.83 4,260.95
@ 4¢ fdhy 7Y gRETed | W IR
1,960.83 4,260.95
WELINGE
freafofaa @ Hefta smeifia &= 3 o ¥
LGRIE g SR o T fJavor
31 A= NAE | AP | 3 A=
2018 2017 2018 2017
v Seawdl ¥ gfy frar T e (32490)|  (679.22)|  (354.32) 547.20
e o & fore g 104.32 104.95 0.63 (11.00)
HHAIRAT & il & folq oraens 15.85
TRARY ST T A g (aReufR) 74.96 66.96 (8.00) (9.70)
AT o} =T/ (311) (361.69) 54235
e smeerfia &= dulkri/ (Qaam) (145.62)| (507.31)
FreTgaR geeas | gt 4
3 o #
faaxor 31 91 2018 | 31 AE 2017
R R gRURTE! (A aiRerer) 179.28 17191
IMIATT R <IAR (FAad alRare ) 324.90 679.22
I w) uREuREt (@Far), Faa (145.62) (507.31)
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feqoft & 8 — 3y R arq] uRRwufrdt

T o §
fawor 31 91 2018 &1 | 31 9/ 2017 &)
ffd & sqEr | Rt & ogEr
IR olive g 711.25 784.27
gfimrRI Bl 1R 1,828.74 1,498.43
2,539.99 2,282.70
feavft 9. 9 — UR ikt
T o i
- 31 9/ 2018 &1 | 31 A/ 2017 &Y
Rerfy & srgar | Rt & srgarR
smforad |, R 3aT A= T 28,835.15 28,130.13
smwferd, foe wfever wwem Tan 301.43 303.28
TSR Afee ol & foIu uraem=+ (301.43) (303.28)
T 28,835.15 28,130.13

* Hfewe ol & foy raem AR Wil W SmeRa & S g U3 @ dRIg Bl 3 9Y I S1&T B

afy & fore gorm 2

feuefy Ho 10 — AHAT 9 THA! THRH

3 o H

faavor 91, HaRrt

31 919 2018 & | 31 HIE 2017 D

Rt & sgur | Rufd & sgER
(@) 9ad §®
QT # 9y 13,294.98 20,470.02
(@) o=
SDEARECISI) 0.07 0.40
ART 13,295.05 20,470.42




feudf 9w 11 — 39 9% 9y IRET

3 o #
faawor aTe], afrt
31 919 2018 @Y | 31 A/ 2017 FI
Rt & ogar | Rl & srgaR
NICIERSEI 139,978.35 119,260.15
9% RS & oIy dud G 72 Aty o 1,749.18 1,112.31
T 141,727.53 120,372.46
*ET ST @10 BT S A9 0T e 2
feqoft Ho 12 — =Te] FX uRwURwET
3 orar |
faaRor =1, Hafr
31 HTE 2018 BT | 31 A/ 2017 &
fRufd & sgur | Rafa & suR
A S/ W WGy &
lgd &Sl 3,923.41 4201.14
AT 3,923.41 4,201.14
feqult Ho 13 — =g =X uR¥uRMET (Raa)
3 o H
favor 31 91 2018 @ | 31 HIA 2017 &
Ruft & sgar | Rufd & sgER
ge< IR (Fael vraer) 11,164.64 6,036.78
AT 11,164.64 6,036.78
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feaoft Ho 14 — o= =1 UR™UR™T

3 drar #
faa=or 31 AE 2018 9 | 31 AIE 2017 P
fuft & oqEr | Ruft & agaR
FHARGT BT A
ufad, o arer JHs 11 31.19 22.84
AT 31.19 22.84
I fim
Jufergd, RS2 sreaT JHsm T
gicfeRl &1 31 8,205.39 9,954.90
A IRMT WR STAST 3R 31 19,271.52 16,878.25
g ued I 318.98 207.69
AT H* 120.04 120.06
27,915.93 27,160.90
g ART 27,947.12 27,183.74
* I PR BT IRT
3 wrEr A
faavor 31 W1 2018 1 | 31 A 2017
Ruft & sgur | Rufd & IgaR
faeh! IR/ TG SIAIUSI(1996—97 | 2013—14) 117.70 117.70
PR |IAGT 2000—2001 TR WA 234 234
ART 120.04 120.04

31 #T, 2018 BT FHG 9¥ & forg A< fdarol &1 Aedayul die Ao iR fewfort




feaoft w15 — sfaadt IR ol

3 o |

faa=or 31 919 2018, @ | 31 WG, 2017

Wt 3 argar | Rafd & srgar
Wt ¥R Yoi
100 / —%0 Y% & Sfdac! AR 200,000 (Qd 9 200.00 200.00
200,000)
fTfiE, sriee ofR Yolfaan uea IR
100 /— 0 YJP & 3fdae! IR 200.00 200.00
200,000 (39 ¥ 200,000)

200.00 200.00

$) IAERDI B G :

AERD & T qay

31 99, 2018 I ReIfd & | 31 A, 2017 9 Reifa

IR B AR
aiRa sfeadY | e (%) iR i (%)
IR B gfead)
= IR P
qeE

ARIMQE®, TARTSH! & A | 9Rd & U IRRIREB

199,995.00 100.00 | 199,995.00 100.00

s v QN Rig SIS 1.00 0.00 1.00 0.00
o o Rig e SlaNEIN D 1.00 0.00 1.00 0.00
<. e HAR SRYRS 1.00 0.00 1.00 0.00
s fqup === SRRYRS 1.00 0.00 1.00 0.00
s IR T Ay SRR 1.00 0.00 1.00 0.00

T 200,000.00 100.00 | 200,000.00 100.00

¥ R WRBR BT 3R I o1Rkd
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(@) RafdT ad & o iRk T W 11 Jow TR 31 fAam:

3 o §
faaror 31 A1 2018 9 Reafa | 31 /|l 2017 &Y
P AR Rt & argar
=T Ralep] =T R3]

IV & YH H IH1AT IWR

200,000.00 200.00

200,000.00 | 200.00

SISIEECE R NG BN N G D

¥ P JAT R IH1AT IR”R

200,000.00 200.00

200,000.00 | 200.00

M) sl MR § F g0 IR, T0gar iR ufdrey

HUA D U TH SO0 B Sfdae] AR 2 NTAHT F9ded o 100,/ —H0 Ui WR & | 3faac] WRI & 9D

NG Ufd RN T Td < BT I 2 |

feuehy Gw=r 16 — 3=y sfaad

3 o #
faaxor Iy
gfeeRa Sursi=
1 30t 2016 B Ry & AR 54,137.10
qY 2016—2017 & forU o 6,441.04
31 51 2017 @1 RIfd & IgAR 60,578.14
Y 2017—2018 & forg 4 3,104.27
31 979 2018 @1 RIfa & AR 63,682.41

fewlt " 17 — 9 faci <gag

3 o #
fa=or IR—are

31 Ad 2018 @ | 31 AIE 2017 P

o Rafd & ogar | Rufd @ sgar
<7 gfenfa s 40.45 51.46
AT 40.45 51.46




feuefy G 18 — @R wftgar

3 drar #
P 31 W/ 2018 B | 31 AIE 2017 &I
Ruft & sgar | RuIfd & sIgaR
e 3R oY SEIHl D BRI - -
GeH AR oY ISIHT B 37T 46,784.32 47,782.97
ART 46,784.32 47,782.97
feult "eEr 19 — o fRfg <gard
3 @ H
e e
31 91 2018 B | 31 A 2017 &I
fRufd & sIgar | Rufd @ sIgaR
@ ¥ SRR 407.68 376.89
2 T ST TR 92136 1,396.41
> HEEAR AT 147.57 312.16
oy 9.87 103.36
yfeerRoT < (Frsres §o TR 24237 296.18
AT 1,728.85 2,485.00
Hfewofy A= 58 < |
feuoft W@ 20 — 37 = TR
3 draEr #
faawor 31 919 2018 &1 | 31 1A 2017 &t
fufd @ sIgar | Rl @ sIgaR
qiffe <7 i ok w3 1,992.35 1,615.74
qrEdl Iy e IRy 115,804.50 101,363.31
qTEhl A T SJar AERI] 9.225.79 2,689.64
frrfaa amfoe e 198.00
T 127,220.64 105,668.69
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feuofy e 21 — Ay

T o §
faavor T,
31 919 2018 D1 | 31 |G 2017 B
fuft & sqar | Ruft & ogER
Y Y T Iag= 7452 7452
T 74,52 74.52
feuolt = 22 — g 9 o
3 omEr |
A 31 9, 2018 BT 31 9, 2017 &I
AT 99 qhTT 9§
IRETAT | WIS oG
AR &G ATt &) fash! 3847645 51419.03
I 3 87.352.48 72.650.39
T (@) 12582893 124,069.42
PRI ORI 7.43 71.64
T (@) 7.43 71.64
IR | AT HA o (B)+(@) 125,836.36 124,141.06
fewft Hem 23 — 37 I
3 o §
P 31 9, 2018 BT 31 A, 2017 @I
LI ACL] LI ACL]
2T ) A 8,285.60 8,827.96
o A% qi¥eEre oy 250.56 192.76
HC —
31T AERIal YRASHRN TR ol (TIHTT & 3TelrdT) 428.48 408.72
AT RATSHIR TR TS (SETH HERId) 349.23 90.38
qﬁqﬁ%{ STET Q‘r@p}h’ TN BT é:ﬂ' 47.28 4472
facia aRGudeal &1 ggara 9 89 TR oY 0.63
7.806.36 8,566.34




feuely =T 24 — ARG wWiE P @hE

3 o H
P 31 ATE, 2018 P 31 AE, 2017 B
A q§ A a9
TGRS —
] 34,239.03 41,499.00
AR 2,644.47 7,170.21
R aER=T HT BaTd 2,687.53 -
39,571.03 48,669.21
feaqoly W@ 25 — THEARY & fRal Gl =
3 o #
P 31 9T, 2018 BT | 31 AMG, 2017 BY
A 9 A I
Jaq g uicared 794.41 959.70
% BTl 34.43 34.14
828.84 993.84
feudh H@& 26 — o9 @™
3 o #
P 31 ¥, 2018 & | 31 A, 2017 Bl
T Y A 4
fasmua =g 18.90
T WRIET Yob 722 754
9% TR 13.14 3.33
q&id I 10.05 24.45
Headr (R uRadg ) 2223 -
BB AR BRI I 68.22 126.86
ST HER 4356 43,00
FATET @R 479 7.19
frfa amfoe e e 198.00 -
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SIofl ¥e & fory Siota 469 1.39
Hfewy =gy - 31.80
fasTell 3R STl IR 613.92 52167
faael a1 # iR 038 055
AT UMR - 419
€ FaRAT 4 ABIs TAR 291.05 173.56
e olive J9R 7.24 25.60
HTARD RIT—Uel Yoeh 0.60 075
NEAGIIGECIECAE I EIN 1.01 1.18
fafay <0 1417 3223
FTITT T 1,289.18 965.12
Frater farar 258557 255818
ST 9 of@ ATl 9.22 14.65
ARG g WHARRRT TR 23456 242,00
SIivg & forg fah=mn 045 -
T &R a1 IR 427 427
AT IERYM 385.88 387.63
gRT 6 (3) fTHTEeh & 19 a1 &= 97.94 259.23
/AT TR AR R (IR gRadH ) 12477 390.97
SR WTST TR 328.60 308.79
A T 52.31 62.16
AT A (W) faqer 9.07 3123
pie I RE(EENED! 0.34 0.21
I Y (ICTH) 339.07 231.68
e — Ugrd 145 1.48
qrg- I NERYIq 042 0.31
W 9RA R IR > 293.01 -
BT B IUPR Y 320.73 -

7,377.05 6,482.05
fewoft Her 60 < |

faSTell, 3R STd U9R TT I[8 FaReAT dAT FhIs URI & oy oY & orefiF sfibel &1 fadt ufigfd & qrg
SeITaT TR 7 |
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feuoft ST 27 — YRAF IR BT SUSH

T orEr |
8 31 94, 2018 B | 31 HE, 2017 P
Rt lGL e af

Tf IR SUSH
i) SRRYRGT BT YIIfAd BT aTelT A2y 3,104.27 6,441.05
SfFad) IRRT &1 9IRa sivag = 2.00 2.00
qd [T Ui IR 1,552.14 3,220.52
HY SUS afd IR 1,552.14 3,220.52
3ifha qoa Tl R 100 100
feaoft W@ 28 — Sfaa geg w9
() =oft 3§ faxfig Sua=or

T o i
faa=or 31 ¥4 2018 31 94 2017

Trdddiva | o | twdiddiver | wRefda
ARTT ARTT

f=ia ofReufRrf
IR YTt Ty T 28,835.15 28,130.13
Thel 3R ThdT gHPE IFRT 13,295.05 20,470.42
3 & Iy T 141,727.53 120,372.46
TG &7l (‘c”qu 3,923.41 4,201.14
sfergfer ST 686.16 618.35
RICICRSEI 291.60 291.60
gred ATSIER A1) 31.02 28.75
g fa<fra ekt -| 188,789.92 -| 174,112.85
forig <gdrd
YR < et 46,784.32 47,782.97
= fa<ia <Saard (=mq)) 1,728.85 2,485.00
3 faxiig <garl (IR =re) 4045 51.46
gl o< <gard -| 48553.62 -| 5031943

| 75



(i) Sfa o N HHIG

| i |l e forg I o &1 ugard o T § 1UdT IAHI THIDHRIT [haT TIT 8 D!
ST Iod & HHIGT & HIaR atipd fhar a7 § 5 qet fieax SfRId Joa A1 & 1 aR Jgdayf
1 WR W 9T fhar = ©

TR—1: AgRY URFURE!  3ferar <aarsi & forg Afhy IRl ¥ Jod Seyd (SrHmNom) |

TR—2: eI Afaferdt fordess forg S Jou #1991 & IR Adayul J41d 9+ arel 71 &R & g77Yc
BT T AT IV ®Y I IE@T TIAT § |

TR—3: Feg ARl e oy S Je AT & iR JgdyYl U¥1d @+ dTel 71 &R @ $9Ye
JTATHTT FIOIR STl TR TR T ¢ |

fFr=feriad Aol 4, RS aH ST 4o &1 A o ST &, S9h] BIedhR hUAl b IRAURRT AR
SIATIRI B IT Hed AT BT HHIGAT BT TEGH AT TAT B |

gREufRy iR garet RFer 59 IREF dRd W) sdae fbar ar 8, e fow 31 4/l 2018 A
Rfy & guR Sfua qeai & sufar T )

3 o H
S oI AMIT BT SR TS

@ & | AT SLC) HE<Tagut LESCE]

GINCS Afhd Yeu | A g | a9 A
S 9Tl Y
(&) (&=-2) (&1-3)
i aR<afmi

& T aRAfRY S 31-03-18| 531.22 53122

39 af & SR WR 1 3R WR 2 & §19 IS RAEAR0T 81 fhar 11 g
IREURY 3R garsi e S9 TReEF dRd R had fear T 8, s fog 31 919 2018 &) Refar

@ AR SR el at iar T ?
3 o A
ST qou w9 BT TRAIA TRD
T A AT IYd |fbd | HeTAQel | HEWaqul JEdred |
TRE qd Jadrdg | fH) o arel $ge
(w—1) (®R-2) (\R-3)
i aRR<afr
& T gRRIRY o 31-03-17 | 423.46 423.46
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39 AT B SR WR 1 IR WR 2 & 919 BIS AR 81 fhar T 2|

el IR Thal THGET IR, AR wiftadi |, Ay IR, 3 Wikl rcurdfsl SUR, TR <7 1171
qAqT 31y Are] fa<i <aamll @ foy yege I8 MuRe &_ar § & 59 GeAl @ eaafd uRudedr &
BRUT gg UATH TR IIRT of SI1g A1 IR 6T S5 I Hed H AFAT AT Sl @ |

HUAl DI STEART TS ART AT ST & AT Hed T MR Bkl &R BT FRATA BID Beldl
T AHEl yarg (SRAU®) S B A dxa MR fear S 2 i Ruifér s & sid 3 iR
P YR T Pl AT AT & | 58 90 el iee AReH &1 i RS delld = {6 S arel
ST9C Bl 7 e & HRUT ST oI BT HAIGA § WR 3 & Iad i & w0 H i f6ar 77 7 |

29. fo=ia SRew yeem Sew ik ~Nifowit

HUN D I R <Al H AR I AREN, U ST, S ST IR T H3ar) & qgdrd
e 8| dUAl @ qot fa<i aRewafral § emor wftadr, gfosfar S, aafy s, S99 alkere |
A B o W arell Adhar iR do Uy [t Wit 2|

HI IOTR SRgH, Bfee SIRgq g forfaafed! SiRaw & IR & 9ardl © | HUT BT JeeaT 3 SIRdgal
% JdYT BT BT @Al & | U b IRNS T BT QS Fsd §RT FERIAT UG Pl STl 8 Sl hu+T
% forg faxia SiRgw dor Sug faxia SIReH o @l 999 & 99 H 98 od 8 | IS dul
@ Y& DI I8 AT <l & b HU @ [ORIT SIRIA | AT AR o Sugeh =il o
gl & gRT R fHar Srar € iR foxia SiRkawi &1 Su=it &1 ifodl den SIikeq Seedl & o aR
UgAE &1 Sl 8, SPT el a2 Use= fhar Srdr € | Jeud < |erg | U v 39 yde SiRkadt
BT YT B B forg AT B THeT HRar 8 3R SR FEAfd Wa™ HRarl B |

1. 9IOIR SfRew

ISR SIIRgA 98 SiRgd 8T & o faxiig |mesl & vfds 4 89 a1l 964l vare & Sfa qeai
IR el 9 8 drel YRadHl & HROT gig 81 ST | II6iR SIRgd | 9 J6R & Sigd & : 5ol
R SIIRgH, a1 SReW 3R o o SIgd WA 8 8 | IR SiRgd 3 goriae i |mesi o
AIaf ST efie B B

(@) =TT <R SifRew

TS SR SIRGH I8 SIRaA Brar & forad fa<ia el & 9fasy # 89 arel A< varg srerar 3fud geat
# IR & @ <=0 H gRads 89 Tl gRadHl & BRI gig 81 SRR | Ul S @ urd @ T
AER AT § U b [T 9 = ®Y A RO qoiR @ &l &)1 | 89 drel aRadel & SiIRkgH
@ IR H FARd 8| DU DI Fraf ST DI T R R o ST ST B | A &S SR SRgH WR R
FRA gY, O & MR o A @ 107 § gRIYT fhar a2 fF 7 % omy of S arelt uf¥y
@ HRUT AR T & 9 AHQ TAE B HROT GOR B ATl &30 H gRadd 89 & Hoawd gfg Brl |

(@) fa<eh gar A HagTelierar
et go1 ®1 SIRaA a8 SRgA B 7 R & wfasy # g arell ol yarg & Sfua g H afa
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1 4 uRads M & dRUT gig 81l | faqel ga1 SIRew Hag-eiadr &l aide uReuRml qur sl
& Sfd el # FR < BN ¥ Ugel R B WM W FU & oM TR UM gedT 2| HuAl faeeh
e Bl € |

Il fe TRkaw

sfse NiRgT g8 WiRgq giar € forad ufa ardt faxia gifeat & aror foia | sierar aee dfder
@ A IHD! qreIaRl @ gfd T8 H | Hu @ facia Tfafafiel 9 (qE wu ¥ AR aifR)
Bfec IRIT & IR & gardh 2|

Jfdmad diee SIRgA H ol U3 & aRg & Reafd & AR A 4ed SaRT O faci™
Rt & dde § garar T 7|

(@) =R ikt
UTeh & DS FIRIH DI HHAT & YT gRT UTeh & hisc IRIH Yead I awied wenfud i,
gl 3R =0T fshansil & TfaR FaRkerd fhar Sdr 2 | UTgd &l ST uredl &1 ATUd Hisc

FHIET & YR R B (BT ST 8 AR AT—eT Hhise AR B §6 Jedih & JTAR
R R SraT © | 9 ITesl &) wifaal o Fafa wu 9 R @1 S 7 |

Iy B FAMET TR BUAT & g eofi—9 # ol Y Rerfd & rarar $d Y 0 & SIRgH & IR A
IS Hewayel Rerfer dioe <&l 2

3ERHAT fARCIYT T = UTED! & oY JId MR WR IJd RUIFET IRIG R GRT fhar Sl & | I8
TorET TfEIRIe STeT OR MR 8l & | RuIféT arg iR sfse SIiRaw & Hdy # 1fdhds Thcidror
fewofi—9 # gar U yFs Aol @ facha aReuRral &1 T Heg &1 ¥ | Hun Uiy @ wu #
DIs R T8 TG 2 | HUN AR D HH U 8 dTell Tiqal & dae 3 SiRkgq Reaferai &1 e

Bl &, Fifh IHD TEDIH & ®Y A R ARGR qAT SHb AATGIl & UTed MM B = |

@) fociy arE &R Bl </

9% & YN WY AIRMT W B dlel fse SIRgH &I S &I AIfd & AR S & HINFTR fI9RT
ERT FaRerd fhar Srar 2| srfeRiy IRMN & fFaer Jdedl a-ed &1 srgAifed afauiféal & s &
fopar S 2|

. frfeafed Sikaw

fofdafedt Siaw ag SIRew BT & e wusl fa<ia Sgdrei & H&fra aregarsii @ gfd o # om
qrell BfSATsAl BT FHAT BN, FThT Thel 1rdr 3=y faxig uReufial & g1 fRuer™ foar orar 2 |
fAfFafSEt @ & Ty Sl @I g2 H9a Ig JHARed BT 8R1 f IHS UM IHS! <Idrel Bl gfd
B B U TIar < B9 @ Rafa # qafa fofdafsd f¥ Sucer € | yee uef3g dadl vas &
JATER WR Tha §U Thal FHbeT RN Gl Hu-l B! forfdafedt & Rerfr & gatgar ufsbar &1 R

BT B | U IR &1 forfaafesdy &1 orar Sirar vt @ R ar uRare &rf qv1 far Smar 2
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Hfeeee Al 9 T PaE ARET 3 SR R $9 1 AR Saarwt # aRugadr &1 ar 9
aRoft 7 far 2

3 o H
AR |39 P9 | 3912 (1959q§| 5au9 ¥ | A9
Hig Hig DH
31 A1 2018
B AT I8
YR yTfedr 46,784.32 46,784.32
3= foRT SarRIER =re) 40.45 40.45
o farirr Srami(ane) 1,728.85 1,728.85
48,553.62 . - - -| 48553.62
31 |1 2017
B AT I8
IR et 47,782.97 47,782.97
3 faxia SARIFR =me)) 51.45 51.45
o= fadra <gariar) 2,484.99 2.484.99
50,319.41 - - - -| 50,319.41

Iv. nfdre Sifaw Rufa

Iz Rty 99 I=1 B8Rl €S9 9ga A1 Afuifcdt Ue S Aiifors el § 8 arell Taferdl srerar
TP AN FaErd o Tl § ol g5 Bl © 1A Sa! i faRman] gkt @, e s
AT ® IRl B GRT B & oy D! &1 3N, MST-fdd 12dar o= Reafcri § 9erd g4
W GG WU FHIAT BT B | 59 Ry # IRy &Rt & gwifad &-e arel e dril & e
H B B BRI EeT & 9 # F6ta  dagefierdr o1 gt ST 2

SRaA &1 o Rerfoal & g9+ & v U= &1 ifadi gon ugfoal # fafdy aewifeorl & wavara
R G digd d7 & forv fafdre antesif Rigia onfier 5y v €| Bfee Siew @ Hdfda g &1
T Rerfodl &1 dergaR PRI ok =aRerd fear S ¢ |

30. ol W&

BT BT Yol HaeT Bl GREAT BTS2 Ig GHARAd PRI © [ qaTdg BRI BRIBH Bl AUET3H DI
Fraffrad &= @ forv Hue & Hiak gt forfdafsd) Suater 811 Ul adiaus 99 g+ dor S9d
Ieedl o gfd HA B goll AedT § g arel uRadsl @) ietell & qoieT dA & foy g
P YAy Fdhe Farg el & fRET BRal 2

S e Rerfadl § g9 drel uRadHl & &I | I@d §U S9! Yoil WAl DI FIRId Bl ©
IR IHH ARSI Bl & | Yol FREAT BT GG B+ AT SHH FARIGH B D fol§ HUAT Ahal
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g T WR SN B & folY, TAREIeS™] DI UThet Yofl, VT 379 JoI Sugad Y. axferd fafafer
DI Y BRI AT IFD WIF R A5 N AU T&TH R B AT YA BT FHARIIG Bl |

31 WTE 2018 BT TG 99 P IR ST, Hifodl rerar ufshar ¥ wis uRacds 8 farar |

3 orar A
faawor 31 914 2018 31 91 2017

SYR IRMET

R YTfer 46,784.32 47,782.97
3=yt 129,064.46 108,279.67
Ter : APl 3R AHel aHee IRR (13,295.05) (20,470.42)
fraa o 162,553.73 135,592.22
Fd S 63,882.41 60,778.15
goll 3R faa ko 226,436.14 196,370.37
U (%) 71.79% 69.05%
31. NMHHF JTaR

T U B ARG & IFAR, HUH gRT FATHIRAT DI UG B Tg AT ASC dRS! & HaH H MMHAAD

<Al W faaR &1 fhar a1 § wifs gRASHRl & d8d g fBd T §49 USRI BT IRET dfd
@ 915 IAI-IHT R Al / YRl & vl & a8 wfd fear 2|

QUG B 3Tl UIGEE | B s FMHAAD <R -rd QI 7Y 4R &

3 orar ¥
faa=or 31 9T, 2018 @1 | 31 ATE, 2017 &
Rufd & sIgar | Rufd & srgar
(5a2) (&)
FU F T, R O S wY F gE 98 TS ¥ 69.72 108.47
TR 1493.32 1359.58
B AAT (ko ey 2010—11) 791 7.91
ARIAR A (iR a9 2012—13) 14.90
IR 1585.85 1475.96
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ii. 2009 ¥ 2016 TH I AW & oIy WaeH YIRT & Hae H 32383.09 T U AR ASHA Yo d
HIY ¥ 65445.02 RI ®UR DI SRACT RT JAMT & HY § IGell Bl Ts & (a4 fCwofl =1 45
<) | O a9 2016—17 & oIy IWYad & AaH H N BIg UATER T8l (AT TAT € (IR BT Uar &1
e)

iii. SIRMST AT — VR & Feegr § Y — e (v aRANHT iR TASIRIRTG IRASH) | 3T W)
2 URR &1 & 9 Y Y JAA ST uar T8l 3 |

32. dOAdEdr

HUAT T ATUIRSD AT DI VG B AT AYfTebaial o Hrer fhd T BRI TAT HY MM IR AR
IRac Ay H g WARN BT A U &R Bl qadGdT &l T | 39 TGl & Wipa ol &
IR WA ff fHar o1 Wt © | A, Bu B AfARe gRASRl & Hdy H W @ T
JeaGEarsll o1 IRT 31 AT 2018 B WA & AR 21.32 oG I (T4 a¥ 17.98 G W) 7 |
s SffaRad, ARMET H | 9 & Fdg H qadgd F=gaR § —

3 omEr |
B T faramor fer

1 IR STET By, YaITaR 9,248.00

2 TS FATSS ATl BT T 12,034.00

3 R1ett 2.0 — foofica Sfear ugal &Rl &1 WaR 7,213.00

4 Al Ipe dg 2,650.00

5 el TR SIeT &g Bl I~ 816.00

6 s S Ui |, IS Ut H o &g 2,480.00
T 34,441.00

33. HU IR, 2013 B T I § A T T T FF @ TR G $ QA I & WRT
5 (viil) @ ITAR T
i ¥l S U SR WA B Hed

i fage) go1 % =g (iId SR W)

T omEr |
faavor 31, HTE 2018 DY TG q§ | 31, AE 2017 B GAT Y
(o) (o)
T (fageh) Nl 31.25
T B 31.23
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i, facel gor ¥ SueH (g sk W) 9 w0 (Y4 99 I w9) B
34. T &P GRS *

3 o H
favor 31, HT/E 2018 P TG | 31, AA 2017 BN GG
T¥ (F) T9 (F7)
X T Yo A BRI Y oIl TETdh Pocb 7.21 6.55
T Y FIT%IE[FC‘T ?ﬂ 1.99 1.74
- 9.12 8.29

* AT Bl A DR BU | $HD STATdT, 342 G ®U (Y9 aY  4.82 oG ®wY ) BT A= aRATST=131
% forg yoE BRI & o A fhar a2 [y 9 &1 e uRkarerell | Sfie fdar s 7|

35. OEiHd AMS B FTAR THIGRU—19 “HHARY o

() wfes Afr § siwrem

Rl @1 ®rs 9fasr [ AT 981 & aifh 3 |14, 1998 @1 YRA WRBR B G B IFAR Hl
& A1 URIGRT ol 9% U UHesdl W HfafFgie W foy U g | vies [ @1 59 waeE gg
FEiRd R & AR IS A8 I 99 F Heldl & T5 8 I WRBR A ANl Rigial & R

TULATT I TS BT FSTT STl ® Fifh FrYul olkaT &l IERWE S9d gRT 3T Srer 7 | g4fery
Rl @ HHaTRAT & 9wy FS S & M & G949 H Blg Idl 6 © |

@) &I

e 3 A, 1998 B HRA WRHR B IR & AR U ADBg & T HHar ufif g =« g,
Gl I R AR B (Fafdd HHant & da ¥ FEiRd =1 & JIJ9R) Fadl gRT 9% A8 S99
Grd H IO B A B /UG B S g T D 9vA S UG fAdg & g Ao far o 2|
¥ UBR, @A &1 G2 Ia9 A /BN Y9 S A6 H B <adr T8l 8§ |

(iii) YT SfeE™

Tfdh 3 AT, 1998 B Ith AR WRBR DI A & IR, A v & Ol HHar) gfafgie w®
2, STy UeH 3ferar™ R @ (Haftd dHarl & a9 | FEiRa )1 & odR) U A8 S9d @
H ¥ gRT 0T/ U_ &1 SR & T SAS ygard S9 A dg 3l 9ol f&ar Siar 8 | 39 YR
USRI ¥ @ I B forg (=il 1 g < el ®

(iv) SueH

Tfdh 3 ATE, 1998 B I ARG WHR DI JRGAT & AR, T g & T HHary ufafgRe
R g, Sl SUAT I I & fog SRl 21 © difds SHT U M8 Al gRT YR - | 984 fdhar
SR |
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36. Gafdd uret & ypSIaxor

i e ot @ g
qrél &1 AW ey
£ HAST HAR 81 EEEEEENEY
ii. IR WAt ¥ A<
3 drar |
9l &1 Am Jafy o oF @ USfa | 31 WG, 2018 | 31 A, 2017
B T I§ | P T ¥
E) wd)
i AT AR A8 | 31—03—2018 & 3T | | UIRSIAS 34.47 397
S () IS (27—12—2016 & .
AT er* 14—02—2017) eIl TR K T
(1—4—2016 ¥ .
A ST RIS 26—12—2016) TR TR & cebt
AT 34.47 26.84

*yee fQerd, el &1 IfaRad IR FHTeT T @R U=emsdl & dd+ ferar |
HIg AT DI 31—03—2018 B HAART & THAR T UV IR : 2.37 TRI TR (T4 IY 2,00 A HY)

oA |

37. uRanfera @ifaRfE) <ot
HUH A uRerferd (@ITRfET) ofisT & Sidiid PRIt I & WIS W Rl 81 SHd IAeldl, HRAI

SRITBA D 17 ‘Wlios 8 del WAl AT olios YIad & [deror FaR g—

3 o §
A 9 | 31 9T, 2018 P 31 AT, 2017 &
fRIfd & IgarR Rufd & sIgaR
0] (Pwd)
L | 9 & o T8 1302.78 1322.59
ii. e a9 § e R g a9 § 9 T8 7578.28 7337.06
i. | aig as § R 13932.76 15807.82
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38. RN AGHT AFD — 108 IRATAT TS B FTHAR FHEIPROT

et RReell # SdIeHd I A dad gaT e e R & 99 IS &) @ 2| 89 W
Th EE & w9 H f[aR axd gy, o< fqaxol # YR ogie Ad 108 — URETes @€ & IIJaR
BIs THCIHRY &1 fbar 7T & |

39. 3§ gfe
e iR 9 aRuTHIS FHRIISH, IS Big 2, @ JIIHR ST ST 2 |

40. WA /5% faerm &1 R fAeeE

PUAT 7 gY 2003 AR 2001 H HHI: A TAIRIRN forfacs 9 8fa 91 2 @R 3, 6d7 Tt TAGRIRA
TR, WIHIS ST Uetd, A3 el WRIAT | U1, IHGT 931,50 ARI Y (Td IY 931.50 ARG ) &
Hag H FIRI fdord /8% fdokg &I YOI §RT BUAl ¥ 98d I SIRIY UKl 814 & drac[e 41 3
TP Gollded 81 ST AT 8 | HUAl §RT 371 A # 499 I &1 Fafia w9 & g famar <
T 2| 3 W ST B AR & Hag H 7451 G ®U ([F a9 7451 AG ) BT YRS ATa€=
foir fqa=ont & fhar T § QiR ofdR ¥, Ife ®Is 81, A1 H Urag™ fhar SIRATT 3R S Usiighd
foar S |

41. 7§ @ faR ¥, are] WRewim@l, F#or iR G &1 e wrTe S & dRM agee
BT ARy A% Seforfaa I & FH—F—a1 aged |

42. TATHTASS! IR, 2016 & 9RT 22 & AT TBS IR

%A | fdavor fsim | fo=i

q CL EL
2017—18 | 2016—17

1| T 1 Sgfedl & gdbrr YA & forg < geme Il SR @ N N

2 |gIPR &I @1 Tg YA DI AR TAT GeH, oY IR 799 Ie [ | g Nl
AT, 2006 BT GRT 16 & AJAR WNIGGR gRT Y& DI Ts TSl Bl
f3r

3 |YAE BRA W X Pl @Y B forg 9 el SR U R, dAfb geH, | T N
g 3R #eg¥ IeH faerd AfRfE, 2006 & d8d Ffde @1 o1 St a1

4 | TISd TST AT Y YA T B T ARy

5 |Yged, Y IR Hegq SeH [Adbrd AR, 2006 &I GRT 23 & d8d el
B dlel I BT F o B YIS A, S9 ARG § S SuGdR <F T
RIRT BT Y I BT aR<Id H YA (AT S 8, T8l T b Iavad!
Iyl H 3T BT TSl A <F I8 s 81 3R <F & |

e
el




=T 9 2017—18 ¥ GeH, 7Y TAT 7eH eI fadwrd ST 2006 @& A BIs Ut e T8 B |

43. IR CI$ | Fald a1

s B BT BIs AT e a1 U B GioeT T 2 SHGY ASAE U / UfoRenfud e &

Hay 3§ Ul BIs AN N &1 Bl § | ARG Wldh Bl Far A & T SR § —

3 o #
faawor o< af 2017—2018 | fa<fim 9§ 2016—2017
AT S AT kSR
(=) (592) (=m) (&92)
IRfAS wTh
arT LS LS VS LS
T
ISR 1611390 34239.03 3414096 41498.99
AiFe R 53195 2644.47 278201 7170.21
AT 1664585 36883.50 3692297 48669.20
fafamart
RISERE 1611390 35698.66 3414096 43768.25
AiFe R 53195 2777.79 278201 7650.78
ART 1664585 38476.45 3692297 51419.03
3T TIh
arT LS ™

44, IRANY IGT AFG—36 "“IRAISIIT DY LRI B ITAR THEIHRIT

AR ofdT A —36 "IRAYATAT Bl STAHRIAT B ATAR AT 99 2017—18 & TR AT UTdh A
H HId TR Tl B IR el TR H Sl dw @ Aey H TR deliss HdaRl & dadd &R
I UTH A H A6 Dai W (A9 F=1 & dae H aRGucadl o reraadn &1 fHeriRoer e = 2
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ST fob T DY TAhal U B drell YIS & IR 39 Hay H BT rerakian g1 &1 udn T8 9elr © |

45. (®) fas1id 20.11.2000 P S ATSHA Ho 815—100 / B /2000-Svq & 7 A—de yRAFRA
# o ST (Sff 3R/ T St AR) SR S W SIS DY AgHd Yodb SR Wagd TIRI BT I
e 7 faTid 25.11.2000 BN THEAR PIFT & AT U aIOSRIe dRie odrgad awgiiar faar o &R
AR fTT BT AGIIR A8AE Yodb 3R WIgH TR BT A [Ha1 37 I8 21 95 & SR 39
AT B A ST IRITTR T WU 3R TSIRIRYG Hrfad &1 T 8 | FaqeR, 2015 H s
UG HETeld] WRIeTd = I8 AT fhar o fb IRT & A1 Soadq =Irarerd 9 U+ fedid 11.10.2011 &
AT | Pal o7 b ARSI Aehel o bl g qRamyT, ford osdid & uR 1ol eiiel &, 3R
Pl TRE ¥ ASAMIRS BT YATId FRl 2 Al ASHAIRS] Bl B ¢ fdh J <ol fAf—m & ds
(4) & TET ATZHA DI AMALIRAT 7 B Tl BIAGAT 1 BN T U BrIGAdl df fhdl 3T afa
AT HBH I HFET BT RIFART PR < | FHdl, IAD 916 YASARCds & Aedd ¥ qREIR [T9RT ¥
9 A W BRATS SN 6 AR fRT Al & ddg 3§ s 37 gRASHRI 3 U1 o W)
B el H, A 6 RS Wepd df @ TFAR HRE & GY I TR aRIell BT | GREaR favmT
= f&AT®6 10.5.2016 @ SEUARIDRI HO 32—4 / ARAG—TSeell /2015—TaAUHYl (6 Seg—2) ERT Grad T
% TolleTR A1l fhalgTel A STaad <IaTad § i’ & I & 3l 29.02.2016 T FAdTs &
SR BIc o HET fh MR 9 30+ F931 & AR ARl IB[I 241, BTl 39 HIc gRI faarg &
3ifod ol 89 b 59 AN el fhal SIRATT | REER fA9RT 5 3T w8 6 Jedidd &R, s
AgHd BRI DI T T ol iR TE—aHg ) o) Anfeel Rigidl /el / TR & ST9R,
3Tl ST TP SR T STRIATT |

AT, SIeNl ¥ faid 09.02.2017 & UF 3. 7—16 / 2009—VeATH /Al HE 2015—16 /107 TAT fa=id 09.
02.2017 B H. SeIUT TH—1000 / 4T / 1forsd 1 |e /2010—11 /107 & RT AT BT 2009 ¥ 2016
T o1 A & foU g Yob & A ¥ 65445.02 oG BUY T WIeq JWRI & Fag H 32383.09
T T ¥l Bl AR G-I Holl | 39 AT & oy ¥l o7 yAgesclars @ | 59 AFel R
PHRATS FH B AR AT, THgscrars o A 14.03.2017 BI e ARTHI UF 4. 80752 / AR /5
faeell, |fea SRt &I Ao SR S8 A 25.11.2009 & U & gRI QU Y I ol WL
@ IR Hael d—de daRi J Fedl @ o IR & AR S A B uRWNRT e & forg
BB 3R A AR GUH DIC 7 39 ¥ WR 3ifad (o7 819 T8 Jedie & dag H f3ie 29,
02.2016 T JARA o Ao DI HET | LA F M ITR T 8T & |

el 77 safey REIR fOFT @1 9¥ & SRM deIIR Ul U 8 UEfd & IIJAR TRl &
ITa Te e 7

@) Ao wRaeEmRl @ forg dNe

facia a¥ 2017—18 & SR AP 20.11.2009 B SIAET ATSHH HAT 815—100 / BT / 2009—S10
@ W YdicR IRATSHT § A 2g O AT od & 30 H Y “ud (T 99 296.56 TRI BU) Pl
IR U1 1 M § | $9 fdaRor TR € —




3 o H

®d | fawo ficig a8 | facig o
2017—2018 2016—2017
(@72) (e72)
(@) |DUN B T IR I TG B ATAR Gl oG 133642.72 132707.40
(@) |SUgad SN AHE H Hatd dic Aarel (Wi NIL 296.56
RIS | 3
() (@) D IATIT GRITTATRIN & UT IToTed 133642.72 132410.84

Rl IO IR 39 URATS & GdY H ITYR ASHA D He SISl D Yob bl YRASTAT AT
80752 / SNsu+ /TSl & g9iRa foar 7ar 2 |

9 gRATSHT H ST o <1 §RT &Y I dTel SJAM, A PIS &, BT IS4 ay H oRdl — SIRET @T SIeT,
FOrH DT aRIell D1 ST | T, i =1 QA1 31—3—2017 BT SRIICT DI Iad Agad gya (HAT
g 3R TUTA U SART BIg AR & & & TS T

(M TTERIRYG IR 3g 9

facia a¥ 2017—18 & SR fAAIH 20.11.2009 B ST ATSHA HEAT 815—100 / BT / 2009—S10
& He YaicR URATST & oIy diie ¥ Hafed IoRd & 39 H I ©U ((Yd 99 343.54 ARG IUY )
@ IR 9 @t A | 39S fIaRor AR ® -

3 o #

%4, |faaor foccig af | fochg o
2017—2018 2016—2017
(*73) (o7d)
(@) |BU B AT AR T AT & JTIAR FHol ol 133642.72 132707.40
(@) |SUYad SIS AdE ¥ Haftd dRiC Adrel (TTSIIRUE NIL 343.54
gRASH) | M

() | (@) B IrcTar uRASTRN | AT To™d 133642.72 132363.86

Al o IR 39 URATS @ GdY H ISTYR ASHA D He SISl & Yo bl URASTAT AT
111116 / SNSUA /TSI H g9iRa fam wam g |

9 RIS § &Sl §RT SY Y SAM, IE BIg &, BT 99 a9 H oRH—SIRdT @1 IR, o+
IHD! TGl BT T 2 |

o T, el 7 faAid 31— 3— 2017 BT SRICIH! a0 AT U (HAT & 3R Tadrd Huil
TART BT8R P& T8 & TS 2|

| 87



88 |

46. TTPUH IRAST W IReEre W IR GRS TR)

TTHUA RIS R T 19.7.2011 1 ARSI Sod Wk AAfT DI 96 & BrRIged & AR, UF
& T RIS @ S &0 R 1% X | U= WA R a¥gel B & Fdg H gelagi-al AR
AT WD FAT B Yl fded 9T, T9HT (3MSUHS) A IR gAe Ui 89 &l Uhlell © |
A, Qe AUSH | IS SIJAGH & TR, el ShHCad Hex ARG 56 UAgdRT Scidgii~a!
3R o1 e HATe BT AT e & AR & & 1% HI &% 4§ U gR=Ere HHr
RIRT BT gfade o B T |

47. IS HERAT YRASHY

I Tl URATSIHIR & Hag # HoRal § [fd<e Fde ok w@l & g9R, Bu WY BH 4
oGl W @7 Ts T U aRATSRI & ol UK R W& ® | A6l 9 & foly, TAeyd  aRarer
BT BlehHy, ¥ HSMST GRATSHIST & Wrdl BT ol gen  fhar Srar 8, 599 ) sRas I <& 2|

48 I W a1 =N

389.02 /— HRIS BUY BT JdAT HR AR 13.94 /—BRIS SUI P TS A THAT B & deel § JdT
PR AYFT B AT, 5 fdoell ¥ FHdl § fQT1H 24.06.2014 B A T BRI qATBH o1 FAT
38,/ URIET / 2014—15 /13266—71 U< 8s o | SUYdd Fa & ¥ M9 IR I d3 AR sl
garg fasid 10.3.2015 BI ARSI &I T | 3D 16.6.2015 & Hol 33 FO 16 /THS! / UHAITH /
SIUe— | 11,/2015 a1 HR A APad (fQeeli— | || Y D) F 9 al T s AJ4R,

IY¥ 2008—2009 T 2012—2013 &I A & forv v W v # yRarfad ey &) dor v 3R Ta § SudY
Afed 389,02,36,342 /— ®UI  (@add TIF Al FAR BRIS, T G, BUN SR, Al TAT FATA ©0Y)
& AUl HaT PR DI AN BT Fprer fear wav |

afy Afd SrF farT 9 fesid 16.10.2015 &1 oTiied . THS! /3T 4. 53521 3% 2015 U
(SN gRT AR WHT Yo, IUTE Yo AR HaT B AU IRIMEBRY (s TACITE!) & AHe
3,89,02,36,342 / —%. & HfId JdT B TN BT Bl & ol "3’ SRR &I 8 3R 34 R fAoig s
e W B U A Uh 3 fhar g1 WSTAEIvel ¥ 1052016 BT e b forv fay U emded wR
JAATS DI 3R IH GRS R 3T | ST & FHeT U TR GAaTs dl Tehlen © | SR A GggaR
faTP 15.06.2016 BT 30,29,27,240 / —BU} BT AU & o0 Wal R HRATAT H TP W ATdE SRR
frar ® 1 |ar o famT 91 fe9Td 30.11.2016 & MM & IRT BT BT 30,29,27,240 / — ST B A1
RIRT g BI, ST {6 08—05—2017 BT T B T3 & | HISUACIVST TaRT f&HI® 26.07.2018 HI "37dTal”
BT AdTs DI g 3R a6 16.08.2018 & AT TART HaT HR [GATT BI 37Ul BT RGa B QAT AT & |

49. IRETe W IR & ggE

PUAT TRBRI TR TAT FISAl Pl AR F HRYER BIedIR DI GIawT J&H IR 8l & forgs foy ars
ERT IAT AT Wl IR &1 fdel o uR T Ureehl ! Fyadil by S+ uR raedl =1 ared
B TR el @ O W& B |




qrs @ ITFHIGT B AJAR, I ¥ 2017—18 & IR URATAT AT IR B &R AR & —

YRAST AR RIS AR @ Jfdea & <)
50 PRIS wUI db 1%
50 PRIS wUT I IffIh 5%

IuYad X 15.01.2015 F AN & AR IEY Ugal ATT—3TeT Told X YRATGHT BT AN & 3 I 8% &
EIERSILEIN

AT, YASSMSCIATS @ ATAGT & AR, HH (U ARG IRATSTARI & Hae § It W T 3118
A 9 T aRare A T &1 a_gell 81 9 W& © IR 3o I, fSoilca gwer kA &
A H, YA URATSHT oIRTd IR &9 U {997 5% &1 e W Tdhoy uR=me HHrd XIf3 of W8T 2 |

50. T EfeT g RIS, I Ud, el R @d 89 9l 31 /=g iy

THERECHATS - I8 JfAlfed f&ar f &l 14.2014 & T 4, &<l I STeT avg, ARAT U1,
faeell R fBRRT 9 R/ garel gl & @A / §FRTEl IaReT 31 YUs UH SIEerd Nl R
Had 8 PRI SR TP IRATATHD I IR G ¥l IR TS AT fagfd &R Siotel U9RI / Ucge
GREAT G [EIARIT YR /Tl TIRI / AGIRE S FERIaT / MBRAGAT TR & Hae § el §RT IR|
H I T 8T B S UTEN 30 IOl UIgTE H A 39 99 URI & 3% T FI B UfgfT e |
8 TRIS BT I g RN § | Gl 37T FS!l Bl YR AT MR R 7 T qdRi & SIRY 3
BT U BT | AT T FT | HH R 2 AT AN AR BT Fpdl ST & IR ¥ AR rcdd 3
AT SIRATT | 9¥ & GIRTE 800.00 @RI $Y (d IY 570.95 TTRI ¥UJ ) & I AT H A AT a1 31
1736.89 @R $UY & (qd 99 123520 G TUY B)

51 TS & wRifge W P odaRal # g2 a=n Rara

ST A AT 99 2010—11 H 2013—14 & IR TSl I UfAFGafd wR ol T el & wHamRal
& el & a1 ol & MR W BE A RIgd & d6 # 1.89 dRIe I @ UfYf @ 7 |
e Avsd @ fQAid 17.5.2006 BT AT Id! 4947 d38% H I gRI rAIfed dar Al &
YR TR HUN gRT 34 AR T IAYRT &1 T3 g AR I &A% 24.9.2010 BT AT 6941 d5& #
Hertea fear ar o, Sife SIS /SRl & feenfewl iR ARIvE & gl I Ragd Rl &
FTAR eI & | I 18 371 A1 1Al BT bl §RT 11.11.2014 DI GRLNE B TS / SIgaiiciarg
BT AT AT | 91 BT Ao B AR a¥ell fhwdl # @ SRR | M 9 W, 2015 § wHARAr
@ Ia9 ¥ IR B IGel B 7| 39S oy HHARA 7 A el 9w =marerd # avgel @ forg
IIfIRT SRR BT 2 3R 39 AW § Il g7 3ifad ol 29 a6 oA — 9.6.2015 & "3Q¥” gRT
HHAIRIT | AR B Il PR & Fag 7 A o1 & T 2| 3T H, A el o e
9 A% 18.3.2016 & U+ b # uig foram fb Har o, ST srdietsdbdl &l Ml # afdfrgafa wR
AMIET B @ forg IR el 2 IR Tl & IIRIARYT ey o1 I a1 Gidem ua™ a2,
S BT SR | W IF GATT &1 Fdq 39 F A ISRT TAT| I 916 YacR & s #§ e
far T R 315 faare 78 o & fedl & qo fafem Jer S9d Ry T HeieE g 8 |
S UREARAT # Far &1 wdl § geaE B S & S drell agell Bl ABT Tl S Fehl | TaJAR

| 89



feraray srIfq <l &1 2010 ¥ g4 AfAfFRaT &1 Idl & AR 31w I & =T R & 99
FRA DI AT < AT 2 b ASET BB FHARAT 1 W16 H T SRR {HAT ferd1 ST 2010 &
Ao & et 81 39 ordiel &l I 1 9 AT STl & |

THgaNsCdTs 1 fAl® 14.07.2016 & UF & gRI Fadl &I I8 Few f&ar f6 S sHary sivafdd wu
A gel I Rargd &) Giagr o 8 9 =2 AR YIdre bl aqell SR O W | el 71 fa= i
29.07.2016 @ UH & §RI UHSAMSCIdTs &I I8 grad fhar fo are] Frden & eae 9 @ gy et 3
gl A1 RIT & HRY HHAMRAT DI fHY 70 e ira & agen ufhar g ¥ & & 2 3R
IT D HeY H 29.07.2016 B HrAfed FAA o) 1 fhar forad S a7 gfud fear T ' & aw
PRI IR 2016 AR & I I Y DI G | 3HD AT — A [P 16.08.2016 BT HA gRT
THASRMEENATS DT I8 AT IR feham 71T |

gIfId SHAR] fai 29.07.2016 & Bl & I BT 0T & JJAR a4l §: P& DI WA
UfehaT & fARIE 3 SEHAT MBI TRR PR A [Qoel] Iod =g H =ret Y e el qo
THSIAECIATE Q1 ®I UfTard) amT 737 | THERMECHTS 1 39 AMe R U fdaR far &k fAadt &1
f&ie 17.03.2017 1 fewoll gRT I8 HAelre & & g8 390 AMt H A1 feell Soa <oy A uIad
fa=ep 18.03.2016 & T<h fUIF BT FUTSTT BN | THSATSSIATS & a3 & MR WR el 7 fadid
21.03.2017 BT BT IMUA SR fhar s I8 Seorw fhar ar & vasmsd) /el & wHarRar
ERT gl ATA RAId &1 qrar o1 T8 0T BT el 1 B S AR g8 eldl I q7I R Fafdd
ANABIRAT BT Ugel I TG DI T8 AR ST Y ATGd! B I | Ufariedl 7 Tegar i@ 21.03.2017
@ BRITAT AT Bl BICIDIAT BT FYa HR, [P 23.03.2017 PI AU JAdls ¥ AN fQeell Iea
RIS B 59 ORI &7 a1 & | AT A1IDBT DI 59 THR G 81 o R Fuer fdar w=n
AT 77 3R wfcrartedl e I8 Fewr f&ar 1 fb 9 &6 21.03.2017 & AT S0 B deblad AN
P | FHA 7 TEIIR BRATS DI AR IS Hdg ARKAT DI aGA DI T A0 BT aIfOAT B |

9 419, 39 AMc Bl FFS &R 781 ol Wied & BRI gRT 9Ag H UKd 3l T8 — A/ 2014
DI T 9 § oy RUIE — g WRBR (IR 3R G HIGAINH] &5) — 2015 B |7 55 H 2MMiHe
fpar a1 | 39 AFT U8 AT WA # e ofEr |ffa (o) & a2 |

I AR fReell I=d <ITad & hdel Bl WA $HRd gY YHeTseldls - SUUw & IR 3w
3R HBT I WieTdh HRITAI BT Jlad (BT | IHD d18, MRS AR F87 o Weld BRI o A4
ST & hael o Ui IR Ml & dar @l & uReed & oy SRR & SrgaeT @l Ui @l
Al gT0T @h DI | S&fB A IR $ Ao B afd FRiEe ik HeT o Wiee drierd @
TS @ s oY, I8 gfd fhar T b Ml & qar Al & uRened @) fQwn | g8 /el o
PR & [TaRET o7 | 39 PR g W1, AR A Mol & Far FdAl & aRees 9 8 & SR
3 off IRl & A== 2 |

52. QNS ¥ MRIFZaf W w9 ara it & waRal & uRaer T diearss

ST A AR 99 20072008 | 2013—2014 T & oY UARAT A URIFRGHT TR I8 arel <l
& HHATRIT BT IRASHT, WATET & Fd H 2.1 BRIS SUI BT AR BT T fhar | sa9a srfaRa,
39 Ge H A a9 2014—2015 & foIU IRamell # 44.84 TRI B9 IR fa<T 99 2015—2016 & forv
45.80 TG Y BT XA Ta™ B T 8, S (e9d Fsal &I fedid 22.12.2008 BT AT 6047 95
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# I gRT AR Ml R emenRa 2, Sifes S1diE & wnfeeff Rigral & orgaR 78 2 | Anfef
Rygidl =R SrgAeT o & oy vl gRT 39 Al Bl TR/ THSISENaTS T wRgd fpar T
2| URATSHT AT R <1 ST U &I Skl aRdfdd I & F9g 1 SRAf | Ifd 39 Arel |
3l dPH DI Hiedd Hal el € sfely fa<ig a¥ 2017—18 # a1 Urcares ¥ & e H @I
TaeTd Fel fhar T ® |

53. I eI URASHT I START 9 3 T [ ® =

o™ a9 2011—2012 dd, HH- GRIASARIT & e & U TREISal WRemE I Ui &1 T 01T
BT I FEIA UMY & ¥ H SH A & &t "UTEDI § U AH ART A9 W T 3R TGIAR
TRETHAT ARAT BT AT 9 &I T S R dls w1 981 far |

o Avsd I f3Aid 21.12.2011 &I I d86 H AAGHG &5 & ddbl § g9d §b @ H
AN &S &R & JJAR FHI—THI R JI AT URATSHR 4 Iuael TN 7 o T [ R
IUTFoTa 1ot IR B T[0T e IR SHH! I B 7 AIGH Y& fhar 8 | degaR Hrei
A RS AT DI TSl AR AT Aol &5 & dbl § gad do @l H AN ol &l &
BT TUET BR IFD! YAl Bl 2 T4 TRETbal WM gRT FuiRd Fegd g ol & JgaR e
AT GRATSTRN & YT 9 & T A9 1 R SUITd aRdfdd ol I3 &1 arasil w1 81907 |
TREGA faurn 7 faxg a¥ 2016 — 2017 d& Fdg  IRINHT § Hfse fHT M0 & & R
fpar 7 @ik s 9 Ifdeay RIS onfl T 81 713 &R S9a @rdl & e & far - 2 |
gTclifh, Ul GIRT WRPBR Bl SNIST GRIATGTRIT § &1l &I aTu-il I BT HH dRd & Fag |
for=® 3R AT oeT WeTd HRITed | Uh IR 9T 891 O 2 | Aafl 9 39 N7 R SdaR WeH
far o 3R T” orfl ff fRiFd oIk #eT oraT WieTd HrITery & fAaREN 2 |

¥ 419, e Hed 7 fA1d 28.03.2017 BT AN AU 100dT 96 ¥, $H AMel W Y [FaR fHar
g 3R Ml &1 I8 et 4 {6 9 WIevd MR R JJaM eIl IR @79  argdl & | Tag9R, a1e]
9y e 9 ¥ H 96 gRT G @16l &)1 D STJAR SIRAEY URATSTRIT & Hey H ardidd
JAER IR TS R BT IR BT AR GfEd aRATST & Jdd @ H IA U HRAT | 59D
AT, Thh SHIITSY Bl ael &1 URATST & Ty HUHl §RT AU dob WId Wiel T € 3R A9fdsy ¥ 59
IR YIRS HY0T TS 1T Bl TRETST [THRT DI adfddh MR W a9 {3 SIe |

fa<ir a9 2017—2018 & fory srga™ wer™ar gRAHRI ( STHH THay= aRASHT A 2) IR WA
T F g B R & 777.72 IRI SO (YD AV 499.10 G ®R S ey gRArS A1 enfie
?) ®F I B 99 & forw wr =reT 8y W HH fHur AT B

54 TS W MR R & a0 e & Rl a amEr wwr 8k A fwmr wwr

ST o f&id 1.7.2007 ¥ 31.3.2014 TH BT @M & IR T3NS A AAFIAT W BT a1el i
FHHAIRAT BI J8 (AT AT & e H 047 PRIs W AR URTST A« & e H 049 PRI DI
3R RTRT BT YA (HAT 8 | P §RT (IG=Id AUSH Bl a1 17.5.2006 DI JATATSIT 4947 966 3
Sd §RT AJFAINGT AT Rl & SR R $9 IRT &7 YA [HIT M7 8 Sifs 4R ARBR & 141
@ JTAR Bl T | FE R TS / AR TS B faA e 11.11.2014 &1 Jar o uRened 2q
IO T | 39 AT, 39 AMC H Wiedd Ao 99 ¥ | e & Jar fdt # adae wauet @
FIAR  gY 2014—15, [ 2017—18 & AR, DT gRI G A1 fbar 7 g |

| o1



55  WIfeT IA°Y AR

el TagaRT Ud 9y AR WRGR & (AW~ FATedl / fa¥mT /A9 T8-1 aor I1sdl /|/e S I
gal ¥ 9gd—«l d3 URIGHEN dEHdd dxdl 8 | 9 Acia e (GiwsR) # 7
YTl & ATAR, FHAT Pl 40 Tfcrerd I 31erdl S bR I &l T A RN DI TR HRA & foly
IY JfEfda axell 2, Tafd 980 & AWl H = ¥U | 308 Al < SRR B W w1 | Hefoa
AHA H el BT 39 7a&l B YSrRAf / UiRIUE R & UgErd IR SHGI R W dF BRI SR
SR &R BT | Bl Bl B aasn # & T YIar wdl & AR fAshamail Bl YIar SR Al
BT | S URUTHIEDY, 980 W SfaERl WR, JATIR W A JI1RT & iy faRol @1 el dw=r 9
H gerar T, ROTEH 31.3.2018 B HART & IR 28835.15 @RI BUJ (I d¥ 28130.13 TR BU) Bl
MR i Irg IR wAe 7, R ) Al gR1 9 99d &1 & oy g {9 /e 4
FII—FHT TR HRATE B ARA 2 |

56  SAMECIE! & U MIDR B IIe

HUAI 7 NS SMAFTIH 1961 DI TRT 12U(d) & M IHD UGBTI 7] (a1 13.6.2013 Pl AR
AYFd d U 3Mded UEgd fbar | qenfl, famie 17.12.2013 & AR’ & §RT Welq UGN - 59
IR BT 3RAIPHd B T | (<l =1 qegeard 39 9l 9 1% 17.12.2013 & Qe & 7 fA1H 20.
2.2014 BT TIHY AR AMATARRT (SIS 5 faeell & U Ul TR @l | f&HA1d 17.04.2017
QY & AR A JASIVST 7 ) &g GRT 12 T & 3fEfT GSbRT T&H $HRA & forg g
S BT IR WRAGIRAT BT AT far 81 Su=h ¥ M DI SMIWH HRATS & oAU MAB fA9TT &
U U& 3MIe TR fhar g |

57. T, T AR—TTe], URETIAT R <uarsit &1 Fffawor
S aRaErer ol & ok I &1/ YIad @ A & SR WR Al fJavoi # g
3R <ICATAT BT “ATe] TAT IR—=AT" & el fgfavror &1 gfaer yar el © |

58. wfererRor <

B ARl 7 TfeEgd @1 Meud iR wdl & o guR e d% TRfe a8l @ w,
i HUN I AR HAT S g8 U=l = AR | FAwres a6 TRE & 9 IR BT RAR
W | TEJER 242,38 ARG ®U (Jd a9 296.18 ST HU) Bl I9T¢ IGT AT & 3R b HIEROT 0
TS T3 o F S ReHraRa famar T 2

59. faf=1 +aTerl / fawrT @ RSN e

T SIS URITSHRN & folU ¥dT & M ATUR oiFed & ot 99—a97g IR fafy=1 H3reral /
T | ARPRI SIEH U Rl ©, RTHD! qgas T8l @l o Faell o | BTefif, Fdl o1 3o
eIl /GUd @ ol HIg WRBRI AJaH IR U< &1 g8 2 |

=i faaxol # Ueh ThdIepRor Uedl | UIe e Hedl & wd H A Al IRl b agd
T W fHar T B, Aifs I FHRI AR ofFad 2| 39 Tgami &l SYANT Hafed gRAammsi &
fIeq @ WAl & forg fhar omar ® eIk afe Wefta aRaos @ w9t &R e & a9 9y
IR U ©, AT U AT Aied TRETHAT AR BT a9 a1 ST | | e Feradm IRri
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B D IRITSHIRT & forg 8w fhar o1 g

el RGN AU /el W BedIR /AHedIR B WRIE HRA 3R SF9IRh UeH A & folv
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NOTICE
23rd ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given to the Members of National Informatics Centre Services Incorporated (NICSI) that its 23rd
Annual General Meeting is scheduled to be held on Tuesday 18th September, 2018 at 04:30 PM at Conference
Room No. 4009, 4th Floor, Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology, Electronics Niketan, 6, CGO
Complex, Lodhi Road, New Delhi — 110003, to carry out the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2018, the Income and
Expenditure Account of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2018, the Directors’ Report along
with the Auditor’s Report and comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India thereon.

2. ToFixthe Remuneration of Statutory Auditors for Financial Year 2017-18 appointed by the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India under section 142 of the Companies Act, 2013.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/-
(Dr. Girish Kumar)
Company Secretary
Place: New-Delhi
Date: 12.09.2018
NOTE:
1. A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself /
herself.

2. Asperrule 19(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, a member of a company
registered under section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 (erstwhile section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956)
shall not be entitled to appoint any other person as his/her proxy unless such other person is also a member
of such company.

3. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the registered office
of the company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/-
(Dr. Girish Kumar)
Company Secretary

Place: New-Delhi
Date: 12.09.2018
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NICSI-CS/23* AGM/300

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 23rd Annual General Meeting of National Informatics Centre Services Incorporated
(NICSI) will now be held on Wednesday 26th September, 2018 at 12:30 PM at Conference Room No. 4009,
4th Floor, Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology, Electronics Niketan, 6, CGO Complex, Lodhi Road,
New Delhi-110003, instead of on 18th September, 2018. All the Shareholders and Directors are requested to
kindly note the change and make it convenient to attend in the meeting.

National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/-
(Dr. Girish Kumar)
Company Secretary
Place: New-Delhi
Dated: 18.09.2018
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NICSI-CS/23* AGM/300 Dated: 11.12.2018

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the adjourned 23rd Annual General Meeting of National Informatics Centre Services
Incorporated (NICSI) will be held on Thursday 27th December, 2018 at 12:30 PM. at Conference Room No. 4009,
4th Floor, Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology, Electronics Niketan, 6, CGO Complex, Lodhi Road,
New Delhi-110003.

National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/-
(Dr. Girish Kumar)
Company Secretary

To:

The Chairman, NICSI
All the Shareholders of NICSI
All the Members of the Board
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Directors’ Report

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the Twenty Third Annual Report on the business and
operations of the Company with the Audited Statement of Accounts and the Auditors’ Report thereon for the
Financial Year ended 31st March 2018.

The Summarized Financial Results for the year ended 31st March 2018, as compared with the earlier year 2016-
17,is as under:

(1)  Financial Highlights
(Rupees in Crores)

S. No. Description 2017-18 2016-17
(A) |Receipts:
1 Stock & Sales 384.76 514.19
2 Services & Support 873.52 726.50
3 Operating Margin* 0.07 0.72
4 |Interest / Other Income 78.08 85.66
Less: Interest paid on Grant in Aid and NKN Projects amounting to
Rs.7.77 Crores  (PY.Rs. 4.99 Crores)

Total (A) 1336.43 1327.07

(B) | Payments:
1 Cost of Goods Sold 395.71 486.69
2 Services & Support 767.20 638.22
3 Employees Remuneration and Benefits 8.29 994
4 Other Expenses 74.37 64.82
5 Depreciation 40.21 16.71
Total (B) 1285.78 1216.38
Gross Surplus (A) - (B) 50.65 110.69
6 Less: Impairment of Property, Plant & Equipment. - 1.51
7 Less: Impairment of Other Intangible Assets. - 216
8 Provision for Tax 19.61 42.61
9 Net Surplus 31.04 64.41
10 Reserves and Surplus as per last year Balance Sheet 605.78 541.37
Total Reserves and Surplus (9+10) 636.82 605.78

* The above income is through Operating Margin (earlier known as administrative charges) on Projects from
supply of Hardware Items other than Stock & Sales. The Operating Margin of NICSI w.e.f. 15.01.2015 is 5% or 7%
depending upon the Value of Project.
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(1) Operating Margin

The Board of Directorsinits 103 meeting held on 29.09.2017 has approved the modification in the rates of NICSI's
Operating Margin (Earlier known as “Administrative Charges”) for all types of Projects / Services i.e. hardware/
software/manpower etc. as under:

Project Value % of Project Value

Up to Rs. 50 Crore 7%
[While implementation of the project, if value of the project decreases or equivalent to Rs.
50 Crore, NICSI will charge Operating Margin with prospective effect @ 7% only]

Above Rs. 50 Crore 5%

[While implementation of the project, if value of the project increases Rs. 50 Crore, NICSI
will charge Operating Margin with prospective effect @ 5% only on the value in excess of
Rs. 50 Crore]

Above rates are effective with immediate effect. However, all existing MoUs/Agreements, Proforma Invoices (PIs)
issued up to 31.10.2017 would be honored as per existing slab rates of Operating Margin.

The Office Order dated 01.11.2017 supersedes the NICSI Office Order No. 129/05-06/NICSI-CS dated 15.01.2015.

(2) Dividend

The company is registered under Section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956, (Now Section 8 of the Companies Act,
2013) and as per the provisions of the Section, the Company is prohibited to pay any dividend to its members.

(3) Transfer to reserves

The Company has not transferred any amount to reserves.

(4) Grading By DPE

(i) Process for Evaluation

° DPE issues Guidelines every year to enter into MoUs with Administrative Ministry i.e. Ministry of
Electronics and Information Technology (MeitY).

o DPE set up Inter-Ministerial Committee (IMC) on MoU consisting following:

1 Secretary, DPE Chairman

2 Secretary of concerned administrative Ministry / Department or his | Member
representative not below the rank of Joint Secretary

3 Secretary, Ministry of Statistics and Programme Implementation or his | Member
representative not below the rank of Joint Secretary

4 Additional Secretary, NITI Aayog or his representative not below the rank of | Member
Joint Secretary

5 Secretary DPE may co-opt any officer who is a Finance Expert in case the need is felt.

6 Joint Secretary / Adviser (MoU), DPE would provide secretarial support to the committee
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Draft MoU, consisting of Financial and Non-Financial Parameters, is submitted by NICSI to its Board
for approval before forwarding through MeitY to DPE.

IMC negotiates the Parameters and fix the targets in the MoU in the meetings, in which JS Level
Officer from MeitY/NIC and NICSI officials are present.

MoU is signed between NICSI and MeitY.

After closure of Financial Year, the Audited Accounts, duly approved by the Board, are submitted to
DPE along with the details in the prescribed proforma.

Based on above, DPE evaluates actual performance of NICSI against targets in the MOU and declare
grading.

(i) Grading of NICSI by DPE
Financial Year MoU Composite Score based on
Audited Data
2016-17 Excellent
2015-16 Excellent
2014-15 Excellent
2013-14 Very Good
2012-13 Very Good
2011-12 Very Good

((iii) Actual Performance against targets - MoU for F.Y. 2017-18

Number of Projects in difficult states like N/E, J & K, Uttarakhand, HP (Nos.) (10 Marks): 226
Introduction of New products and Services (Nos.) (10 Marks): 18

% age increase in Number of e-Governance Projects from Central / State / UT Governments /
Organisations over previous year (%) : (4 Marks) : (1080)

Completion of Client Orders (of Rs. 10 Crores or more) without time overrun (%) (10 Marks): 100%

Trade receivables (Net) as number of days of Revenue from Operations (Gross) (No. of Days) (5 Marks):
83

Application for Scheduling of the CPSE to Administrative Ministry completed in all respect with copy
to DPE (Date) (5 Marks): The Board in ts meeting held on 22.12.2017 decided to defer the item.

Online submission of ACR/APAR in respect of all executives (EO and above) along with compliance of
prescribed timelines w.r.t. writing of ACR/APAR (% age of number of executives): 100

Online Quarterly Vigilance Clearance updation for Senior Executives (AGM and above) (% age of
number of Senior Executives):100
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° Talent Management and career progression by imparting at least one week training in Centre of
Excellence e.g. IITs, lIMs, NITs, ICAl etc. (No. of executives): 2

. NICSI has complied with the additional eligibility criteria as mentioned in para 14.2 & 14.3 of the MoU
Guidelines FY 2017-18, to the extent applicable.

(5) Ongoing Projects in F.Y.2017-18

National Knowledge Network (NKN Project)

Initiated in 2009-10, NKN Project is approved by the Ministry of Electronics & Information Technology
(MeitY) for a period of 10 years at a cost of around Rs.5990 crore. NIC is the Implementing Agency for this
project, while NICSI assisting in procurement and providing IT Support. The Project is to establish high speed
data communication network which would inter-connect institutions of higher learning and research to
enable creation, acquisition and establishing of knowledge resources amongst them. It would also facilitate
collaborative research, countrywide classrooms etc by commissioning links to the institutions connectivity
to NIC District Centres, setting up Centres in the States/UTs.

KV ‘Shaala Darpan’ — Kendriya Vidyalaya Sanganthan Ministry of HRD, Government of India.

Under Digital India Vision, NICSI continued the activities in the project in around 1200 Kendriya Vidyalayas
PAN India, with the objective of improving the quality of learning through efficiency of administration and
their Governance, improve service delivery of school education department with the stake holders ie.
students, their parents, teachers and schools and provided access to near real-time for better quality data
in decision making.

NICSI Data Centre (NDC) at Shastri Park

NDC at Shastri Park, Delhi has been providing the services with disaster management facility to the
Government Departments and their Organisations with State-of-art tier-Ill facility. The activities continued
to function smoothly and successfully during the year.

DATA CENTRE at Laxmi Nagar

NICSI has its own Data Centre at Laxmi Nagar. It is providing services to various government Ministries /
Departments and their organisations in maintaining their data.

NICSI Development Centre

The Development Centre onthe 2nd floor at DMRC's IT Park, Shastri Park, Delhi with around 400 workstations
continued to provide services to the Users in the Projects smoothly and satisfactorily.

(6) () Other Projects from MeitY

During the year, NICSI continued the activities under various projects from MeitY, as under:
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Project Name

Project in brief

Aadhar Enabled Biometric Attendance System (AEBAS)

Aadhar Enabled Biometric Attendance System (AEBAS for
Government of India Offices in Delhi

Development of Common Minimum Framework (CMF)

Development of Common Minimum Framework (CMF) for
Government Websites

Security Enhancement of NICNET

Undertaking the projects - Security Enhancement of NICNET

Establishing Security Evaluation Research & Exploratory

Testing Centre

Undertaking Project titled - Establishing Security Evaluation
Research & Exploratory Testing Centre against Grants-in-aid

Augmentation of facilities for Cyber Security Product

Assurance

Undertaking project titled - Augmentation of facilities for Cyber
Security Product Assurance for Phase-| against Grants-in aid

Website Quality Evaluation to support e- Gevernance
Implementation in India

Website Quality Evaluation to
Implementation in India (Phase-II)" STQC through NICSI

support  e-Gevernance

(1) Other Key Projects:

1

Department of Rural Development, Ministry of Rural
Development Government of India and NIC and NICSI

NIC — DRD IT Infrastructure/ Manpower proposal

MoU signed between Ministry of Health and Family
Welfare, NIC and NICSI

Application for Integrated RCH Register

Transport Department, Government of Andman and
Nicobar Islands, NIC and NICS|

To provide services for issuance of Smart Card base
Driving Licenses on Sarathi Software in all Motor Vehicles
Departments offices of Andaman and Nicobar Islands

The Rajasthan State Co- Operative Bank Ltd. Jaipur
With NIC and NICSI

For Implementation of Co- Operative Core Banking Solution
(CCBS)at all primary Agriculture Cooperative Societies in the
state of Rajasthan.

LNJN National Institute of Criminology and Forensic
Science Ministry of Home Affairs and NIC and NICSI

Memorandum of Understanding for Development and
Hosting of Registration System for forensic Aptitude and
Caliber Test (FACT)

Council of Architecture, NIC and NICSI

Memorandum of Understanding for the Development and
Hosting of Registration System for National Aptitude Test in
Architecture (NATA) 2017

Inspector  General, Registration and Stamps
Department Government of Rajasthan, NIC and NICS|

For Computerization of registration of stamps project in
Sub-Registrar office of registration and stamps Departments
Government of Rajasthan

All India Institute of Medical Sciences (AlIMS) and NIC
and NICSI

Application Software Maintenance & Technical Support

Finance Department Govt. of Jammu and Kashmir,
Jammu Hereafter referred to as (FD-GOJK) & NIC and
NICSI

Towardsthe Execution of the Integrated Finance Management
System (IFMS)

10

Terms of Agreement for State Wide Roll Out of
E-District MMP in Sikkim (SDA) Government of Sikkim
With NIC And NICSI

State Wide Roll Out of e-district MMP in Government of
Sikkim, Tripura, Gujarat, Kerala, Chandigarh, Meghalaya,
Jharkhand, Tamilnadu

11

Central Board of Secondary Education Autonomous
Organization under Ministry of Human Resource
Development, NIC and NICSI

For the development and hosting of online registration
system for examinations




7.  Highlights for FY.2017-18

April 2017 to

April 2016 to

March’ 2018 March’ 2017

a) Segment - wise breakup of | Hardware Items 126 670
new projects received: Software Items 13 108
Manpower 1547 1710

Web/Soft Dev 119 162

Training NIL NIL

Network 111 382

General Projects 545 382

Other items 423 550

Total 2884 3964

April 2017 to April 2016 to

March’ 2018 March’ 2017

b) Segment-wise number of | Hardware Items 1457 2209
Work Orders issued: Software Items 132 205
Manpower 8107 5354

Network & Misc. 1158 1802

Total 10854 9570

April 2017 to April 2016 to

No. of PlIssued March’ 2018 March’ 2017

c) Proforma Invoice Issued Hardware 1002 4268
Software 31 690

Manpower 7299 7123

Network 703 2451

Miscellaneous 2035 2796

Total 11070 17328

d) Tenders Floated April 2017 to April 2016 to
March’ 2018 March’ 2017

No. of Open Tenders 12 26

No. of Limited Tenders (EQI) 01 08

No. of Strategic Alliances 25

Total 13 59

(8) Manpower

As per the manpower profile approved by the government through notification in the Gazette of India, deputation
of manpower in NICSI will be on temporary rotational deputation basis along with their posts from NIC.

The total staff strength of NICSI as on 31st March 2018 was 28.
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(9) Particulars of Employees

None of the employees of the Company was in receipt of remuneration in excess of limits prescribed under rule
5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,

(10) Corporate Social Responsibility

National Informatics Centre Services Inc. (NICSI) is a Section 8 Company (Erstwhile Section 25 Company). NICSI's
objective is to promote ICT Solutions and Technology and to apply its profits, if any, or other income in promoting
its objects and prohibited to pay any dividend to its members.

The Board in its 99th Meeting held on 26th December, 2016 had constituted the CSR Committee comprising the

following:

Sr.No. Name & designation Designation
1 ShriR. K. Sudhanshu, Joint Secretary, MeitY Chairman

2 Shri Sanjay Singh Gahlout, DDG, NIC Member

3 Shri DC. Misra, DDG, NIC Member

4 Dr. (Mrs.) Ranjna Nagpal, DDG, NIC Member

The terms of reference of CSR Committee shall, inter-alia, include the following:

. To formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR policy which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken
by NICSI as per the Companies Act, 2013;

o To review and recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities to be undertaken by
the company;

. To monitor the CSR policy of the Company from time to time;

. Any other matter as the CSR Committee may deem appropriate after approval of the Board of Directors or
as may be directed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

The quorum for the CSR Committee Meeting shall be one-third of its total strength (any fraction contained in that
one third be rounded off as one) or two members, whichever is higher.

The Company Secretary to NICSI shall act as Secretary to the CSR Committee.”

The Board in its 102nd Meeting held on 8th September, 2017 had re-constituted the CSR Committee comprising
the following:
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Sr.No. Name & designation Designation

1 Shri Sanjay Kumar Rakesh, Joint Secretary, MeitY Chairman
2 Shri Sanjay Singh Gahlout, DDG, NIC Member
3 Shri D.C. Misra, DDG, NIC Member
4 Dr. (Mrs.) Ranjna Nagpal, DDG, NIC Member

The Board in its 104th Meeting held on 22nd December, 2017 was apprised that the CSR Committee in its 1st
meeting held on 4th December, 2017 recommended the expenditure of Rs. 1.98 Crore on CSR activities for
Financial Year 2017-18 and CSR Policy of NICSI. The Board after considering the recommendations in detail
approved the expenditure of Rs. 1.98 Crore on CSR activities for Financial Year 2017-18 along with the CSR Policy
of NICSI.

The Board inits 105th Meeting held on 26th March, 2018 was apprised that the CSR Committee in its 2nd meeting
held on 23.03.2018 considered three proposals, out of which Proposal 1 and 2 are not complete in all aspects.
However, the CSR Committee was agreed in principle and recommended that NICSI may contribute Rs. 48.50
Lakh to the "Swachh Bharat Kosh” as part of CSR activities for F.Y. 2017-18.

The Board discussed the above in detail and after deliberations suggested the following:

Proposal 1 & 2: As the proposal 1 & 2 were not complete in all aspects, therefore it was advised to put up suitable
proposals complete in all aspects through CSR Committee in the coming Board Meeting.

Further, the Board after discussions and deliberations approved the following:

Proposal 3:
. NICSI may contribute Rs. 48.50 Lakh to the “Swachh Bharat Kosh” as part of CSR activities for F.Y. 2017-18.

° As per CSR Policy of NICSI, “Any unutilised CSR Allocation Fund of a particular year will be carried forward
to the next financial year”.

(11) Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance is an ethically driven business process that is committed to values aimed at enhancing an
organisation’s brand and reputation. This is ensured by taking ethical business decisions and conducting business
with a firm commitment to values. At NICSI, it is imperative that our company affairs are managed in a fair and
transparent manner. This is vital to gain and retain the trust of our stakeholders.
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(i) Number of Board Meetings and General Meetings Convened in Financial Year 2017-18

S. No. FY 2017-18 Date Venue

1 107st 22.06.2017 Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology, Electronics
Niketan, Conference Room No. 4009, 4th Floor, 6, CGO Complex,

Lodi Road, New Delhi -110003
2 Extraordinary 09.08.2017 National Informatics Centre, A-Block, CGO Complex, Lodhi

General Meeting Road, New Delhi — 110003.

3 102nd 08.09.2017 Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology, Electronics
Niketan, Conference Room No. 4009, 4th Floor, 6, CGO Complex,

Lodi Road, New Delhi-110003
4 103rd 29.09.2017 Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology, Electronics
Niketan, Conference Room No. 4009, 4th Floor, 6, CGO Complex,

Lodi Road, New Delhi -110003
5 22nd Annual 29.09.2017 Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology, Electronics
General Meeting Niketan, Conference Room No. 4009, 4th Floor, 6, CGO Comple,

Lodi Road, New Delhi -110003
6 Adjourned 22nd 30.11.2017 Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology, Electronics
Annual General Niketan, Conference Room No. 4009, 4th Floor, 6, CGO Complex,

Meeting Lodi Road, New Delhi -110003
7 104th 22.12.2017 Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology, Electronics
Niketan, Conference Room No.4009, 4th Floor, 6, CGO Complex,

Lodi Road, New Delhi -110003
8 Extraordinary 28.02.2018 National Informatics Centre, A-Block, CGO Complex, Lodhi

General Meeting Road, New Delhi — 110003

9 105th 26.03.2018 Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology, Electronics
Niketan, Conference Room No.4009, 4th Floor, 6, CGO Complex,

Lodi Road, New Delhi-110003

(12) Audit Committee

The Company, being a wholly owned Government Private Limited Company was not required to constitute an
Audit Committee under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014. However, the Board of Directors in its 99th meeting held on 26th December,
2016, keeping in view of good governance practices, advised to constitute the Audit Committee comprising the

following:

1. ShriR. K. Sudhanshu, IAS, Joint Secretary, MeitY

2. Shri S.S. Gahlout, DDG, NIC

3. ShriVishnu Chandra, DDG & AFA, NIC & FA, NICSI

Chairman
Member

Member
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The Audit Committee to review NICSI Financial and Audit matters and ensure that NICSI follow prescribed financial
rules and regulations; and

The Company Secretary to NICSI shall act as Secretary to the Audit Committee.”

Subsequently, the Board in its 103rd meeting held on 29th September, 2017 has re-constituted the Audit
Committee towards strengthening the Internal Control System with the following composition to review NICSI
Financial and Audit Matters and ensure that NICSI follow prescribed Financial Rules and Regulations:

1. Ms. Anuradha Mitra, AS & FA, MeitY - Chairperson
2. Shri Sanjay Kumar Rakesh, JS, MeitY - Member
3. Shri sanjay Singh Gahlout, DDG, NIC - Member
4. Shri Vishnu Chandra, DDG & AFA, NIC - Member

The Company Secretary to NICSI shall act as Secretary to the Audit Committee.”

(13) Declaration by Independent Directors

The Company was not required to appoint Independent Directors under Section 149(4) and Rule 4 of the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 hence no declaration has been obtained.

(14) Company’s policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters
provided under sub-section (3) of section 178

The Company, being a wholly owned Government Private Limited Company was not required to constitute a
Nomination and Remuneration Committee under Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 of the
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Stakeholders Relationship Committee under
Section 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(15) Extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9

Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014. Form MGT 9 i.e. Extract of Annual Return is placed at Annexure.

(16) Material Changes and Commitments affecting financial position between the end of financial
year and date of the Board report

There have been no material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements
relate and the date of the report.

(17) Change in the nature of business

There is no change in the nature of business of the company.
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(18) Annual Accounts for the Financial Year 2017-18 as per Ind AS

Annual Accounts for the Financial Year 2017-18 has been prepared as per Ind AS. In this regard, a Certificate
dated 11th September, 2017 for FY 2016-17 has also been received from M/s KM G S & Associates, Chartered
Accountants, Basement, 18, National Park, Lajpat Nagar- IV, New Delhi — 110024.

(19) The Conservation of Energy, Technological Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and
Outgo

The information on Conservation of Energy and Technological Absorption is NIL. Foreign Exchange earnings was
NIL and outgo of the company during the year was Rs. 31.23 Lakh (On accrual basis).

(20) Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

During the year under review, the Company has not advanced any loans/ given guarantees/ made investments.

(21) Related Party Transactions

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 in the
form AOC-2 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

Related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm’s length basis and were
in the ordinary course of business.

Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014:

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: Nil

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: Nil

(22) Significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the
going concern status and company’s operations in future

During the year under review there has been no such significant and material orders passed by the regulators or
courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future.

(23) Subsidiary Company
As on March 31, 2018, the Company does not have any subsidiary.

(24) Auditors

M/s. Goel Garg & Co., Chartered Accountants, 18, Ground Floor, National Park, Lajpat Nagar-1V, New Delhi— 110024
were appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India as Statutory Auditors of the Company u/s 139 of
the Companies Act, 2013, to audit the accounts for the year ended 31st March 2018.
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(25) Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the requirement under section 134 (3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the
company hereby state that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along
with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b)  the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

Q) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safequarding the assets of the company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d)  the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e)  theDirectorshad laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

f) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

(26) Acknowledgement

The Board places on record its gratitude to acknowledge the cooperation, assistance and guidance extended to
the Company by Central and State Government Ministries/Departments / Organizations and PSUs etc. including
NIC and MeitY. The Directors are also grateful to the Comptroller and Auditor General of India and Auditors for their
cooperation. The Board expresses its sincere gratitude to the members, bankers and clients for their continued
support. The Board also wholeheartedly acknowledges with thanks the dedicated efforts of all the staff and
employees of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/-
Chairman

Place: New Delhi
Date: 26th September, 2018
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Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31.03.2018

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

) |CIN

U74899DL1995NPLO72045

i) | Registration Date

29.08.1995

il | Name of the Company

National Informatics Centre Services Incorporated

iv) |Category / Sub-Category of the |Private Limited Section 8 (Erstwhile Section 25) Company
Company under National Informatics Centre, Ministry of Electronics
and Information Technology, Government of India

v) | Address of the Registered office and | Hall No. 2 & 3, 6th Floor, NBCC Tower, 15,
contact details Place, New Delhi-110066
Tel:91-11-26105054, 26105193
Fax:91-11-26105212

Bhikaji Cama

vi) | Whether listed company Yes / No

No

vii) | Name, Address and Contact details of
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

Nil

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be Stated:

SL.No. Name and Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover of
products / services Product/Service the company
1 ICT Solutions — Hardware and Software 30.52
2 Manpower, Network and Others 69.48

lll.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

NAME AND HOLDING/ .
Applicable
S.No. | ADDRESS OF CIN/GLN SUBSIDIARY/ | % of shares held Section
THE COMPANY ASSOCIATES
1 NIL




IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

(i) Category-wise Share Holding

No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the end of
Category of beginning of the year the year

Shareholders % of % of

Demat | Physical | Total Total Demat | Physical | Total Total

Shares Shares

%
Change
during
the year

A. Promoters
(1) Indian

a) Individual/HUF
b) Central Govt NIL | 200000 | 200000 | 100 NIL | 200000 | 200000 | 100 NIL
¢) State Govt (s)

d) Bodies Corp.

e) Banks / Fl

f) Any Other....
Sub-total (A) (1)

(2) Foreign

a) NRIs -Individuals
b) Other Individuals
¢) Bodies Corp.

d) Banks / Fl

e) Any Other....
Sub-total (A) (2)
Total shareholding
of Promoter (A) = NIL 200000 | 200000 | 100 NIL 200000 | 200000 | 100 NIL
(A(1)+(A)(2)
B. Public
Shareholding
1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds
b) Banks / Fl

c) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture Capital
Funds

f) Insurance

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Companies

g Flls

h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)
Sub-total (B)(1)
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2 .Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital upto
Rs. 1 lakh

ii) Individual
shareholders
holding

nominal share
capitalin

excess of Rs 1 lakh
¢) Others (specify)
Sub-total (B)(2)

Not Applicable

Total Public
Shareholding
(B)>=B)1+B)(2)

Not Applicable

C. Shares held by
Custodian for

Not Applicable

GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total
(A+B+0) NIL | 200000 | 200000 100 NIL 200000 | 200000 100 NIL
(i) Shareholding of Promoters
SL. | Shareholder’s | Shareholding at the beginning of Share holding at the end of the year
No. Name the year
No. of % of total 760f Shares No. of % of 760f Shares %
Shares Shares of the |  Pledged / Shares total Pledged / Changein
company | encumbered Shares encumbered | share holding
to total of the tototal  |duringthe year
shares company shares
1 | President of India 200000 100 NIL 200000 100 NIL NIL
through NIC
Total 200000 100 NIL 200000 100 NIL NIL

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

SL. No. Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding
of the year during the year
1 No.of shares [% of total sharesoff No.of shares (% of total shares of|
the company the company
2 At the beginning of the year
3 Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters Share holding during
for ncresse / Gecresse. (0 No Change
allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc):
4 At the end of the year
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of

GDRs and ADRs):
Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding
o For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders of the year during the year
: % of total o
No. At the begining of the year No. of shares shares of the No. of shares ﬁ;)tft::::a:)l "s‘h::]es
company pany
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share
holding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease (eqg.
allotment / transfer / bonus / sweat Not Applicable
equity eto:
At the End of the year (or on the date of
separation, if separated during the year)
(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Shareholding at the Beginning Cumulative Shareholding
sl of the year during the Year
No. . % of total o
For Eachaggtllzaglrectors No. of shares shares of the No. of shares % otfht:f:aol:‘hzlr'les of
company pany
At the beginning of the year
Date wise Increase /Decrease
in Share holding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase / NIL
decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc):
At the End of the year
V.INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Unsecured
Loans

Secured Loans
excluding deposits

Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of
ASQthe financial year

i) Principal Amount
i Interest due but not paid
i) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year

+ Addition

* Reduction

Net Change

Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year

i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

Not Applicable
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A.  Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager
:L' Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/Manager Total Amount
(i) Shri Manoj Kumar Mishra 0] Rs.34.74 Lakh p.a.
(01.04.2017 t0 31.03.2018)
(i) Shri Manoj Kumar Mishra @D Rs.3.97 Lakh (P.Y.)
(15.02.2017 t0 31.03.2017)
1 Gross salary NICSlis promoted by Government of India through National Informatics Centre
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in | (NIC), as a Private Limited Section 25 Company (Now Section 8 Company). As
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, | per Article 59() of the Articles of Association of the company, the Managing
1961 Director shall be appointed by the Director General, NIC on behalf of the
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income- President of India by deputing suitable officer of NIC.
( )éaxéct.wl.& fsal q i The Managerial Remuneration for Financial Year 2017-18 to Shri Manoj Kumar
¢/ FTOTILS 1N UeU Of salary UNder SeCton |y ionry Managing Director (01.04.2017 to 31.03.2018) of the Company was
17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 Rs.34.74Lakh (PY.Rs.3.97 Lakh) only.
2 | Stock Option
3 | Sweat Equity
4 | Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify... .
- Not Applicable
5 | Others, please specify
Total (A)
Ceiling as per the Act
Total (A)
Ceiling as per the Act
B. Remuneration to other directors
::)' Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount
3.Independent Directors | =m0 meeem | e | e
.Fee for attending board / committee
meetings
..Commission
.Others, please specify
Total (1)
4. Other Non-Executive Directors
.Fee for attending board / committee
Meetings
..Commission _
.Others, please specify Not Applicable
Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act




C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

SL. No. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
CEO Company CFO Total
Secretary
1 Gross salary The Remuneration for Financial | Not Applicable 9,17,000/-
(a) Salary as per provisions Year 2017-18 to Company
contained in section 17(1) of Secretary of the Company is
the Income-tax Act, 1961 Rs.9,17,000/- only.
(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(0) Profitsin lieu of salary
under section 17(3) Income tax
Act, 1961 (InRs)
2 Stock Option
3 Sweat Equity
4 Commission
- as % of profit Not Applicable
- others, specify...
5 Others, please
specify
Total 9,17,000/-
VIl. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES
Type Section of the Brief Details of Authority[RD/ | Appeal made,
Companies Act Description Penalty / NCLT/ COURT] if any (give
Punishment/ Details)
Compounding
fees imposed
Penalty
Punishment NIL
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment NIL
Compounding

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/-
Chairman

Place: New Delhi
Date: 26th September, 2018
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National Informatics Centre Services Incorporated (NICSI)
Addendum to the Directors Report for Financial Year 2017-18

Replies to the Observations of the Statutory Auditors Report dated 26.09.2018
from M/s. Goel Garg & Company, Chartered Accountants
on the Accounts of NICSI for F.Y.2017-18

AUDIT OBSERVATION

NICSI REPLY

Reference is invited to the note no. 47 and 53 of the Ind AS financial statements, regarding Grants-in-aid,

a)

The unaudited accounts of NKN projects
have been incorporated in the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company.

M/s. Goel Garg & Co., Chartered Accountants had been
assigned the work by NICSI to audit the accounts of GIA
Projectsfor FY.2017-18. Out of 17 GIA Projects with NICS|
in FY.2017-18, the Audit of 16 GIA Projects is complete.
The firm is also to undertake the audit of NKN Project,
which is due since 2010-11 & onwards.

b)

During the current year, the interest
on Grant-in-Aid projects amounting
to Rs. 777.72 Lakhs (Previous year Rs.
499.10 Lakhs) has been reduced from
interest income earned during the year
as per the interest rate on fixed deposits
(Previous year saving bank account)
given by the public sector banks based
on the management estimation instead
of actual interest earned on unutilized
funds of Grant—in — aid projects as per the
terms & conditions laid down by grantor
institution. The impact of the same on the
previous years has not been worked out,
amount unascertained.

NICSI Board of Directors, in its 100" meeting held on
28.03.2017 had approved to refund the interest on grants
in aid projects on “Actual Basis”. Accordingly, during
the current year, NICSI has provided the interest in GIA
Projects as per the interest rates informed by the bank
as applicable on fixed deposits from time to time during
the year. Action to refund the difference of interest for
previous years is in process.

o)

TilLFY 2014-15, the Company paid interest
on unutilized amount of Grants-in-Aid
projects without considering service tax
paid in Grants-in-Aid projects. From the
FY 2015-16 Company has changed its
method of calculation and considered
Service tax paid in Grants-in-Aid projects
while calculating interest.

The effect of same on previous year's
interest payment has not been worked
out.

From FY.2015-16 and onwards, the Service Tax paid on
Advances has been treated as expenditure and interest
paid on net unutilised amount (i.e. advance received Less
Service Tax paid). TilLFY.2014-15,NICSI had not deducted
the Service Tax Paid amount out of the advance received
while calculating the interest, since the Service Tax paid
was adjusted at the time of raising of bills to the Users/
Customers.

NICSI has thus, refunded some excess amount towards
interest till FY. 2014-15 to the grantor departments.
Action is in process to revise the calculations of interest
and the adjustment would be made out of the additional




The overall impact of matters referred to in
the preceding para on the Ind AS financial
statements for the year is unascertainable
and unquantifiable.

interest to be paid by NICSI as per b) above. However,
most of these GIA Projects are already completed and
their accounts closed.

Reference is invited to note no. 46 and 49 of Ind AS financial statements on recognition of operating

margin

) As per MeitY and NICSI's Board approval,
The Company has not been charging
any operating margin from NIC on the
procurement towards their internal
project.

ThisisasperSecretary,MeitY’sdecisioninthe meetingheld
on 26.05.2014 towards role clarity between NIC & NICSI
and circular issued by NIC, vide No. G-30012/02/2014/
IFS dated 18.06.2014 towards the same. Subsequently, it
was also ratified by the NICSI Board of Directors, in its 87
meeting held on 25" July, 2014.

i) The Company has been taking a uniform
operatingmargin (@ 5% on digital signature
project irrespective of project cost.

This has been recognised during the year as per Note 49
of the Financial Statements. However, the empanelment
of vendors by NICSI towards the same was up to
September, 2017 only and thereafter, no such project
has been implemented.

il Revenue from operation includes income
recognized @ 1% as administrative
charges of expenditure incurred on NKN
Project. The same is subject to Ministry
of Electronics & Information Technology

(MeitY’) approval.

In the absence of documentation and
details, the overall impact of matters
referred to in the preceding paras on the
Ind AS financial statements for the year is
unascertainable and unquantifiable.

NKN High Level Committee, in its 11" meeting held on
19.07.2011, had agreed to in-principle for Administrative
Charges at 126 to NICSI with the view that NIC to send a
proposalin thisregard to be examined by IFD, MeitY within
the overall approvals by the CCl. NIC had accordingly,
sent the proposal to IFD, MetiY for examination and
concurrence. It is still in process. The proposal is being
further followed-up. However, NICSI Board of Directors,
in its 69" meeting held on 24.09.2010, had approved
charging of 196 administrative charges in the project and
NICSI has been taking it accordingly since FY.2010-11
itself.

Reference is invited to note no. 62 of Ind AS
financial statements regarding MeitY project
of “Asset Mapping of Panchayats” having total
cost of Rs. 3238.99 Lakhs and the Operating
Margin of NICSI, as per Administrative Approval
is fixed at Rs.100.00 Lakhs. The Company has
taken its income at 7% of expenses incurred
for the project during the year as per the rate
of operating margin approved by the Board.
Feedback from MeitY is not received.

NICSI had taken up the matter with MeitY, vide letter
dated 10.09.2015, to amend the Administrative Approval
to the extent that NICSI would be charging its Operating
Margin @ 7% in the project as per the rate approved
by its Board of Directors. Reminders to the same had
also been issued by NICSI to MeitY on 28.07.2016 and
27.07.2017. However, feedback in the matter is awaited.
In the meantime, the Project Review & Steering Group
(PRSG) for this project in MeitY, in its meeting held on
20.09.2017, had recommended for fore-closure of the
project from MeitY side, as its implementation in future
was agreed to by the Ministry of Panchyati Raj (MoPR) by
taking ownership of the same.
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In the above circumstances, NICSI is now in the process
of working out proportionate Operating Margin only in
the project, as per the provisions in the Administrative
Approval towards this project from MeitY, vide no.
3(64)/2014-EG-Il dated 29.03.2015, instead of 7%
actually taken. The excess amount taken would be
refunded by NICSI to MeitY in FY.2018-19.

In our opinion, internal controls/internal audit
systems in relation to, project management,
book keeping, invoicing, procurement, stores,
inventory, physical verification of fixed assets
and tendering process of the company are not
commensurate with the size and nature of its
operations.

NICSI has internal control system through Delegation of
Powers and other guidelines from the Board of Directors
from time to time. All the activities of NICSI are got
performed within those approved guidelines.

Further, NICSI has been empanelling a CA firm as its
Internal Auditors through tender process from time to
time. The CA firm has been reqularly conducting the
audit on NICSI Accounts on quarterly basis, as per the
“scope of work™ given in the empanelment letter and
issuing Reports. Proper accounting and other procedures
are being followed towards purchase of goods, stores,
inventory, fixed assets, book keeping etc. However, in
this Report, the shortcomings have not specifically been
pointed out and these are general comments only.

Reference is invited to note no.39 of the Ind AS
financial statements, balance confirmations
have not been received from Trade Payables,
Trade Receivables, Advances received from
customers, Earnest Money Deposits, Security
deposits, advance to suppliers and Grants-
in-aid received for balance outstanding
as at March 31, 2018. In the absence of
confirmations, we are unable to comment on
the accuracy of the balances and adjustment
thereof, along with impact, if any, on Ind AS
financial statements.

NICSI issues balance confirmation letters to all the users
towards trade payables and trade receivables every year
on financial closing and also, during the year from time to
time. It is a reqular feature that the Users / Customers of
NICSI, all being Government Ministries / Departments /
Organisations, are issued such letters but very negligible
response is received against the same. NICSI has also
issued such letters during FY. 2017-18 and the same
position exists. Action to issue such letters for other
heads would also be taken in future.

Reference is invited to Note 9 to the Ind AS
financial statements and accounting policy
No. 2(xvi), Provision for bad and doubtful
debts as on balance sheet date amounting
to Rs.301.43 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs.303.28
Lakhs) created against trade receivables. In the
absence of balance confirmations and proper
documentation, we are unable to comment
on the adequacy of such provision and impact
thereof, if any, on Ind AS financial statements.

The “Provision towards Bad & Doubtful Debts” has been
made by the Company during the year, based on its
‘Policy’. This policy is approved by the Board of Directors
in its 81° meeting held on 20.03.2013. In this report, the
adequacy of such provision is not specified and these are
general comments only.




Reference is invited to note no. 57 of the Ind
AS financial statements, Companies Act, 2013
require classification of Assets and Liabilities
into current and non-current. In absence of
reasonable basis for such bifurcation disclosed
in the Ind AS financial statements, we are
unable to comment on accuracy of such
disclosure.

The classification of Assets & Liabilities into current and
non-current has been done based on the contractual
terms & conditions as envisaged in the corresponding
PO’s & supporting documents and fully in conformity
with the applicable norms, as per Ind AS and Companies
Act, 2013.

Reference is invited to note no. 14 of the Ind
AS financial statements, Taxes Recoverable
as on balance sheet date includes Sales tax
recoverable balance of Rs. 117.70 Lakhs
(Previous Year Rs. 117.70 Lakhs) which
pertains to financial year 1996-97 to 2013-
14 and TDS on works contract Rs. 2.34 Lakhs
(Previous Year Rs. 2.34 Lakhs) for FY 2000-01.
In the absence of reasonable and sufficient
documentation in relation to recoverability
of above, we are unable to comment on the
accuracy and existence of these balances and
consequential impact on the Ind AS financial
statements, if any.

The long outstanding Sales Tax cases / TDS on works
contracts cases are fully corroborated with Sales Tax /
Vat returns. NICSI has vigorously followed up with the
concerned Tax Authorities regularly. However, the Tax
Authorities are yet to take final decisions in the matter.
NICSI would be following up the matter further with the
concerned Tax Authorities and in case, the refund is not
forth-coming, NICSI would be taking up the matter to its
Board of Directors for consideration to write-off the same.

Reference is invited to note no. 64 of the Ind
AS financial statements regarding current tax
assets of Rs.11,129.73 Lakhs (Previous Year
Rs. 6036.78 Lakhs) which includes certain
balances of TDS/Advance tax refundable
from FY 2007-08 to 2014-15. In the absence
of reasonable feedback from income tax
department regarding recoverability  of
above, we are unable to comment on the
accuracy and existence of these balances and
consequential impact on the Ind AS financial
statements, if any.

The current tax assets of Rs. 11129.73 Lakhs including
TDS/Advance Tax are duly & fully supported by
corresponding records ie. Income Tax Returns &
computation of Income, TDS deducted by users and
financial statements. NICSI has been continuously
following-up with the concerned Tax Authorities for
early refund of the same. However, out of Rs.11129.73
Lakhs, the amount of Rs.2281.00 Lakhs pertain to upto
FY.2014-15 and Rs. 8848.73 Lakhs for the current period
from FY.2015-16 to 2017-18.

10.

Reference is invited to note no. 52 of the Ind
AS financial statements regarding project
incentive paid/provided by the Company for
the period 2007-08 to 2015-16 amounting to
Rs. 301.64 lakhs without approval of MietY/
NIC. Pending approval/finalization of matter,
we are unable to comment on the impact, if
any, on the Ind AS financial statements of the
Company.

It relates to para no. 5.6 (i) in the Report no. 55 of 2015
of the C&AG of India for the year ended March, 2014 that
NICSI had paid Project Incentive of Rs. 211.00 Lakh to
its officers on deputation from NIC for the period from
2007-08 to 2013-14, which was not covered in the
guidelines of the Department of Public Enterprises (DPE)
and hence was not admissible.
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The matter was considered internally in NICSI and with
the approval of its Board of Directors, the matter was
referred by NICSI to NIC in November, 2014 towards
ratification of its Service Rules. The matter towards
ratification is still under consideration with NIC/MeitY till
then and NICSI has been continuously following-up.

In view of the said audit observations, NICSI had not paid
any amount to its employees towards Project Incentive
from FY.2014-15 & onwards. However, for FY.2014-15
& 2015-16, NICSI had made provision in Accounts of
Rs.44.84 Lakh & Rs.45.80 Lakh respectively towards
Project Incentive. In the absence of Government approval
so far towards ratification of NICSI Service Rules, even
the provision has not been made in accounts towards
the same from FY.2016-17 & onwards.

11.

Reference is invited to note no. 54 of the Ind
AS financial statements regarding payment
of Transport and House Rent Allowance
being paid / provided by the Company from
01.07.2007 to 31.03.2018 without approval
/ rectification by MeitY. Pending finalization
of matter, we are unable to comment on
the impact, if any, on the Ind AS financial
statements of the Company.

It relates to para no. 5.6 (i) & (iii) in the Report no. 55
of 2015 of the C&AG of India for the year ended March,
20714 that NICSI had paid Transport Allowance (Rs. 48.87
Lakhs) for the period from January, 2011 to March, 2014
and House Rent Allowance (Rs.16.58 Lakhs) for the
period from March, 2010 to March, 2014, beyond Central
Government rates, which was not admissible

The matter was considered internally in NICSI and with
the approval of its Board of Directors, the matter was
referred by NICSI to NIC in November, 2014 towards
ratification of its Service Rules. The matter towards
ratification is still under consideration with NIC/MeitY till
then and NICSI has been continuously following-up.

In view of the said audit observations, the Board
of Directors of NICSI, in its 103 meeting held on
29.09.2017, had considered and approved that the
Transport Allowance and House Rent Allowance to
NICSI employees be paid as per 7" CPC and hence,
NICSI has been paying these allowances as per Central
Government rates only since July, 2017 & onwards.

12.

Reference is invited to note no. 65 of the Ind
AS financial statements regarding Obsolete
Assets, during the physical verification of
fixed assets conducted by the Company,
some assets are identified as obsolete / non-
working. Effect of the same has not been
provided for the Ind AS financial statements. In
the absence of details, consequential impact

The physical verification of assets has been carried out
in April, 2018 & onwards by the respective Committee
at NICSIHQ and its units as on 31.03.2018. For the items
identified therein as obsolete / unserviceable, action is
in process for their disposal as per prescribed guidelines
and would be completed in FY.2018-19.




on the Ind AS financial statement for year is
not ascertainable and quantifiable.

13.

Reference is invited to note no. 45 regarding
method of calculating License Fee and
Spectrum Chargesanddemand ofRs.65445.02
lakhs towards License Fee and Rs. 32383.09
Lakhs towards Spectrum Charges raised by
DOT, the Company has paid / provided for
the License Fee and Spectrum Charges to
DOT. As the matter is pending in Hon'ble
Supreme Court of India consequential impact,
if any, on the Ind AS financial statement is not
ascertainable and quantifiable.

Hon'ble Supreme Court of India, in its interim judgement
dated 29.02.2016, had decided as under:

“The Union of India will continue to raise demands as
per its understanding. However, the same will not be
enforced till the final decision of the controversy by this
Court”.

As per said judgement, DoT, vide its DO dated 10.05.2016,
had informed NICSI that Assessment shall continue to
be made in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the relevant Licence Agreement, the Department’s
guidelines / inspections / clarifications issued from time
to time, as is being done hither to, until further orders.

Accordingly, NICSI had calculated and remitted the
Licence Fee and Spectrum Charges to DoT as per the
Agreement dated 20.11.2009 with it and clarifications
related thereto.

Further to above, NICSI had received 2 letters both dated
09.02.2017 from the O/0 the Principal Chief Controller
of Accounts (Pr.CCA), DoT to deposit the amounts of
around Rs.654.45 crore towards outstanding Licence Fee
and Rs.323.83 crores towards Spectrum charges for the
period from FY.2009-10 to 2015-16.

NICSI had taken up the matter with MeitY, based on which
Secretary, MeitY had informed the details to Secretary,
DoTvide D.O.dated 14.03.2017, with the request to revise
the said demand. Secretary, MeitY has again taken up the
matter with Secretary, DoT vide D.O. dated 18.09.2017.
Further feedback in the matter was awaited.

In the meantime, NICSI had surrendered the said Licence
to DoT on 31.03.2017 and thereafter, no activity had
been there in the project from NICSI side.

14.

Reference is invited to note no. 19 other
Financial Liabilities which includes liability
of Earnest money Deposit of Rs.921.36
Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 1396.41 Lakhs). In
the absence of sufficient and reasonable
documentary evidence, we are unable to
comment on completeness and accuracy
of this amount. Consequential impact, if
any, on the Ind AS financial statement is not
ascertainable and quantifiable.

The financial liabilities in respect of Earnest money
deposit of Rs. 921.36 Lakhs are as per corresponding
tender/bid documents and corresponding banking
receipts of respective EMD. However, the position is
being examined from the relevant documents, since
various amounts therein relate to the period from 1996-
97 & onwards. It would be ensured that all the long
outstanding amounts are settled in FY.2018-19 and ff,
any amount beyond 3 years remain un-linked, it would
be taken as company’s income.
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Reference is invited to note no. 17 and 19
other financial liabilities include securities
deposit payable Rs.40.45 Lakhs (Previous
Year Rs. 51.46 Lakhs) and Earnest Money
Deposit of Rs.921.36 Lakhs (Previous Year
Rs. 1396.41 Lakhs) which are not measured
at amortized costs or at fair value as per
Significant Accounting Policy 2(vi)) and (viii)
regarding measurement of financial liabilities.
Consequential impact, if any, on the Ind AS
financial statement is not ascertainable and
quantifiable.

The financial liabilities including security deposit payable
of Rs. 40.45 Lakhs & EMD of Rs. 921.36 Lakhs have been
duly measured at fair value, which in the absence of any
transaction cost is equivalent to carrying amount as per
INdAS requirement.

16.

Reference is invited to note no 61 regarding
implementation of ERP software wef 1%
July 2017 to prepare and maintain books
of accounts. ERP software is implemented
without any validation by any external
independent agency.

Parallel accounting maintained in ERP system
for the first three months is not fully on
consensus with the Tally Accounting Software.
In the absence of validation documentation
and details, consequential impact on the
Ind AS financial statement for year is not
ascertainable and quantifiable.

NICSI had given a Work Order to M/s. Rolta India Ltd.
on 22.03.2013 to procure, customize, implement and
maintain the ERP Application at NICSI. While customizing
the same, the firm had migrated Trial Balance as on
31.03.2016 and some outstanding transactions as on
31.03.2016 from Tally to ERP.

NICSI had also accepted the deliverables. Thereafter,
NICSI had also adopted the ERP on trial basis and
parallel run were going on more than one year. As it had
functioned satisfactorily and after the concurrence of
NICSl accounts, it had disbanded the working of Accounts
on Tally Package from 30.06.2017 and completely
adopted newly developed ERP from 01.07.2017. Thus,
the AccountsforFY.2017-18 have been prepared by NICSI
for initial 3 months in Tally package and subsequently,
transferred the same to the newly developed ERP and
from 01.07.2017 completely in the ERP only. It is also
certified by the CA firm maintaining NICSI accounts, vide
Certificate dated 11.09.2018. Also, there had been many
module-wise validation under NICSI ERP and some of
these are mentioned below:

ERP Oracle is a worldwide accepted Software.

During the Customization Process, NICSI Management
had incorporated various validations/checks in the ERP.
Some of these validations are listed below.

AP module validation:

R/

¢ Without any provision of Invoice ERP does not allow
making payment of such invoice.
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« Each payment from ERP is related to the concerned
project number from where such payment is debited
against corresponding income bill

% If Project is having Debit balance/Negative balance,
then ERP restricts to make payment from the
concerned project.

«» ERP does not allows back dated payment without
Proper approval from management

AR module validation:

% All the funds received from user is directly credited
in concerned project which are opened by project
opening division and the project number allotted by
ERP is unigue.

+» ERP does not allow duplicate billing for the same
period under the same project.

«» If PO/Work order, project number and billing period
are same then ERP restricts to book such income bill.

GL Module validation:

% If Project is having Debit balance/ Negative balance
then fund transfer is neither allowed on project
opening page nor on GL Module.

« However, the Company would be reviewing on
getting it validated from an external independent
agency.

7.

The Company has not complied with the following Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed by
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. -

The company has not complied with
disclosure requirements Ind AS 10 “Events
afterthe Reporting Period”, as the Company
receives service and material on behalf of
third party to carry out certain projects.
Sometimes, as informed to us, information
related to such expense and acquisition
comes after closing date and the same has
not been recognized in the Ind AS financial
statements. Further, reference is invited to
Note no. 66 of Ind AS financial statements,
in relation to prior period expenses /
income, the Company has treated only
errors or omissions as prior period.

NICSI continues to receive the bills from the vendors
after 31%' March every year and based on that, the entries
are made in the accounts for the bills received after
371 March till the closure of the financial statements
for that year. The company has duly complied with all
the provisions & requirements of applicable Ind AS,
while preparing financials for FY. 2017-18. Further, the
Company has treated errors & omission only as prior
period in the Ind AS Financial Statements. However,
there is no prior period during the year.
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ii. Reference is invited to the note no. 2(viii)
of the Ind AS financial statements; as per
the Company’s policy, revenue on sales
of goods is being recognized at the time
of generation of invoice, whereas, the risk
and reward are transferred to customers
on acceptance of goods.

This is resulting in non-compliance of Ind
AS 18 Revenue Recognition.

As per NICSI policy, it has been recognising its revenue at
the time of generation of invoice towards sale of goods.
The company has duly complied with all the provisions
& requirements of applicable Ind AS, while preparing
financials for FY. 2017-18 and as per matching concept
described by IndAS-18 on Revenue recognition.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the
possible effects of the matters described in the ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’ paragraph above, the aforesaid Ind
AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2018 and its surplus (including other comprehensive income)
and its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters - Without qualifying our opinion, we lay emphasis that-

a.

Reference is invited to note no. 55 of the Ind AS
financial statements, the company has incurred
extra expenditure than the advances received
from user departments in case of some projects,
as they restrict the release of advances to NICSI
to 40% or so as per GFR provisions. Reference is
also invited to note no. 9 of the Ind AS financial
statements, amount of trade receivables of
Rs.28,835.15 Lakhs (PYRs.28,130.13 Lakhs) as
at March 31, 2018 is on account of such excess
project expenditure incurred by the Company.

As per the provisions in the General Finance Rules,
2017, various Ministries / Departments / Organisations
have been restricting to the release of advances upto
40% of the project value, whereas NICSI has to issue
the work orders to the empanelled vendors to the total
cost of project. After the order is executed, the vendors
submit the bills to NICSI for payment and based on
that, NICSI raises bill/income bill to User corresponding
to vendor bills and subsequently, NICSI requests the
User Organisations to release the balance payments.
Due to delay in receipt of balance funds from the User
Departments/QOrganisations, the balance in the projects
results in negative, as NICSI has to make provision in the
accounts or to release the payments to the vendors, as
per the terms and conditions of empanelment / work
orders.

The Company is not maintaining separate bank
accounts for money received for Grant-in-aid
projects. Though, the company is maintaining a
separate project account for each project in the
accounting software.

NICSI receives a large number of new projects every
year. During FY.2017-18 itself, NICSI has received 2884
new projects for implementation from various Ministries/
Departments/ Organisations of the Government of India
/ States / UTs. Itis neither a requirement to have separate
bank account for each project nor it is feasible.

However, NICSI had maintained separate Accounts
Ledger for each project in the Tally and the same is being
maintained in ERP also. The Board of Directors of NICS|,




in its 100™ meeting held on 28.03.2017, has decided
to open separate Bank Accounts for each grants in aid
project and accordingly, each GIA Project has separate
Bank Account at present.

Reference is invited to the note no. 40 of the
Ind AS financial statements, conveyance/title
deeds in respect of office building at Bhikaji
Cama Place, New Delhi of Rs. 931.50 Lakhs are
pending for execution/registration.

NICSI has taken up the matter with NBCC, as well as with
Land & Development Office under Ministry of Urban
Development (Gol) from time to time but the registration
of the Deed is yet to be done. NICSI would be following
up the matter further with the concerned authorities to
get the deeds registered at the earliest.

Reference is invited to note no. 56 of the Ind
AS financial statements, the Company had
filed an application with the commissioner of
income tax on 13/06/2013 for its registration
under section 12A of the Income Tax Act, 1961.
However the same application was rejected by
the commissioner of income tax. The company’s
appeal with the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal,
New Delhi against CIT order has been decided in
favour. Appeal effect is still pending with income
tax Department.

The company had filed the application with Income Tax
Department to give “"Appeal” effect. Feedback from the
department is awaited.

Stock summary generated by the ERP system is
not matching with the books of accounts.

Books of Accounts as maintained in ERP System are
in agreement with the Financial Statements. Some
additional reports have been designed in the ERP as an
additional reference to only for MIS purpose.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. The Company is licensed to operate under section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013, therefore, the disclosure
required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act is not applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit except as mentioned in basis of qualified opinion
paragraph above.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Income and Expenditure Account, and the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) Except for the matters described in basis of qualified opinion, in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial

statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.
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e)

f)

Q)

h)

The internal controls described in sub paragraph 6 under the basis for qualified opinion above, in above
opinion, may have adverse effect on the functioning of the company;

Since the company is a Government company, sub-section (2) of section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013
regarding director’s disqualification, is not applicable to the Company in terms of Notification No. GSR-463
(E) dated 05.06.2015;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report
expresses qualified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

..~ The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS
financial statements(Refer Note no. 31 to the Ind AS financial statements);

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

Our separate report on directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section
143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 is attached as Annexure B.
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
NATIONAL INFORMATICS CENTRE SERVICES INC.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Sec-
tion 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable details, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the Inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial over financial reporting
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changed in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material
weaknesses have been identified as at March 31, 2018;

The Company did not have an appropriate internal control | NICSI Accounts sends Balances Confirmation
system for reconciliation / confirmation of vendor balances. | Letters to all the Users Departments /
These could potentially result in material misstatements in | Organisations with the request to confirm
the Company’s trade payables. the balances. These are also followed-up by
the concerned Project Coordinators through
correspondence and personal discussions. It is
not correct to say that it may potentially result in
material misstatement.
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The Company did not have an appropriate internal control
system on investment of excess funds in fixed deposits.
These could potentially result in loss of interest income.

NICSI continuously takes stock of its surplus
funds viz.aviz its requirements and after taking
internal approvals, invest the same in the Fixed
Deposits (FDs). These FDs are so prepared that
premature encashments are not occurred,
which may result in effective maintenance of
FD of Company. Further, the FDs on maturity are
also renewed on immediate basis, so that no loss
is there to the Company. Proper records of all
the FDs made / renewed /encashed / matured
is kept both in the CS Branch and Accounts
Branch, so that there is no discrepancy in the
record related to the FDs and it also tallies with
the figures of the Banks. It is not correct to say
that it may potentially result in loss of interest
income.

The Company did not implement the ERP System as per
the policies and guidelines of the contract & post validation
during the year.

Position is clarified in reply to observation no. 16
above. NICSI had simultaneously performed its
parallel run for more than one year on the Tally
system and the new ERP. After generating Trial
Balance, Balance Sheet and P&L Account as on
31.03.2017 from Tally System and also from
ERP System, comparison was done by the NICSI
Accounts. It was observed that all the Reports
either generated from Tally or from ERP were
matching.

NICSI Accounts had given its concurrence
to completely disband the Tally System and
exclusively used the ERP system for all the
related activities from 01.07.2017 onwards.
Further, 3 month parallel run from 01.04.2017
to 30.06.2017 was also there and the Reports
were matching completely both in Tally and ERP.
Thus, this is not correct to say that the company
did not implement the ERP system as per the
policies and guidelines of the contract. It could
potentially result in a differences in accounting
balances and material misstatement in the
Company’s Financials.
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A ‘'material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control over financial
reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company’s annual Ind
AS financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, except for the effects / possible effects of the material weaknesses described above on the
achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has maintained, in all material respects,
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as of March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in determining the nature, timing,
and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2018 Ind AS financial statements of the Company.
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ANNEXURE ‘B’TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF NATIONAL INFORMATICS CENTRE SERVICES INC.

REPORT ON DIRECTIONS ISSUED BY THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF
INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(5) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

(1)  Whether the company has clear title/ lease deeds for freehold and leasehold respectively? If
not please state the area of freehold and leasehold land for which title/ lease deeds are not
available.

As per the information provided to us, the title deeds of all the assets owned by the company are
registered except those mentioned in note no. 42 of audited statements.

(2) Please report whether there are any cases of waiver/write off debts/loans/interest etc., if
yes, the reasons therefore and the amount involved.

As per the information and explanation provided to us, there is no case of waiver/write off the debts/
loans/interest, etc. during the year.

(3) Whether proper records are maintained for inventories lying with third parties & assets
received as gift/grant(s) from Govt. or other authorities?

As per the information and explanation provided to us, no inventories which belong to the company are
lying with third parties and no assets have been reported to us as gifts /grant(s) received from government
or other authorities. However assets procured for the users under Grant in Aid belong to respective user
departments and not to the company

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/-
Chairman

Place: New Delhi
Date: 26th September, 2018
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SL

No.

National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

(A Government of India Enterprise Incorporated
Under Section 8 as per Companies Act, 2013)

Balance Sheet as at 31.03.2018

Particulars

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Other Intangible assets
Financial assets:

(a) Loans

(b) Others Financial Assets
Deferred tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets
Current assets
Financial assets:

(a) Trade receivables

(b) Cash and cash equivalents

(c) Bank balances other than '(b)' above

(d) Others Financial Assets
Current Tax Assets (Net)
Other current assets
Total Assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share capital
Other Equity
LIABILITIES

Note
No

o N O WU

10
11
12
13
14

15
16

Zin lakhs

Ason Ason
31-03-2018 31-03-2017
5,741.46 4,633.46
3,693.68 3,098.57
686.16 618.35
32262 320.35
2,539.99 2,282.70
28,835.15 28,130.13
13,295.05 20,470.42
141,727.53 120,372.46
3,923.41 4.201.14
11,164.64 6,036.78
2794712 27183.74
239,876.81 217,348.10
200.00 200.00
63,682.41 60,578.15
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SL.  Particulars
No.

Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities

(a) Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Deferred tax liabilities (Net)
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities:

(a) Trade payables

(b) Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Total Equity and Liabilities

Significant accounting policies

% in lakhs

Note As on Ason
No 31-03-2018 31-03-2017

17 4045 51.46
7 145.62 507.31
18 46,784.32 47,7182.97
19 1,728.85 2,485.00
20 127,220.64 105,668.69
21 74.52 74.52

239,876.81 217,348.10

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For Goel Garg & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 000397N

Sd/-

Ajay Rastogi

Partner

Membership No.084897

Place: New Delhi
Date: 26.09.2018

For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
National Informatics Centre Services Inc.
CIN: U74899DL1995NPLO72045

Sd/- Sd/-
Manoj Kumar Mishra Pankaj Kumar
Managing Director Chairman
DIN: 07652553 DIN:08176055
Sd/- Sd/-
Dr. Girish Kumar Deepak Saxena
Company Secretary FA&CA
FCS: 6468

Place: New Delhi
Date: 26.09.2018
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SL
No.

Vi

Vi

VIl

National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

(A Government of India Enterprise Incorporated
Under Section 8 as per Companies Act, 2013)

Statement of Income and Expenditure for the period ended 31.03.2018

Particulars Note
No.

Revenue From Operations 22

Other Income 23

Il Total Income (I+)

EXPENSES

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 24

Services Support Expenses

Employee benefits expense 25

Depreciation and amortization expense 3

Other expenses 26

Total expenses (IV)

Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (lll- IV)

Exceptional ltems

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment 3

Impairment of Other Intangible assets 4

Profit/(loss) before tax (V-VI)

Tax expense:
(1) Current tax

(2) Deferred tax

(3) Tax for Earlier Years adjusted/(Written back)

Year ended
31-03-2018

125,836.36
7,806.36

133,642.72

39,571.03
76,179.95
828.84
4,020.75
7,377.05
128,577.62

5,065.10

5,065.10
1,960.83
2,268.01
(361.69)

54.51

Zin lakhs

Year ended
31-03-2017

124,141.06
8,566.34

132,707.40

48,669.21
63,821.94
993.84
1,671.56
6,482.05
121,638.60

11,068.80

151.15
215.65
10,702.00
4,260.95
3,410.69
542.35

307.91
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SL.  Particulars

No.

Note
No.

IX  Profit (Loss) for the year from continuing operations

(VII-VIIN

X Earnings per equity share (for continuing operation):

(1) Basic

(2) Diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For Goel Garg & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 000397N

Sd/-
Ajay Rastogi
Partner

Membership No.084897

Place: New Delhi
Date: 26.09.2018

27

27

R in lakhs

Year ended Year ended

31-03-2018 31-03-2017
3,104.27 6,441.05
1,552.13 3,220.52
1,552.13 3,220.52

For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
National Informatics Centre Services Inc.
CIN: U74899DL1995NPLO72045

Sd/- Sd/-
Manoj Kumar Mishra Pankaj Kumar
Managing Director Chairman
DIN: 07652553 DIN:08176055
Sd/- Sd/-
Dr. Girish Kumar Deepak Saxena
Company Secretary FA&CA
FCS: 6468

Place: New Delhi

Date: 26.09.2018
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National Informatics Centre Services Inc.
(A Government of India Enterprise Incorporated
Under Section 8 as per Companies Act, 2013)

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31,2018

Tin lakhs

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2018 March 31,2017

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Surplus /(Deficit) before tax and extraordinary items 5,065.10 11,068.80
Interest on Service Tax

Surplus /(Deficit) before tax 5,065.10 11,068.80
Adjustments for:

Depreciation on fixed assets 4,020.75 1,671.56
Profit/(Loss) on sale of fixed assets 3.06 (0.09)
Interest expense 777.72 502.10
Deduct:

Interest income 8,285.61 882797
Operating Surplus /(Deficit) before Working Capital changes 1,581.02 4,414.39

Adjustments for :
(Increase) /Decrease in inventories

(Increase) /Decrease in trade receivables (705.02) (9,355.88)
(Increase) /Decrease in loans and advances and other assets (5,940.70) (13,741.75)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payable & other liabilities 19,786.19 37,986.89
Increase/(Decrease) in provisions

Cash Generated from Operations 14,721.49 19,303.66
Income tax Paid (2,268.01) (3,410.69)
Income tax for Previous Years (54.57) (307.91)
Net Cash inflow/(outflow) from Operating activities (A) 12,398.97 15,585.05
Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of fixed assets (5,728.25) (7,528.31)
Sale of fixed assets 1.10 0.18
Intangible Asset under Development - 640.38
Interest received 8,285.61 882797
Net Cash inflow/(outflow) from Investing activities (B) 2,558.46 1,940.22

152 |



Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Interest paid (777.72) (502.10)
Net Cash inflow/(outflow) from Financing activities (C) (777.72) (502.10)
Net increase /(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 14,179.70 17,023.18
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 141,134.48 124,111.30
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the closing of the year 155,314.18 141,134.48

Notes

Flow/Statement issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
2) Cash and Bank Balances at the end of the year consist of Cash and Balances with Banks. The detail of

these is as follows:

Particulars

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with Banks
Imprest Account

Other Bank Balances
Fixed Deposits

As per our report of even date
For Goel Garg & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 000397N

Sd/-

Ajay Rastogi

Partner

Membership No.084897

Place: New Delhi
Date: 26.09.2018

As at March 31, As at March 31,

2018 2017
13,294.98 20,470.02
0.07 0.40
142,019.13 120,664.06
155,314.18 141,134.48

For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
National Informatics Centre Services Inc.
CIN: U74899DL1995NPLQO72045

Sd/- Sd/-
Manoj Kumar Mishra Pankaj Kumar
Managing Director Chairman
DIN: 07652553 DIN:08176055
Sd/- Sd/-
Dr. Girish Kumar Deepak Saxena
Company Secretary FA&CA
FCS: 6468

Place: New Delhi
Date: 26.09.2018
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National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

(A Government of India Enterprise Incorporated
Under Section 8 as per Companies Act, 2013)

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2018
A. Equity share capital for issued, subscribed and paid up equity share of Re. 100/- each

Particulars

As at 1 April 2016
Changes during the year
As at 31 March 2017
Changes during the year
As at 31 March 2018

B. Other equity (Refer note 16)

As at 1 April 2016

Net income / (loss) for the year
Transfer to general reserve
Total comprehensive income
Dividend

Dividend distribution tax

At 31 March 2017

Net income / (loss) for the year
Transfer to general reserve
Total comprehensive income
At 31 March 2018

Significant accounting policies

As per our report of even date
For Goel Garg & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 000397N

Sd/-

Ajay Rastogi

Partner

Membership No.084897

Place: New Delhi
Date: 26.09.2018

Tin lakhs

Note Amount
15.00 200.00

15.00 200.00

15.00 200.00

Tin lakhs

Reserves and Surplus Total equity
Retained earnings
54,137.10 54,137.10
6,441.04 6,441.04

6,441.04 6,441.04
60,578.14 60,578.14
3,104.27 3,104.27

3,104.27 3,104.27
63,682.41 63,682.41

For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
National Informatics Centre Services Inc.
CIN: U74899DL1995NPL0O72045

Sd/- Sd/-

Manoj Kumar Mishra Pankaj Kumar

Managing Director Chairman

DIN: 07652553 DIN:08176055

Sd/- Sd/-
Dr. Girish Kumar Deepak Saxena
Company Secretary FA&CA
FCS: 6468

Place: New Delhi
Date: 26.09.2018




National Informatics Centre Services Inc.
(A Government of India Enterprise Incorporated
Under Section 8 as per Companies Act, 2013)

Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2018

1.  Corporate information

National Informatics Centre Services Inc. (The Corporation’) was incorporated on August 29, 1995 under
Section-25 of the Companies Act, 1956 (now section 8 of Companies Act, 2013 ) under National Informatics
Centre (NIC), Ministry of Communications & Information Technology, Government of India. The Corporation is
engaged to provide total IT Solutions to the Government Ministries/Departments/Organizations.

2.  Significant Accounting Policies

i. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, read with Revised Schedule
Il of the Companies Act (the Act), 2013, and the provisions of the Act to the extent notified. The mandatory
requirement of preparation of the first Ind AS compliant Financial Statements for FY 2016-17, has been
necessitated on account of the networth of the Corporation exceeding the stipulated threshold limit of Rs. 500
crores and the Financial Statements for the Reporting Period FY 2017-18 are also prepared accordingly.

The financials in the financial statements have been denominated in Indian Rupees, which is the functional as
well as the reporting currency of the Corporation.

iii. Mandatory Exceptions and Voluntary Exemptions from Retrospective Application of Ind AS as
per Ind AS 101- First Time Adoption of Ind As

In preparing the Financial Statements, the under-mentioned Mandatory Exceptions, as applicable to the
Corporation, as per Ind AS 101, have been complied with:

(@  Derecognition of Financial Assets & Financial Liabilities;
(b)  Estimates;

(c)  Classification & Measurement of Financial Assets;

(d  Impairment of Financial Assets.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the under-mentioned Voluntary Exemptions, as applicable to the
Corporation, as per Ind AS 101, have been opted:

(@) Deemed Cost;

b) Decommissioning Liabilities included in the cost of Property, Plant & Equipment.
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iii.  Current vs Non Current Classification of Assets & Liabilities:

An Asset is treated as Current when it is:

° Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
° Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

. Expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting period;

. Cash or Cash Equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for atleast
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as Non-Current.

A Liability is treated as Current when:

. It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

. It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period, or

° There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting period.

All other assets are classified as Non-Current.
Deferred Tax Assets & Liabilities are classified as Non Current Assets & Liabilities.

The Operating Cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing & their realization in cash & cash
equivalents. The Corporation has identified 12 months as its operating cycle.

iv.  Property Plant & Equipment (PPE) & Depreciation

(@ Tangible assets

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost [ie., cost of acquisition or construction inclusive of freight,
erection and commissioning charges, non-refundable duties and taxes, expenditure during construction period,
borrowing costs (in case of a qualifying asset) upto the date of acquisition/ installation], net of accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment (identified individually as component) are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Company derecognizes the replaced part, and recognizes the new part with its own
associated useful life and it is depreciated accordingly. Whenever major inspection/overhaul/repair is performed,
its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of respective assets as a replacement, if the recognition criteria are
satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the statement of Income and Expenditure.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of
the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.
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Property, plant and equipments are eliminated from financial statements, either on disposal or when retired from
active use. Losses/gains arising in case retirement/disposals of property, plant and equipment are recognized in
the statement of Income and Expenditure in the year of occurrence.

Depreciation ontheitems of PPE has been provided on the Written Down Value Method & at the rates as prescribed
in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013. The Corporation has determined the useful life of all the items of PPE
in alignment with Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

V. Intangible Assets and Amortization

The intangible assets have been initially measured at costs. The intangibles assets have been subsequently
measured at costs less accumulated amortisation & accumulated impairment losses. The useful life of the
intangible assets may be finite or infinite. Intangible assets with finite lives have been amortised over their useful
economic life as per the Written Down Value Method. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in
the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the
asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes
in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the
statement of Income and Expenditure unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

As per companies act, costs relating to computer software and server are capitalized and amortized on straight line
method over their estimated useful economic life of three years and six years respectively. Costs relating to ERP
software are capitalized and amortized on straight line method over its estimated useful economic life of ten years.

vi. Financial Assets & Financial Liabilities

Financial Assetsinclude Non Current Financial Instruments like Investments in Equity, Debt Securities & Derivatives,
& Current Assets like Cash & Cash Equivalents, Trade Receivables, Bank Balances, Fixed Deposits with Banks, Bills
Receivables, Security Deposits.

Financial Liabilities include Redeemable Preference Shares, Cash Credit Facilities, Trade Payables, Bills Payables.
Outstanding Statutory Dues like Income Tax, Service Tax, PF, ESI etc are not financial liabilities.

Financial Assets are classified into three categories: measured at (i) Amortized costs; (i) Fair Value Through Other
Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI); (iii) Fair Value Through Profit & Loss (FVTPL).

Financial Liabilities are classified into two categories: measured at (i) amortized costs; (i) FVTPL.

vii. Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments such as derivatives and certain investments, at fair value at each
balance sheet date.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:
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. Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

° Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

. Level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the balance sheet on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained
above.

viii. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Corporation
& the revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, taking into account the contractually defined terms of payment & excluding taxes or duties collected
on behalf of the government.

Revenue in respect of sale of goods/stock & sale items is recognized when the significant risks & rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyers, usually on delivery of the goods. Revenue from the sale of
goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns & allowances, trade
discounts & volume rebates.

The Corporation recognizes operating margin at the slab rates prescribed from time to time depending upon the
project costs. Usually the operating margin rates are inversely proportionate to the project costs i.e. higher the
project costs, lower the operating margin rate. Any subsequent decrease in operating margin rate on account of
an increase in project costs is accounted for by issuing corresponding credit notes at the yearend or at the time
of project closing. The Credit Notes so issued are netted off from the respective heads of income.

Interest Income on Fixed Deposits (FDs) with Banks is recognized on Effective Interest Rate (EIR). EIR is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future receipts over the maturity tenure of the FDs to the gross carrying
amount of the FDs. In the absence of any transactions costs, the bank interest rate of the FDs is itself the EIR.

ix. Inventories

The Cost of Inventories comprises all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other cost incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. Inventories (including inventory of software’s) have been
valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower on the First-In-First-Out (FIFO) method. Consumable
stores have been charged to revenue in the year of purchase, being negligible.
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X. Retirement Benefits

As per arrangement with NIC, the amount towards leave salary and pension contribution are calculated on basic
pay and grade pay of the respective employee based on the percentage prescribed by Government of India and
passed on to NIC. The Company is not liable to pay any other retirement benefits to employees, which shall
entirely be borne by NIC in future.

Xi.  Prior Period Items

Prior Period items are omissions/misstatements in an entity’s earlier period financial statements, including
balance sheet misclassifications. Ind AS 8 requires the rectification of prior period errors retrospectively in the
first set of financial statements approved, after their discovery, by restating the comparative amounts for the prior
periods presented in which the error occurred. However, if such restatement is impracticable i.e. when an entity
can't apply it after making every reasonable effort to do so, then Ind AS doesn’t require restatement of such prior
period items in comparatives of earlier periods.

xii. Events after the Reporting Period

The Corporation, in each year, is in receipt of a few expenditure invoices pertaining to the reporting period,
after the reporting period. The expenditure invoices, pertaining to a reporting period, which are received by the
Corporation after the reporting period but before the management approved cut-off date or the approval of
audited financial statements by the Corporation’s Board of Directors are considered as adjusting events after the
reporting period & are accounted for in the reporting period to which they pertain. The corresponding income
on such expenditure invoices is also accounted for in the same reporting period. The expenditure invoices,
pertaining to a reporting period, which are received by the Corporation after the reporting period & even after the
management approved cut-off date or the approval of audited financial statements by the Corporation’s Board of
Directors, are considered as non adjusting events after the reporting period & are accounted for in the reporting
period in which they are received. The corresponding income is also accounted for in the reporting period in
which the expenditure invoices are received & accounted for.

xiii. Leases

Assets taken under lease, where the lesser effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of
the leased term, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the
Income & Expenditure Account on a straight-line basis over the lease term. However, Ind AS 17 doesn’'t mandate
straight lining of lease rentals if these are structured to increase in line with general inflationary conditions.

xiv. Deferred Taxes

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits
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and unused tax losses can be utilised. Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities are not recognised if they arise from initial
recognition of liabilities/assets respectively & at the time of transactions they don't affect either the accounting
profit/loss or the taxable profit/loss. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting
date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income orin equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCl or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

xv. Impairment of Assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment
based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value
inuse. In assessing value in use, the Corporation has measured its ‘value in use’ on the basis of discounted cash
flows of next five years projections estimated based on current prices.

After impairment, depreciation/amortization is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its
remaining useful life.

xvi. Impairment of Financial Assets/Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts

A provision @5% is recognized towards Trade Receivables which are outstanding for more than three years at
Balance Sheet date.

xvii. Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net surplus or deficit for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share are calculated after adjusting effects of potential equity shares (PES). PES are those
shares which will convert into equity shares at a later stage. Surplus/deficit is adjusted by the expenses incurred
on such PES. Adjusted surplus/deficit is divided by the weighted average number of ordinary plus potential equity
shares.
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xviii. Provisions and Contingencies

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be
made. Long term provisions may be discounted to their present values at an appropriate risk adjusted discounted
rate. Short term provisions are not required to be discounted. The provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet
date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates. Provisions are also required to be created in
respect of constructive obligations. However, the Corporation was not having any constructive obligations in the
reporting period.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that have arisen from past events and the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of future events not wholly within
the control of the Company.

xix. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and cash in hand and
short term investment with the original maturity of three months or less. Cash Flow statement is prepared using
the indirect method.

2.1 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates and
assumptions are continuously evaluated and are based on management’s experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

In particular, the Company has identified the following areas where significant judgements, estimates and
assumptions are required. Further information on each of these areas and how they impact the various accounting
policies are described below and also in the relevant notes to the financial statements. Changes in estimates are
accounted for prospectively.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company,
including legal, contractor, land access and other claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only
when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the existence, and potential
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quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgments and the use of estimates
regarding the outcome of future events.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions
about future developments, however, may change due to market change or circumstances arising beyond the
control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

(a) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU's fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount
of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated
by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.

(b) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the
DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is
not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of
inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments.

(c) Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Company uses judgments in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period.
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Note No. 3. Property, plant and equipment

X in Lakhs
Buildings | Plantand | Furniture | Vehicles Office Computers Total
equipment and Equipments
Fixtures
Cost
As at April 1,2016 1,985.85 147.36 554.15 7.01 1,945.08 3,169.80 | 7,809.25
Additions - - 7.71 - 324.02 3,42016 | 3,751.88
Disposals - - - - 0.20 - 0.20
As at March 31,2017 1,985.85 147.36 561.86 7.01 2,268.90 6,589.95 | 11,560.93
Additions - 12643 3.09 - 1,443.69 480.57 | 2,053.80
Disposals - - 1.27 - 9.17 130.11 140.55
As at March 31,2018 1,985.85 273.79 563.68 7.01 3,703.42 6,940.42 | 13,474.17
Depreciation
As at April 1,2016 909.94 112.71 391.75 535 1,283.79 292105 | 562459
Depreciation charge for the year 52.62 7.05 46.15 054 216.21 829.27 1,151.85
Impairment Loss - - - - - 151.14 151.14
Disposals - - - - 0.11 0.11
As at March 31,2017 962.56 119.76 437.90 5.89 1,499.89 3,901.46 | 6,927.47
Depreciation charge for the year 50.06 82.37 34.30 037 47393 300.36 941.41
Impairment Loss - - - - - - -
Disposals - - 1.21 - 8.79 126.19 136.19
As at March 31,2018 1,012.63 202.13 470.99 6.26 1,965.03 4,075.63 | 7,732.68
Net book value:
As at March 31,2018 973.23 71.65 92.69 0.75 1,738.38 2,864.78 | 574147
As at March 31,2017 1,023.29 27.60 12396 112 769.01 2,68849 | 463346

| 163



Note No. 4. Intangible assets

%in Lakhs
Software Total

Cost

As at April 1,2016 28793 28793
Additions 3,176.41 3,776.41
Disposals

As at March 31,2017 4,064.34 4,064.34
Additions 3,674.45 3,674.45
Disposals

As at March 31,2018 7,738.80 7,738.80
Amortisation

As at April 1, 2016 230.45 230.45
Amortisation charge for the year 519.67 519.67
Impairment Loss 215.65 215.65
Disposals

As at March 31,2017 965.77 965.77
Amortisation charge for the year 3,079.34 3,079.34
Impairment Loss

Disposals

As at March 31,2018 4,045.12 4,045.12
Net book value :

As at March 31,2018 3,693.68 3,693.68
As at March 31,2017 3,098.57 3,098.57
Note No.-5 - Loans

%in Lakhs
Particulars Non-current
As at As at

March 31,2018 March 31,2017

Security deposits
Unsecured, considered good 686.16 618.35
TOTAL 686.16 618.35

Note: - Non-current Security Deposit have been discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
of 10.85% per annum.
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Note No. - 6 - Other Financial Assets
T in Lakhs

Particulars Non-current

As at
March 31,2018

As at
March 31, 2017

Fixed Deposits

Fixed Deposit having maturity more than 12 months* 291.60 291.60

Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposits

Interest Accured 31.02 28.75
322.62 320.35

* Fixed Deposit mortgaged against Bank Guarantee.

Note No. 7 - Income Taxes

The major components of income tax expense for the year ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 are:

A. Statement of profit and loss:

X in Lakhs
(i) | Profit & loss section
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Current income tax charge 2,268.01 3,410.69

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year 54.51 307.91

Deferred tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (361.69) 542.35

Income tax expense reported in the statement of Profit & loss 1,960.83 4,260.95
(ii) | Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) Section

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the

year: -

Net loss/(gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans - -

Income tax charged to OCl -
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B. Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for

FY ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018:

%in Lakhs
31 March 2018 | 31 March 2017
Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations 5,065.10 10,701.99
Profit/(loss) before tax from a discontinued operation
Accounting profit before income tax 5,065.10 10,701.99
At India’s statutory income tax rate of 34.608% (31 March 2017: 34.608%) 1,752.93 3,703.74
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years 54.51 307.91
Government grants exempted from tax
Exempt income
Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes 153.39 249.30
At the effective income tax rate of 37.34% (31 March 2017: 39.81%) 1,960.83 4,260.95
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 1,960.83 4,260.95
Income tax attributable to a discontinued operation
1,960.83 4,260.95
C. Deferred tax:
Deferred tax relates to the following: %in Lakhs
Balance sheet Statement of Income &
Expenditure
31 March 2018 | 31 March 2017 | 31 March 2018 | 31 March 2017
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes (324.90) (679.22) (354.32) 547.20
Provision for Doubtful Debts 104.32 104.95 0.63 (11.00)
Provision for Employee benefits 15.85
Present valuation of Security Deposits (assets) 7496 66.96 (8.00) (9.70)
Deferred tax expense/(income) (361.69) 542.35
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (145.62) (507.31)
Reflected in the balance sheet as follows: X in Lakhs
31 March 2018 | 31 March 2017
Deferred tax assets (continuing operations) 179.28 17191
Deferred tax liabilities (continuing operations) 324.90 679.22
Deferred tax Assets/(liabilities), net (145.62) (507.31)




Note No. - 8 - Other Non-Current Assets

T in Lakhs

Particulars

As at
March 31,2018

As at
March 31,2017

Deferred Lease Expense 711.25 784.27
Advances to Suppliers 1,828.74 1,498.43
2,539.99 2,282.70
Note No. - 9 - Trade Receivables
X in Lakhs
As at As at

Particulars

March 31,2018

March 31,2017

Unsecured, considered good 28,835.15 28,130.13
Unsecured, considered doubtful 301.43 303.28
Less: Provision for doubtful debts * (301.43) (303.28)
Total 28,835.15 28,130.13

* Provision for Doubtful Debts is based on the Trade Receivable which are outstanding for more than 3 years at

Balance Sheet date.

Note No. - 10 - Cash and Cash Equivalents

T in Lakhs

Particulars

Current Assets

As at
March 31,2018

As at
March 31,2017

a. Balances with banks

Saving Account 13,294.98 20,470.02
b. Others
Imprest Account 0.07 0.40
Total 13,295.05 20,470.42
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Note No. - 11 - Other Bank Balances

%in Lakhs
Particulars Current Assets
As at As at
March 31,2018 | March 31,2017
Fixed Deposit* 139,978.35 119,260.15
Fixed Deposit mortgaged against Bank Guarantee 1,749.18 1,112.31
Total 141,727.53 120,372.46
* Includes Bank Balances of Sweep Deposit Accounts.
Note No. - 12 - Other Financial Assets
%in Lakhs
Particulars Current
As at As at

March 31,2018

March 31,2017

Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposits

Interest Accured 3,923.41 420114
Total 3,923.41 4,201.14
Note No. - 13 - Current Tax Assets (Net)
T in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at

March 31,2018

March 31,2017

Income tax paid (Net of provision)
Total

11,164.64

6,036.78

11,164.64

6,036.78
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Note No. - 14 - Other Current Assets

X in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2018 | March 31,2017
Advances to Employees
Unsecured, considered good 31.19 22.84
Total 31.19 22.84
Other advances
Unsecured, considered good
Advances to Suppliers 8,205.39 9,954.90
GST on Advances and Others 19,271.52 16,878.25
Prepaid expenses 318.98 207.69
Taxes Recoverable* 120.04 120.06
Total 27,915.93 27,160.90
GRAND TOTAL 27,947.12 27,183.74
* Break-up of Taxes Recoverable
X in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2018 March 31,2017
Sales Tax/DVAT Recoverable (1996-97 to 2013-14) 117.70 117.70
TDS On Works Contract 2000-2001 2.34 2.34
Total 120.04 120.04
Note No. - 15 - Equity Share Capital
X in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at

March 31,2018

March 31,2017

Authorised

200,000 (Previous Year 200,000) Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each 200.00 200.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

200,000 (Previous Year 200,000) Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each 200.00 200.00
200.00 200.00
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a. Information on shareholders*

Name of Shareholder Relationship As at March 31,2018 As at March 31,2017
No. of Equity | Percentage | No. of Equity | Percentage
shares held (%) shares held (%)

President of India through DG, NIC Shareholder 199,995.00 100.00 199,995.00 100.00

Sh. Shyam Bihari Singh Shareholder 1.00 0.00 1.00 0.00

Sh. Sanjay Singh Gahlout Shareholder 1.00 0.00 -

Dr. Ambreesh Kumar Shareholder 1.00 0.00 1.00 0.00

Sh. Vishnu Chandra Shareholder 1.00 0.00

Sh.R 'S Mani Shareholder 1.00 0.00 1.00 0.00

Total 200,000.00 100.00 | 200,000.00 100.00

* Held on behalf of Government of India

b. Reconciliation of the paid up shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting year

X in Lakhs
Particluars As at March 31,2018 As at March 31,2017
Number Rs. Number Rs.
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 200,000.00 200.00 | 200,000.00 200.00
Add: - Shares Issued during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 200,000.00 200.00 | 200,000.00 200.00

C.

Rights, Preference and Restriction attached to equity shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 100 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled

to one vote per share.

Note No. - 16 - Other Equity

X in Lakhs
Particulars Amount
Retained Earnings
As at 1 April 2016 54,137.10
Profit for the year 2016-17 6,441.04
As at 31 March 2017 60,578.14
Profit for the year 2017-18 3,104.27
As at 31 March 2018 63,682.41




Note No. - 17 - Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars

Non-current

As at As at
March 31,2018 | March 31,2017
Security Deposits Payable 40.45 51.46
Total 40.45 51.46
Note No. -18 - Trade Payables
%in Lakhs
As at As at

Particulars

March 31,2018

March 31,2017

Trade Payables

- Due to Micro and Small Enterprises

- Other than Micro and Small Enterprises 46,784.32 47,718297
Total 46,784.32 47,782.97
Note No. - 19 - Other Financial Liabilities

%in Lakhs
Particulars Current
As at As at
March 31,2018 | March 31,2017
Creditors for Expenses 407.68 376.89
Earnest Money Deposit Payable 921.36 1,396.41
Employee Benefits Payable 14757 31216
Expenses Payable 9.87 103.36
242 37 296.18

Total 1,728.85 2,485.00
* Refer Note N0.58
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Note No. - 20 - Other Current Liabilities

%in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2018 | March 31,2017
Statutory Dues and Taxes 1,992.35 1,615.74
Advances received from customers 115,804.50 101,363.31
Grants-in-Aid received from customers 9,225.79 2,689.64
Corporate Social Responsibilities 198.00
Total 127,220.64 105,668.69
Note No. - 21 - Provisions
%in Lakhs
Current
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2018 | March 31,2017
Provision for Stamp Duty 74.52 74.52
Total 74.52 74.52
Note No.: 22 Revenue From Operations
%in Lakhs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2018 March 31,2017
Revenue from operations
Sale of Traded Goods 38,476.45 51,419.03
Service Income 87,352.48 72,650.39
Total (A) 125,828.93 124,069.42
Administrative Charges 7.43 71.64
Total (B) 7.43 71.64
Total Revenue from operations (A)+(B) 125,836.36 124,141.06
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Note No. - 23 Other Income

%in Lakhs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2018 March 31,2017
Interest Income 8,285.60 8,827.96
Other non-operating income 250.56 192.76
Less: -
Interest on Grants-in-Aid Projects (other than NKN) 428.48 408.72
Interest on NKN Projects (Grants-in-Aid) 349.23 90.38
Unwinding of discount on security deposits 47.28 4472
Gain on de-recognition of financial assets 0.63
7,806.36 8,566.34
Note No. - 24 Purchases of Stock-in-Trade
%in Lakhs
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended

March 31,2018

March 31,2017

Purchases: -
Hardware 34,239.03 41,499.00
Software 2,644.47 7,170.21
Augmentation of District Infrastructure 2,687.53
39,571.03 48,669.21
Note No. - 25 Employee Benefits Expense
%in Lakhs
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2018 March 31,2017
Salaries and incentives 794.41 959.70
Staff Welfare 3443 3414
828.84 993.84
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Note No. - 26 Other Expenses

%in Lakhs
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2018 March 31,2017

Advertisement Expenses - 18.90
Audit Fee (2017 - 2018) 722 7.54
Bank Charges 13.14 333
Books & Periodicals 10.05 24.45
GST (Non-Cenvatable) 2223 -
Conference Seminar W/Shop Expenses 68.22 126.86
Consumable Stores 4356 43.00
Conveyance Expenses 479 7.19
Corporate Social Responsibilities Expenses* 198.00 -
Diesel for DG. Set 4.69 1.39
Doubtful Debts - 31.80
Electricity & Water Charges 613.92 521.61
Foreign Exchange Variation 0.38 0.55
Hire Charges - 419
House Keeping & Cleaning Charges 291.05 173.56
House Lease Charges 724 25.60
Internal Audit Fee 0.60 0.75
Membership & Subscription Charges 1.01 1.18
Miscelleneous Expenses 1417 32.23
Office Expenses 1,289.18 965.12
Office Rent 2,585.51 2,558.18
Printing & Stationery 9.22 14.65
Professional & Consultancy Charges 234.56 242.00
Rent for DTH 0.45 -
Rent Rates & Taxes 4.27 4.27
Repairs & Maintenance 385.88 387.63
Service Tax U/s 6(3) Rule 97.94 259.23
Service Tax & Cess (Non-Cenvatable) 12477 390.97
Taxi Hire Charges 328.60 308.79
Telephone Expenses 52.31 62.16
Travelling Expenses ( Staff ) Foreign 9.07 31.23
Travelling Expenses (Director) 0.34 0.21
Travelling Expenses( Staff) 339.07 231.68
Vehicle - Petrol 1.45 1.48
Vehicle Maintenance 0.42 0.31
Swachch Bharat Cess Expenses 293.01 -
Krishi Kalyan Cess Expenses 320.73 -

7,377.05 6,482.05

* Refer Note No.60.

The figures under the head Electricity & Water Charges and Housekeeping & Cleaning Charges are shown after net of

reimbursement.
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27 - Earning per Share

%in Lakhs
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2018 | March 31,2017
Earning per share
Surplus attributable to Equity shareholders 3,104.27 6,441.05
Weighted average number of equity shares 2.00 2.00
Basic earning per share 1,552.14 3,220.52
Diluted earning per share 1,552.14 3,220.52
Face value per share 100 100
28. Fair values measurements
(i) Financial instruments by category
Tin Lakhs
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
FVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised
cost cost
Financial assets
Trade receivables 28,835.15 28,130.13
Cash and cash equivalents 13,295.05 20,470.42
Other bank balances 141,727.53 120,372.46
Interest Accrued (current) - 3,923.41 4,201.14
Security deposits - 686.16 - 618.35
Fixed deposits - 291.60 - 291.60
Interest Accrued (non-current) - 31.02 - 28.75
Total financial assets -| 188,789.92 -| 174,112.85
Financial liabilities
Trade payables - 46,784.32 - 47,78297
Other financial liabilities (current) - 1,728.85 - 2,485.00
Other financial liabilities (non-current) - 4045 - 51.46
Total financial liabilities -| 48,553.62 -| 50,319.43
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(i)  Fair value hierarchy

All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is insignificant to the fair value measurements
as awhole.

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 : valuation technigues for which the lowest level inputs that has a significant effect on the fair value
measurement are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 : valuation technigues for which the lowest level input which has a significant effect on fair value
measurement is not based on observable market data.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities, other
than those whose fair values are close approximations of their carrying values.

Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed at
31 March 2018:

Tin Lakhs
Fair value measurement using
Date of Total | Quoted prices Significant Significant
valuation in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial assets
Security deposits given 31-Mar-18| 531.22 - - 531.22

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period.

Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed at
31 March 2017:

%in Lakhs
Fair value measurement using
Date of Total | Quoted prices Significant Significant
valuation in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial assets
Security deposits given 31-Mar-17 | 423.46 - - 423.46

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period.




For cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other receivables, short term borrowing, trade payables and
other current financial liabilities the management assessed that their fair value is approximate their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the Company’s long-term interest free security deposits are determined by applying discounted
cash flows (DCF) method, using discount rate that reflects the market borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting
period. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable
inputs including counterparty credit risk.

29. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade payables, security deposits, earnest money deposits
and employee liabilities. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade receivables, security deposits,
fixed deposits, cash and bank balances that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s management oversees the
management of these risks. The Company’s senior management is supported by the Board of Directors that
advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The board
provides assurance to the Company’s management that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by
appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance
with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The management reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks, which are summarised below.

l. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price
risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include fixed deposits.

A. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Company’s investment in fixed deposits with banks. The company’s fixed deposits are carried at
fixed rate. Therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount
nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

B. Foreign currency sensitivity

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes in exchange rates. Foreign currency risk senstivity is the impact on the Company’s profit before tax is due
to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities. The company is not exposed to foreign currency risk
as it does not have any foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities.
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1. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily
trade receivables) and from its financing activities.

The maximum credit risk exposure relating to financial assets is represented by the carrying value as at the
Balance Sheet date.

A. Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company's management subject to the established policies, procedures
and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an
extensive credit review and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding
customer receivables are regularly monitored.

At the year end the Company does not have any significant concentrations of bad debt risk other than that
disclosed in note 9.

Animpairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. The calculation
is based on historical data. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each
class of financial assets disclosed in Note 9. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company
evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers mainly include the
Government of India and its ministries.

B. Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the
Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties.

lll.  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
they are due. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash
equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes into account the liquidity of the market in
which the entity operates.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted payments.
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T in Lakhs

On Less than 3to12 1to5 >5years Total
demand | 3 months | months years

Year ended

31-Mar-18

Trade payables 46,784.32 46,784.32
Other financial liabilities (non-current) 40.45 40.45
Other financial liabilities (current) 1,728.85 1,728.85
Total 48,553.62 48,553.62
Year ended

31-Mar-17

Trade payables 47,782.97 47,78297
Otherfinancial liabilities (non-current) 5145 51.45
Other financial liabilities (current) 2,484.99 2,484.99
Total 50,319.41 - 50,319.41

IV. Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities
in the same geographical region, or have economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate
the relative sensitivity of the Company’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company's policies and procedures include specific
guidelines to focus on the maintenance of a diversified portfolio. Identified concentrations of credit risks are
controlled and managed accordingly.

30. Capital Management

The objective of the Company’s capital management structure is to ensure that there remains sufficient liquidity
within the Company to carry out committed work programme requirements. The Company monitors the long
term cash flow requirements of the business in order to assess the requirement for changes to the capital structure
to meet that objective and to maintain flexibility.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes to economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital, issue new shares for cash, repay debt, put in place new debt facilities or undertake
other such restructuring activities as appropriate.
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No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the year ended 31 March 2018.

X in Lakhs

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Borrowings

Trade payables 46,784.32 47,18297
Other payables 129,064.46 108,279.67
Less: Cash & cash equivalents (13,295.05) (20,470.42)
Net Debt 162,553.73 135,592.22
Total equity 63,882.41 60,778.15
Capital and Net debt 226,436.14 196,370.37
Gearing ratio (%) 71.79% 69.05%

31. Contingent Liabilities

As at Balance Sheet date, the contingent liability in respect of off site warranty provided by the company to the
users is not considered since all the equipments supplied towards projects are covered under AMC from the

vendors/suppliers from time to time, after warranty period.

Contingent liabilities, other than the above, not provided for are as under: -

T in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2018 | March 31,2017

(Rs.) (Rs.)
Claim against the Company not acknowledged as debts. 69.72 108.47
Guarantees 1493.32 1359.58
Income Tax Demand (Assessment Year 2010-11) 791 791
Income Tax Demand (Assessment Year 2012-13) 14.90
Total 1585.85 1475.96

Rs.65,445.02 Lakhs towards License Fee and Rs. 32,383.09 Lakhs towards Spectrum Charges for the period
2009 to 2016 has been levied by DOT as penalty (Refer Note No.45). No further communication is respect

of above for FY 2016-17 (Amount unascertained).

iii Penalty @ 2% on Income from V-sat Services (CSC Project and NDRF Project) towards DOT license — Amount

unascertained.
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32. Commitments

The Company has made commitment to procure the trading goods and to avail the services in the subsequent
period based on the purchase orders and agreements made with suppliers. Those commitments can be amended
as per the agreed terms. However, the amount of such commitments towards internal projects of the company
is Rs.21.32 Lakhs (PY Rs.17.98 Lakhs) as at March 31 2018. In addition, Commitment towards expenditure out of
“Reserves” is as follows:-

% in Lakhs

SL.No. |Particulars Amount
1 National Data Centre, Bhubaneswar 9,248.00
2 Enhancement of NIC Cloud Services 12,034.00
3 District 2.0-Augmentation of Digital India Initiative 7,213.00
4 NICSI Centre of Excellence 2,650.00
5 Up-gradation of Laxmi Nagar Data Centre 816.00
6 Development Centre at IT Park, Shastri Park 2,480.00

Total 34,441.00

33. Information pursuant to Para 5(viii) of the General Instructions for preparation to the Income &
Expenditure Account given under schedule Ill of Companies Act, 2013.

. Value of Imports on C.LF Basis: NIL (PY Rs. NIL)

il Expenditure in foreign currency (on accrual basis):

T in Lakhs
Particulars Year Ended March 31,2018 | Year Ended March 31,2017
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Travelling - Staff (Foreign) NIL 3123
Total NIL 31.23
jii.  Earnings in foreign currency (on accrual basis): Rs. Nil (PY Rs. Nil)
34. Auditor Remuneration*
% in Lakhs
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2018 (Rs.) March 31,2017 (Rs.)
Auditor Fee including Tax Audit Fee 7.21 6.55
For Reimbursement of expenses 1.99 1.74
Total 9.12 8.29
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* Exclusive of applicable taxes. Further, Rs. 3.42 Lakhs (PY Rs. 4.82 Lakhs) are paid for certification work for various
projects which are directly debited in the respective projects.

35. Disclosure pursuant to Ind-As 19 - ‘Employee Benefits’

i Contribution to Provident Fund

The company is not having any Provident Fund scheme as the employees of the company are on deputation from
NIC, along-with their posts, as per the Government of India Notification dated 3rd March, 1998. The Provident
Fund is deducted from their salary every month as per the rates prescribed for the purpose and government
guidelines thereon subsequently, passed on to NIC as its entire account is maintained by them. There is thus, no
liability of the company towards any payment to the employees on Provident Fund Account.

ii. Leave Salary

Since the employees are on deputation from NIC as per the Government of India Notification dated 3rd March,
1998, the leave salary contribution (as per the prescribed rates to the salary of the respective employee), is
calculated / provided by the company inits account every month and subsequently, passed on to NIC. No liability
is thus, there on the company towards payment of leave salary/encashment.

iii. Pension Contribution

Since the employee are on deputation from NIC as per the said Government of India Notification dated 3rd
March, 1998, the pension contribution (as per the prescribed rates to the salary of the respective employee), is
calculated / provided by the company in its account every month and subsequently, passed on to NIC. No liability
is thus, there on the company towards payment of Pensionery benefits.

iv.  Gratuity

Since the employees are on deputation from NIC as per the said Government of India Notification dated 3rd
March, 1998, the company is not liable to pay any Gratuity, as the same shall entirely be borne by NIC.

36. Related Party disclosures

I List of related parties

Name of the Party Relationship

Sh. Manoj Kumar Mishra Managing Director
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ii Transactions with Related Parties:

T in Lakhs
Name of Party Period Nature of Year ended Year ended
Transaction | March 31,2018 | March 31,2017
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Sh. Manoj Kumar Mishra 01-04-201710 51-05-2018 | Managerial 34.47 3.97
Remuneration
Dr. (Mrs) Ranjana Nagpal* 27-12-2016 to 14-02-2017 Managerlal. Nil Nil
Remuneration
Sh. Rajesh Bahadur 01-04-2016 to 26-12-2016 Managerlal‘ Nil 2287
Remuneration
Total 34.47 26.84

* Held additional charge of MD, NICSI and salary drawn from NIC.
i. ~ Balance payable as on 31-03-2018 to Related Parties: Rs. 2.37 Lakhs/- (PY Rs.2.00 Lakhs)

37. Operating Lease

The Company has hired office space under operating lease. Further, as per IND AS-17 *Leases’ the details of total
future minimum lease payments is as under: -

T in Lakhs
SL. No. Particulars As at March 31,2018 | As at March 31,2017
(Rs.) (Rs.)
i Not Later than one year 1302.78 1322.59
i, Later than one year and not later than five years 7578.28 7337.06
ii. Later than five years 13932.76 15807.82

38. Disclosure pursuant to IND AS- 108 ‘Operating Segments’

The company is providing services in ‘Information Technology’ segment only from a centralized office in Delhi.
Considering the same as one segment only, no disclosure according to IND AS— 108 ‘Operating Segments’ have
been made in the financial statements.

39. Balance Confirmation

The balances shown under the head loans & advances, trade receivables, trade payables, advance from customers,
Advance to supplier, Advances received under Grant-in-Aid Projects, EMDs and security deposits are subject to
confirmation, reconciliation and consequential adjustments thereof, if any.

| 183



40. Non-execution of Conveyance/Title Deed

The Company had purchased Hall No's 2&3 at 6th Floor, NBCC Towers, Bhikaiji Cama Place, New Delhi from M/s.
NBCC Limited in the year 2003 and 2001 respectively. However, the Conveyance Deed / Title Deeds towards
the same amounting to Rs. 931.50 lakhs (PY 931.50 lakhs) have not yet been got registered by NBCC despite
several requests from the company. M/s. NBCC is being reminded regularly in the matter by the company. Hence,
the initial provision of Rs 74.51 lakhs (PY Rs 74.51 lakhs) towards amount of Stamp Duty has been kept in the
financial statements and the differential amount, if any, shall be provided for in year the same got registered.

41.

In the opinion of the Management, the current assets, loans and advances have a value on

realization in ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated.

42. Disclosure u/s 22 of the MSMED Act, 2006
SL. Particulars F.Y. F.Y.
No. 2017-18 2016-17
1 | The Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any NIL NIL
supplier.
2 | The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, NIL NIL
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the
amount of the payment made to the supplier.
3 | The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making NIL NIL
payment but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
4 | The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid. NIL NIL
5 | The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the NIL NIL
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually
paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006.

There is no party covered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 in F. Y. 2017-18.
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43. Information on Stock-in-Trade

The company does not have any manufacturing unit or facility; as such information regarding licensed/installed

capacity are not applicable. The information of stock-in-trade is given below-




T in Lakhs

Particulars FY 2017-2018 FY 2016-2017
Qty. Value Qty. Value
(Nos.) (Rs.) (Nos.) (Rs.)
OPENING STOCK
Hardware Nil Nil Nil Nil
Software Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total Nil Nil Nil Nil
PURCHASE
Hardware 1611390 34239.03 3414096 41498.99
Software 53195 2644.47 278201 7170.21
Total 1664585 36883.50 3692297 48669.20
SALES
Hardware 1611390 35698.66 3414096 43768.25
Software 53195 2777.79 278201 7650.78
Total 1664585 38476.45 3692297 51419.03
CLOSING STOCK
Hardware Nil Nil Nil Nil
Software Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total Nil Nil Nil Nil

44, Disclosure pursuant to IND AS — 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’

As per IND AS — 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’ the assessment of impairment of Assets has been carried out during
the FY 2017-18 in respect of Data Centre at Laxmi Nagar, National Data Centre at Shastri Park towards investment
on “Enhancement of NIC Cloud Services” and Development Centre at Shastri Park locations, which are cash
generating units of the company and no impairment loss has been identified thereon.

45. (a) Revenue Generation (GR/ AGR) towards VSAT Projects against DOP License No. 815-100/
NICSI/2009-DS dated 20.11.2009 and payment of License Fee and Spectrum Charges to DOT thereon

NICSI had entered into a commercial VSAT License Agreement with DOT on 25.11.2009 and had been paying
the License Fee and Spectrum Charges to DOT accordingly. During the year, two projects i.e. CSC and NDRF have
been implemented against this License. C&AG Audit in October, 2015 had pointed out that Hon'ble Supreme
Court of India, in its Order dated 11.10.2011, had stated that “If the wide definition of Adjusted Gross Revenue
so as to include revenue beyond the License was in any way going to affect the Licensee, it was open for the
Licensees not to undertake activities for which they do not require License under clause (4) of the Telegraph Act
and transfer these activities to any other person or firm or company”. NICSI thereafter, took up the matter with
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DOT through MeitY that the DOT charges in respect of NICSI should be levied on the revenue generated through
these projects only and not on whole revenue of the Company, as per the initial agreed terms. DOT, vide DO
No. 32-4/ CCA-Delhi/2015-LFP (KW-2) dated 10.05.2016, has informed that the AGR matter is presently under
“Appeal” in Hon'ble Supreme Court and in the hearing on 29.02.2016, the Court has stated that “The Union of
India will continue to raise demands as per its understanding, however, the same will not be enforced till the final
decision of the controversy by this Court”. DOT has further stated that the assessment shall continue to be made
in accordance with the terms & condition of the relevant License Agreements and the guidelines/ instructions/
clarifications issued from time to time, as is being done hitherto, until further orders. However, DoT, vide its letters
No. 7-16/ 2009-LF/ VSAT 2015-16/ 107 dated 09.02.2017 and No. WPF-1000/ NICSI/ Comm. VSAT/ 2010-11/
107 dated 09.02.2017, had sent a provisional assessment to NICSI at Rs.65445.02 Lakhs towards License Fee and
Rs. 32383.09 Lakhs towards Spectrum Charges

for the period 2009 to 2016. Against this demand, NICSI had taken-up the matter with MeitY and Secretary, MeitY
had sent a D.O. letter No. 80752/GEN/ND dated 14.03.2017 to Secretary, DoT to revise the said demand as per
NICSI revenue from VSAT services only, as per their original clarification vide letter dated 25.11.2009 and Hon'ble
Supreme Court of India’s said interim advice dated 29.02.2016 on assessment, till final decision in the matter is
taken. Response from DoT is awaited. NICSI has therefore, paid/provided the charges to DOT during the year as
per past practice accordingly.

(b) VSAT for CSC Project

During FY 2017-18, an amount of Rs. NIL (PY. Rs.296.56 Lakhs) has been generated as revenue towards V-Sat for
CSC in North East Project against DOT License No. 815-100/NICSI/2009-DS dated 20/11/2009. The details are

as follows: -
% in Lakhs
S. Particulars FY 2017-18 | FY2016-17
No. (Rs.) (Rs.)
(@ | Total Revenue as per Income and Expenditure A/c of the Company 133642.72 132707.40
(b) | Income from V-sat Services (CSC Project) towards said DOT license* NIL 296.56
() | Revenue from Projects other than at (b) 133642.72 132410.84

The fee of DOT against the above license towards this project on NICSI's revenue has been charged to the project
N0.80752/GEN/ND.

Penalty, if any, to be imposed by DOT in the project would be accounted for in the year in which it would be levied.
However, NICSI had surrendered the said licence to DoT on 31.03.2017 and thereafter, no activity had been
undertaken by the company.

(c) VSAT for NDRF Project

During FY 2017-18, an amount of Rs. NIL (PY. 343.54 Lakhs has been generated as revenue towards V-Sat for
NDRF Project against DOT License No. 815-100/NICSI/2009-DS dated 20/11/2009. The details are as follows: -
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T in Lakhs

S. Particulars FY2017-18 | FY 2016-17
No. (Rs.) (Rs.)

(@ | Total Revenue as per Income and Expenditure A/c of the Company 133642.72 132707.40
(b) | Income from V-sat Services (NDRF Project) towards said DOT license* NIL 34354
() | Revenue from Projects other than at (b) 133642.72 132363.86

The fee of DOT against the above license towards this project on NICSI's revenue has been charged to the project
No. 111116/GEN/ND.

Penalty, if any, to be imposed by DOT in the project would be accounted for in the year in which it would be levied.

*However, NICSI had surrendered the said licence to DoT on 31.03.2017 and thereafter, no activity had been
undertaken by the company.

46. Operating Margin (Administrative Charges) on NKN Project

As per the minutes of the High Level Committee meeting held on 19/07/2011 towards NKN Project, specific
approval from Integrated Finance Division (IFD) of Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology (MeitY)
towards levying 1% Operating Margin on the expenditure under NKN Project is awaited. However, as per the
approval from the Board of Directors, the company has been booking its Operating Margin @1% of expenditure,
subject to Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology (MeitY’s) approval.

47. Grants-in-Aid Projects

As per the terms & conditions stipulated in the sanctions towards grants in aid projects, the Company is getting
the accounts of all such projects audited from a CA firm. For the current year, the accounts of all the GIA Projects
are since audited, except for NKN project, which is in process.

48. Service Tax on Advance

A Demand-cum-Show Cause Notice No. 38 / Audit /2014-15/ 13266 — 71 dated 24.06.2014 had been received
in NICSI from the O/0 the Commissioner of Service Tax, New Delhi, towards depositing the Service Tax of Rs.389.02
crores and interest of Rs.13.94 crores. A personal hearing and submission of final reply against the said notice
was made on 10-03-2015. The “Order-in-Original” No. 16/ST/SVS/DL-lI/2015 dated 16.06.2015 was received
from the Principal Commissioner of Service Tax (Delhi-Ill Commissionerate), according to which, the decision was
to drop the entire service tax demand of Rs.389,02,36,342/- (Rupees: Three hundred and eighty nine crore two
lakhs thirty six thousand three hundred and forty two only) including Education Cess and S&HE Cess proposed
in the SCN’s for the period 2008-09 to 2012-13. However, the Service Tax Department had filed an "Appeal”
before Hon'ble Customs, Excise & Service Tax Appellate Tribunal (CESTAT) vide Appeal No. ST/APPEAL N0.53521
OF 2015 ST(DB) dated 16-10-2015 against the dropping of the said Service Tax demand of Rs.3,89,02,36,342/-
and also, an Application for “Stay” in the matter till the decision on the Appeal. CESTAT, heard the Application
for “Stay” on 10.05.2016 and dismissed the same. The Company had accordingly, filed a fresh Application with
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the Service Tax Office for refund of Rs. 30,29,27,240/- on 15.06.2016. The Service Tax Department, vide Order
dated 30.11.2016, sanctioned the refund of Rs. 30,29,27,240/- to NICSI which was received on 08.05.2017. The
hearing on the “Appeal” was done by CESTAT on 26.07.2018 and it has dismissed the Service Tax Department’s
Appeal, vide order dated 16.08.2018.

49. Recognition of Operating Margin

The company is facilitating computer hardware on behalf of Government Departments and organizations for
which administrative charges as approved by Board are being levied on receipt of bills, along with acknowledgment
towards deliveries to the customers are completed.

As per Board approval, the rates of Operating Margin during FY. 2017-18 have been as under:

Project Cost Rate in percentage of Project cost
Upto Rs.50 crore 7%
Above Rs.50 crore 5%

(The above rates are applicable since 15.01.2015 and prior to that, different slab rates were applicable between
3 to 8% of the cost of project).

However, as per MeitY approval, the company has not been charging any Operating Margin from NIC on the
procurement towards their internal projects and further, towards Digital Signature Project, the company has been
taking a uniform Operating Margin @ 5% irrespective of project cost.

50. Income/Expenditure on National Data Centre Project, Shastri Park, Delhi

MeitY had approved that from 01-04-2014 onwards, NICSI would be incurring operational expenditure headwise
on the National Data Centre, Shastri Park, Delhi upto Rs.8.00 crores on the heads Rent & Maintenance/ Basic
Infrastructure Maintenance/ Basic Infrastructure O & M Manpower and NIC would reimburse the expenditure
from its Budgetary Provision to NICSI towards Electricity & Diesel Charges/ Physical Security & Housekeeping
Charges/ Water Charges/ Logistics Support/ Contingency Charges upto 3% of all these charges, after these
expenditure are initially incurred by NICSI. Against the expenditure of Rs.8.00 crores, NICSI would generate income
through servers given to other organizations on chargeable basis. In case the income is less than the expenditure,
the balance amount would be treated as Promotional Expenses towards NICSI objectives. During the year the
income for NICSI has been Rs.1736.89 Lakhs (P. Y. Rs. 1235.20 Lakhs ) as against the expenditure of Rs. 800.00
Lakhs (PY.Rs. 570.95 Lakhs).

51. LTC to NICSI employees on deputation from NIC

The company had reimbursed an amount of Rs. 1.89 crore towards LTC, based on the Service Rules of NICSI to
the NICSI employees deputed from NIC during the Financial Years 2010-11 to 2013-14. This amount had been
reimbursed by the Company based on the Service Rules approved by the Board of Directors in its 49th meeting
held on 17.05.2006 and amended in 69th meeting held on 24.09.2010, which were not in line with DPE/ DOPT
guidelines & CCS LTC Rules. These Service Rules had thereafter, been sent by NICSI to NIC/MeitY on 11.11.2014
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for ratification. As per Board approval that the recovery be made in installments, NICSI had recovered the amount
from the salary of employees in May, 2015. Against the same, the employees had filed a Writ Petition in the
Hon’ble Delhi High Court against the recovery and the Court, vide “Order” dated 09.06.2015, had granted the
“Stay” on the recovery of amount from the employees, pending the final decision by the Court in the matter.
Finally, the Hon'ble Delhi High Court, in its judgment dated 18.03.2016, had decided that “Service conditions
which induce the present appellants to apply for NICSI for deputation and continue there held out a
liberalized LTC option. That option was availed of continuously. The LTC regulations were amended
further-itis notin dispute that the original regulations of NICSI and the amendments continue in force.
In these circumstances, the recovery sought to be made without altering the conditions of service
could not have been upheld. Accordingly, the respondents are permitted to recover only amounts
paid in excess of the deputation terms either pre-2010 as existing with some of the employees joined
the organization or those which are contrary to the 2010 amendments. The Appeal is allowed to that
extent”.

MeitY, vide letter dated 14.07.2016, had directed NICSI to continue recovery of over-payment to the employees
who had irregularly drawn LTC. NICSI, vide letter dated 29.07.2016, informed MeitY that in view of the current
directives, NICSI has re-started the process of recovery of over-payment made to the employees on account
of LTC and an Office Memorandum was also issued towards the same on 29.07.2016 itself, informing that the
recovery would start from the salary for the month of August, 2016. The matter was simultaneously submitted
by NICSI to MeitY on 16.08.2016.

The affected employees had then gone to Hon'ble Delhi High Court by filing a contempt petition against the
re-started process of recovery as per the said NICSI O.M. dated 29.07.2016, in which NICSI and MeitY were both
made Respondents. MeitY had re-considered the matter and advised NICSI, vide note dated 17.03.2017,to adhere
to the said decision dated 18.03.2016 from Hon'ble Delhi High Court in the matter. Based on MeitY directive,
NICSI issued O.M. dated 21.03.2017 mentioning “not to effect recovery of LTC claims by NIC/ NICSI employees
and further, the recovery of amounts already made to be paid back to concerned officers in due course. The
Respondents accordingly, informed the decision to Hon'ble Delhi High Court in its hearing on 23.03.2017 by
handing over a photocopy of the O.M. dated 21.03.2017. The contempt petition was thus treated as disposed off
as satisfied and the respondents were directed to forthwith give effect to the O.M. dated 21.03.2017. NICSI had
accordingly taken action and refunded the recovered amount to each individual.

In the meantime, the matter was included by the C&AG Office in its “Report for the year ended March, 2014 —
Union Government (Communications & IT Sector) — No. 55 of 2015” presented to Parliament. It is currently with
Public Accounts Committee (PAC) of Parliament.

MeitY had informed the C&AG Office as per above, including the said Hon’ble Delhi High Court decision. The C&AG
Office had thereafter, desired the copy of the Hon’ble Court decision and also, the Government approval towards
ratification of NICSI Service Rules. While the copy of Hon'ble Court decision was provided to the C&AG Office,
it was informed that the matter towards ratification of NICSI Service Rules was still under consideration of the
Government. The para is thus, still under consideration of the PAC for want of ratification of NICSI Service Rules
from the Government.
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52. Project Incentive to NICSI employees on deputation from NIC

The Company had paid an amount of Rs. 2.11 crores towards Project Incentive to the NICSI employees deputed
from NIC for the Financial Years 2007-08 to 2013-14. In addition, an amount of Rs. 44.84 Lakhs had been
provided in the Accounts for FY. 2014-15, Rs. 45.80 Lakhs for F. Y. 2015-16 towards the same, based on the
guidelines approved by the Board of Directors in its 60th meeting held on 22.12.2008 which are not in line
with DPE guidelines. Matter had been taken up by NICSI with NIC/ MeitY to approve the guidelines. TDS on
Project Incentive will be deducted at the time actual payment. Since no feedback in the matter is yet received, no
provision towards Project Incentive has been made during financial year 2017-18.

53. Interest on Un-utilized fund of Grant in Aid projects

Till FY. 2011-2012, the Company was treating the amount received from Grantor Institution for execution of
projects as ‘Advances received from customer’ instead of treating them as Grant in Aid receipt and accordingly, no
interest was provided on un-utilized fund to Grantor Institution.

Board of Directors, vide meeting dated 21-12-2011, had approved to calculate and refund the interest earned
on un-utilized fund available in Grant in Aid Projects from time to time as per the rate of interest applicable in
the Saving Bank Accounts in the Public Sector Banks. Accordingly, the Company had calculated and refunded
the amount of interest to the Grantor institution i.e. rate of interest applicable in the Saving Bank Accounts in the
Public Sector Banks, whereas as per terms and conditions laid down by the Grantor Institution, the actual interest
earned on un-utilized balance of Grant in Aid projects is to be refunded. The grantor departments have accepted
the interest as credited to the individual project till FY.2016-17 and most of these projects are since completed
and their accounts settled. However, a para is continuing from the C&AG Office towards less refund of interest
in GIA Projects by the company to the Government. NICSI had provided the reply on the para and it is still under
consideration of the C&AG Office.

In the meantime, the Board of Directors, in its 100th meeting held on 28.03.2017, had re-considered the matter
and advised NICSI to refund the interest on Grants-in-Aid Projects on actual basis. Accordingly, in the current year,
NICSI has worked out the interest in GIA Projects on actual basis as per the interest rates informed by the bank for
that year and provided in each ledger of the respective project. Further, new bank accounts have since been got
opened by the Company for each GIA on-going project and the entire interest earned therein would be refunded
to the grantor department on actual basis in future.

The interest on unutilized fund on Grant-in-Aid projects (including NKN Project) for the F. Y. 2017-18 amounting
to Rs.777.72 Lakhs (P. Y. Rs.499.10 Lakhs including NKN Project) has been reduced from interest income for the
year.

54. Transport Allowance and House Rent Allowance to NICSI employees on deputation from NIC

The Company has paid an excess amount of Rs. 0.49 crore towards Transport Allowance and Rs. 0.17 crore
towards House Rent Allowance to the NICSI employees deputed from NIC during the period from 01.07.2007 to
31.03.2014. This amount has been paid by the Company based on the Service Rules approved by the Board of
Directorsinits 49th meeting held on 17.05.2006 whichis notin line with GOl Rules. These Service Rules have been
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sent by NICSI to NIC/ MeitY on 11.11.2014 for ratification. Further feedback in the matter is awaited. Payments
have also been made by the company during the year 2014-15 to 2017-18 as per the existing provisions in NICS|
Service Rules.

55. Trade Receivables

NICSlimplements a large number of new projects every year from various Ministries/ Departments / Organizations
of the Government of India and States / UTs. As per the provisions in the General Financial Rules (GFRs), they
restrict the release of advances to NICSI to 40% or so, whereas in many cases mainly related to procurement
of ICT Hardware, NICSI has to release the work orders to full extent and after delivery / installation of those
items, NICSI has to release the payments to the vendors as per the payment terms in the work orders. This, on
many occasions, result in Trade Receivables, disclosed in note no. 9 of the financial statements, amount of trade
receivables of Rs. 28835.15 Lakhs (PY Rs. 28130.13 Lakhs) as at March 31, 2018, which is followed up by NICSI
from time to time with the concerned Departments /Organizations to recover the same.

56. Income Tax Exemption Appeal with ITAT

The company had filed an application with the Commissioner of Income Tax on 13.06.2013 for its Registration
u/s 12A (a) of the Income Tax Act, 1961. However, the request was rejected by the Competent Authority, vide
“Order” dated 17.12.2013. NICSI had thereafter filed an Appeal with the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (ITAT),
New Delhion 20.02.2014 in the matter, against the order of dated 17.12.2013. The Hon'ble ITAT vide Order dated
17.04.2017 has directed the Income Tax Authorities to grant the registration u/s 12A to NICSI. The company had
filed an application with Income Tax Department for further necessary action.

57. Classification of Assets and Liabilities into current and non-current

The company provides the bifurcations of Assets & Liabilities into ‘Current’ and ‘Non-Current’ in the financial
statements on the basis of estimation of recoverability/payment within operating cycle.

58. Retention Money

Somevendors have notsubmitted the performance bank guarantees as perthe terms & conditions of empanelment
but rather requested to the company to retain the amount equivalent to performance bank Guarantee from his
payment. Accordingly Rs. 242.38 Lakhs (P. Y. Rs.296.18 Lakhs) has been retained and transferred to a new head
naming Retention Money.

59. Government Grant from different Ministries/Departments.

NICSI receives government grant from different Ministries/ Departments for the ICT Projects only from time to
time for normal trading transaction of the entity, which cannot be distinguished. No government grantis however,
received by NICSI for its own requirement/ consumption.

A disclosure in the financial statements has been made separately under the head ‘Other Current Liabilities” as
‘Grant in Aid received from Customers’, as these are normal trading transactions. These grants are utilized for
the purposes of execution of respective projects and if there is balance available with NICSI at the close of the
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respective Project, the same is refunded to the Grantor Institution alongwith the interest. All the grant in aid
amounts are received for the Projects only.

NICSI implements various orders from the government departments/ organizations towards procurement of
hardware/ software and providing manpower. It takes Operating Margin on the total cost of each order, as per
the rates approved by its Board of Directors from time to time. NICSI receives fund against those orders from the
departments/ organizations as advances. No other form of government assistance is received by NICSI, from
which it is directly benefited. There is no grant of monetary or non-monetary asset given to NICSI at concessional
rate or free of cost.

NICSI fulfils all the terms & conditions attached to the administrative approvals/ sanctions towards release of
grants-in-aid by the Ministries/ Departments.

60. Expenditure of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

NICSIBoard of Directors, inits meeting 99th held on 26.12.2016, had set up a CSR Committee. The CSR Committee
had met on 04.12.2017 and recommended the following:-

X/

% CSR Policy of NICSI.
¢ Rs.1.98 crore to be incurred by NICSI on CSR activities during FY.2017-18.

Subsequently, the Board of Directors in its 104th meeting held on 22.12.2017, had approved the said
recommendations of the CSR Committee, including the Policy for the same. Accordingly, NICSI has made
a provision of Rs.1.98 crore in the Accounts for FY.2017-18 to be carried forward for expenditure in the next
financial year.

61. Implementation of ERP Application in NICSI.

NICSI had given a Work Order to M/s. Rolta India Ltd. on 22.03.2013 to procure, customize, implement and maintain
the ERP Application at NICSI. While customizing the same, the firm had migrated some financial data for F.Y.2015-
16 and 2016-17. NICSI had also accepted the deliverables in November, 2016, as were specified in the said Work
Order. Thereafter, NICSI had also adopted the ERP on trial basis. As it had functioned satisfactory, NICSI had
disbanded the working of Accounts on Tally Package from 30.06.2017 and completely adopted newly developed
ERP from 01.07.2017. Thus, the Accounts for FY.2017-18 have been prepared by NICSI for initial 3 months in Tally
package and subsequently, transferred the same to the newly developed ERP and from 01.07.2017 completely
in the ERP only. The Final Accounts have been accordingly prepared.

62. Fixed Operating Margin in NICSI Project Nos. D150084, D150085, D150086 and D150087 from
Meity.

MeitY, vide its Administrative Approval No. 3 (64)/ 2014-EG-II dated 29.03.2015, had given “Asset Mapping of
Panchayats” to NICSI at a total cost of Rs. 32.39 Crore, mentioning therein that the Operating Margin of NICSI
would be Rs. 1.00 crore. NICSI had taken up the matter with MeitY informing that the rate of Operating Margin
on the cost of project is 7% and the Administrative Approval be accordingly revised. Feedback from MeitY was
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awaited. However, NICSI had taken its income at 7% in the project during the year. The “Project Review and
Steering Group” (PRSG) in MeitY had reviewed the progress of the project, in its meeting held on 20.09.20917 and
recommended its closure from MeitY site, as Ministry of Panchyati Raj (MoPR) had suggested to completely take
over the owner-ship of the project.

63. District 2.0 - Augmentation of District Infrastructure to cater to Digital India Initiative”

The Board of Directors, in its 100th meeting held on 28.03.2017, had considered the project and approve at a
total outlay of Rs.99.00 crore for Phase-| to be met entirely by NICSI out of its “Cash Reserves”. However, there
would be no “Revenue” income in the project, as it involves augmentation only of ICT Infrastructure at NIC's some
District Centres. Since, no income is there in the project and the assets created neither belong to NICSI nor in its
possession, NICSI has directly routed the entire expenditure of Rs. 2687.54 Lakhs towards it during the year to
Income & Expenditure Account as an expense.

64. Income Tax

Income Tax paid (Note No. 13 — Current Tax Assets) includes certain balances of TDS/Advance Tax refundable
from FY 2007-08 to FY 2014-15. The Company has filed necessary applications with Income Tax Department for
refund/adjustment. The final entry, if any, shall be made in the year of refund/adjustment.

65. Obsolete ltems

The Company has certain obsolete items of Fixed Assets as on 31-03-2018. Action is in process to dispose off
these items. Till the time the same being disposed off, the carrying value of such assets is appearing in Fixed
Assets and depreciation as per companies accounting policy is being charged.

66. Prior Period Items

The company has treated only errors and omissions as prior period. In current year no error or omission is there
and hence, no prior period expenses or income.

67. Publishing of “Notice Inviting Tenders” (NIT) in the Dailies by NICSI through DAVP

As on 01-04-2017, DAVP was having advances of Rs. 27.41 Lakhs outstanding from NICSI towards publications.
During the year, NICSI has released further advances of Rs.12.73 Lakhs to DAVP. Adjustments made during the
year were of Rs.00.20 Lakhs.

68. Previous year figure reclassification

The company has reclassified previous year figures to confirm current year classification.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF NATIONAL INFORMATICS CENTRE SERVICES INC.

Report on thelnd AS financial statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of NATIONAL INFORMATICS CENTRE
SERVICES INC.("the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018, the Income
&Expenditure Account, the Cash Flow Statement, statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, income and expenditure (including other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes
in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeqguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which
are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under
and the order under section 143(11) of the Act.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the
Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the
Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation
of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the company has
in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness
of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.
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Basis of qualified opinion

1.

Reference is invited to the note no. 47 and 53 of the Ind AS financial statements, regarding Grants-in-aid,

a)  The unaudited accounts of NKN project have been incorporated in the Ind AS financial statements
of the Company.

b) During the current year, the interest on Grant-in-Aid projects amounting to Rs. 777.72 Lakhs/-
(Previous year Rs. 499.10 Lakhs) has been reduced from interest income earned during the year as
per the interest rate on fixed deposits (Previous year saving bank account) given by the public sector
banks based on the management estimation instead of actual interest earned on unutilized funds of
Grant —in — aid projects as per the terms & conditions laid down by grantor institution. The impact of
the same on the previous years has not been worked out, amount unascertained.

o) TillLFY 2014-15, the Company paid interest on unutilized amount of Grants-in-Aid projects without
considering service tax paid in Grants-in-Aid projects. From the FY 2015-16 Company has changed
its method of calculation and considered Service tax paid in Grants-in-Aid projects while calculating
interest. The effect of same on previous year's interest payment has not been worked out.

The overall impact of matters referred to in the preceding para on the Ind AS financial statements for the
year is unascertainable and unquantifiable.

Reference is invited to note no. 46 and 49 of Ind AS financial statements on recognition of operating margin

D) As per MeitY and NICSI's Board approval, The Company has not been charging any operating margin
from NIC on the procurement towards their internal project.

i The Company, has been taking a uniform operating margin @5% on digital signature project
irrespective of project cost.

il Revenue from operation includes income recognized @ 1% as administrative charges of expenditure
incurred on NKN Project. The same is subject to Ministry of Electronics & Information Technology
(‘MeitY’) approval.

In the absence of approval and details, the overall impact of matters referred to in the preceding paras on
the Ind AS financial statements for the year is unascertainable and unquantifiable.

Reference is invited to note no. 62 of Ind AS financial statements regarding MeitY project of “Asset
Mapping of Panchayats” having total cost of Rs. 3238.99 Lakhs and the Operating Margin of NICSI, as per
Administrative Approval is fixed at Rs. 100.00 Lakhs. The Company has taken its income at 7% of expenses
incurred for the project during the year as per the rate of operating margin approved by the Board. Feedback
from MeitY is not received.

In our opinion, internal controls/internal audit systems in relation to, project management, book keeping,
invoicing, procurement, stores, inventory, physical verification of fixed assets and tendering process of the
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10.

11.

12.

company are not commensurate with the size and nature of its operations.

Reference is invited to note no. 39 of the Ind AS financial statements, balance confirmations have not
been received from Trade Payables, Trade Receivables, Advances received from customers, Earnest Money
Deposits, Security deposits, advance to suppliers and Grants-in-aid received for balance outstanding as
at March 31, 2018. In the absence of confirmations, we are unable to comment on the accuracy of the
balances and adjustment thereof, along with impact, if any, on Ind AS financial statements.

Reference isinvited to Note 9 to the Ind AS financial statements and accounting policy No. 2(xvi), Provision
for bad and doubtful debts as on balance sheet date amounting to Rs. 301.43 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs.
303.28 Lakhs) created against trade receivables. In the absence of balance confirmations and proper
documentation, we are unable to comment on the adequacy of such provision and impact thereof, if any,
on Ind AS financial statements.

Reference is invited to note no. 57 of the Ind AS financial statements, Companies Act, 2013 requires
classification of Assets and Liabilities into current and non-current. In absence of reasonable basis for such
bifurcation disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements, we are unable to comment on accuracy of such
disclosure.

Reference is invited to note no. 14 of the Ind AS financial statements, Taxes Recoverable as on balance
sheet date includes Sales tax recoverable balance of Rs. 117.70 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 117.70 Lakhs)
which pertains to financial year 1996-97 to 2013-14 and TDS on works contract Rs. 2.34 Lakhs (Previous
Year Rs. 2.34 Lakhs) for FY 2000-01. In the absence of reasonable and sufficient documentation in relation
to recoverability of above, we are unable to comment on the accuracy and existence of these balances and
consequential impact on the Ind AS financial statements, if any.

Reference is invited to note no. 64 of the Ind AS financial statements regarding current tax assets of
Rs.11,129.73 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 6036.78 Lakhs) which includes certain balances of TDS/Advance
tax refundable from FY 2007-08 to 2014-15. In the absence of reasonable feedback form income tax
department regarding recoverability of above, we are unable to comment on the accuracy and existence
of these balances and consequential impact on the Ind AS financial statements, if any

Reference is invited to note no. 52 of the Ind AS financial statements regarding project incentive paid/
provided by the Company for the period 2007-08 to 2015-16 amounting to Rs. 301.64 lakhs without
approval of MietY/NIC. Pending approval/finalization of matter, we are unable to comment on the impact,
if any, on the Ind AS financial statements of the Company.

Reference is invited to note no. 54 of the Ind AS financial statements regarding payment of Transport
and House Rent Allowance being paid/provided by the Company from 01.07.2007 to 31.03.2018 without
approval/rectification by MeitY. Pending finalization of matter, we are unable to comment on the impact, if
any, on the Ind AS financial statements of the Company.

Reference is invited to note no. 65 of the Ind AS financial statements regarding Obsolete Assets, during the
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13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

physical verification of fixed assets conducted by the Company, some assets are identified as obsolete/
non-working. Effect of the same has not been provided for the Ind AS financial statements. In the absence
of details, consequential impact on the Ind AS financial statement for year is not ascertainable and
quantifiable.

Reference is invited to note no. 45 regarding method of calculating License Fee and Spectrum Charges and
demand of Rs. 65445.02 lakhs towards License Fee and Rs. 32383.09 Lakhs towards Spectrum Charges
raised by DOT, the Company has paid/provided for the License Fee and Spectrum Charges to DOT. As the
matter is pending in Hon'ble Supreme Court of India consequential impact, if any, on the Ind AS financial
statement is not ascertainable and quantifiable.

Reference is invited to note no. 19 Other Financial Liabilities which includes liability of Earnest money
Deposit of Rs. 921.36 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 1396.41 Lakhs) . In the absence of sufficient and reasonable
documentary evidence, we are unable to comment on completeness and accuracy of this amount.
Consequential impact, if any, on the Ind AS financial statement is not ascertainable and quantifiable.

Reference is invited to note no. 17 and 19 other financial liabilities include securities deposit payable Rs.
40.45 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 51.46 Lakhs) and Earnest Money Deposit of Rs. 921.36 Lakhs (Previous Year
Rs. 1396.41 Lakhs) which are not measured at amortized costs or at fair value as per Significant Accounting
Policy 2(vii) and (viii) regarding measurement of financial liabilities. Consequential impact, if any, on the Ind
AS financial statement is not ascertainable and quantifiable.

Reference is invited to note no 61 regarding implementation of ERP software w.e.f 1st July 2017 to prepare
and maintain books of accounts, ERP software is implemented without any validation by any external
independent agency. Parallel accounting maintained in ERP system for the first three months is not fully
in consensus with the Tally Accounting Software. In the absence of validation documentation and details,
consequential impact on the Ind AS financial statement for year is not ascertainable and quantifiable.

The Company has not complied with the following Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed by the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. -

The company has not complied with disclosure requirements Ind AS 10 “Events after the Reporting
Period”, as the Company receives service and material on behalf of third party to carry out certain
projects. Sometimes, as informed to us, information related to such expense and acquisition comes
after closing date and the same has not been recognized in the Ind AS financial statements. Further,
reference is invited to Note no. 66 of Ind AS financial statements, in relation to prior period expenses/
income, the Company has treated only errors or omissions as prior period.

i, Reference is invited to the note no. 2(viii) of the Ind AS financial statements; as per the Company’s
policy, revenue on sales of goods is being recognized at the time of generation of invoice, whereas,
the risk and reward are transferred to customers on acceptance of goods. This is resulting in non-
compliance of Ind AS 18 Revenue Recognition.
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Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the
possible effects of the matters described in the ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’ paragraph above, the aforesaid Ind
AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2018, and its surplus (including other comprehensive income) and its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters
Without qualifying our opinion, we lay emphasis that-

a. Reference is invited to note no. 55 of the Ind AS financial statements, the company has incurred extra
expenditure than the advances received from user departments in case of some projects, as they restrict
the release of advances to NICSI to 40% or so as per GFR provisions. Reference is also invited to note no. 9
of the Ind AS financial statements, amount of trade receivables of Rs. 28,835.15 Lakhs (PY Rs. 28,130.13
Lakhs) as at March 31, 2018 is on account of such excess project expenditure incurred by the Company.

b. The Company is not maintaining separate bank accounts for money received for Grant-in-aid projects.
Though, the company is maintaining a separate project account for each project in the accounting software.

C. Reference is invited to the note no. 40 of the Ind AS financial statements, conveyance/title deeds in

respect of office building at Bhikaji Cama Place, New Delhi of Rs. 931.50 Lakhs are pending for execution/
registration.

d. Reference is invited to note no. 56 of the Ind AS financial statements, the Company had filed an application
with the commissioner of income tax on 13/06/2013 for its registration under section 12A of the Income
Tax Act,1961. However the same application was rejected by the commissioner of income tax. The
company’s appeal with the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal, New Delhi against CIT order has been decided in
favour. Appeal effect is still pending with income tax Department.

e. Stock summary generated by the ERP system is not matching with the books of accounts.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. The Company is licensed to operate under section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013, therefore, the disclosure
required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act is not applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a)  Wehave soughtand obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit except as mentioned in basis of qualified
opinion paragraph above.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.
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)

d

e)

f)

a

h)

The Balance Sheet, the Income and Expenditure Account, and the Cash Flow Statement and
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account.

Except for the matters described in basis of qualified opinion, in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS
financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of
the Act.

The internal controls described in sub paragraph 6 under the basis for qualified opinion above, in
above opinion, may have adverse effect on the functioning of the company;

Since the company is a Government company, sub-section (2) of section 164 of the Companies Act,
2013 regarding director’s disqualification, is not applicable to the Company in terms of Notification
No. GSR-463 (E) dated 05.06.2015;

Withrespect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A”. Our
report expresses qualified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind
AS financial statements (Refer Note no. 31 to the Ind AS financial statements);

ih. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

3. Our separate report on directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section
143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 is attached as Annexure B.

For Goel Garg & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN. 000397N)

(Ajay Rastogi)

Partner

(M. No. 084897)

Place: New Delhi
Date: 26th September 2018
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
NATIONAL INFORMATICS CENTRE SERVICES INC.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of NATIONAL INFORMATICS CENTRE
SERVICES INC. ("the Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safequarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company'’s internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAIl and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.  Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
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judgment including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable details, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the Ind
AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the Inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial over financial reporting
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changed in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material
weaknesses have been identified as at March 31, 2018;

a)  The Company did not have an appropriate internal control system for reconciliation/confirmation of vendor
balances. These could potentially result in material misstatements in the Company’s trade payables.

b)  The Company did not have an appropriate internal control system on investment of excess funds in fixed
deposits. These could potentially result in loss of interest income.

c)  The Company did not implement the ERP System as per the policies and guidelines of the contract and
post validation during the year.

A ‘material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control over financial
reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company's annual Ind AS
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financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, except for the effects/possible effects of the material weaknesses described above on the
achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has maintained, in all material respects,
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as of March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reportingissued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in determining the nature, timing,
and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2018 Ind AS financial statements of the Company,
and these material weaknesses do not affect our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements of the Company.

For Goel Garg & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000397N

Ajay Rastogi
Partner
Membership No. 084897

Date: 26th September 2018
Place: New Delhi
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ANNEXURE ‘B’TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF NATIONAL INFORMATICS CENTRE SERVICES INC.

REPORT ON DIRECTIONS ISSUED BY THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF
INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(5) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

(1) Whether the company has clear title/ lease deeds for freehold and leasehold respectively? If not please
state the area of freehold and leasehold land for which title/ lease deeds are not available.

As per the information provided to us, the title deeds of all the assets owned by the company are
registered except those mentioned in note no. 42 of audited statements.

(2)  Please report whether there are any cases of waiver/write off debts/loans/interest etc.,, if yes, the reasons
therefore and the amount involved. —

As per the information and explanation provided to us, there is no case of waiver/write off the
debts/loans/ interest, etc. during the year.

(3)  Whether proper records are maintained for inventories lying with third parties & assets received as gift/
grant(s) from Govt. or other authorities?

As per the information and explanation provided to us, no inventories which belong to the company
are lying with third parties and no assets have been reported to us as gifts /grant(s) received from
government or other authorities. However assets procured for the users under Grant in Aid belong to
respective user departments and not to the company.

For Goel Garg & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000397N

Sd/-

(Ajay Rastogi)
Partner

M. No. 084897

Place: New Delhi
Date: 26th September 2018
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COMMENTS OF THECOMPTROLLERAND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIAUNDERSECTION
143(6) (b) OFTHECOMPANIES ACT,2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NATIONAL
INFORMATICS CENTRE SERVICES INC. (NICSI) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

The preparation of financial statement of NATIONAL INFORMATICS CENTRE SERVICES INC. (NICSI) for the year
ended 31 March 2018 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies
Act, 2013 is the responsibility of the management of the company. The Statutory Auditor/Auditors appointed by
the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 139(5) of the Act is/are responsible for expressing
opinion on the financial statements under section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with
standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide
their Audit Report dated 26th September 2018.

, on the behalf of Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit of the financial
statements of NICSI for the year ended 31 March 2018 under section 143(6) (a) of the Act. This supplementary
audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the statutory auditors and is
limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and a selective examination of
some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge which would give rise to
any comment upon or supplement to statutory auditor’s report under section 143(6)(b) of the act.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Sd/-

(Sangita Choure)
Director General of Audit
(Post and Telecommunication)

Place: New Delhi
Date: 07-12-2018
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